
Public Accounts Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
27 September 2011  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Bethan Webber 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8409 
Publicaccounts.comm@Wales.gov.uk  

Name  
Deputy Committee Clerk 
029 2089 xxxx 
Name@wales.gov.uk 

 

 

Agenda 
 

 

Private session 

1. Audit Scotland report on the accounts of the Auditor General for 
Wales    
(9.00-09.15) 
  

Public session 

2. Apologies and substitutions   

3. Auditor General for Wales's Annual Report and Accounts 2010-
2011  (Pages 1 - 116)  
(9.20-10.20) 
 
PAC(4)-03-11(Paper 1) - Auditor General for Wales’s Annual Report and Accounts 
2010-11 
 
Huw Vaughan Thomas Auditor General for Wales  
Kevin Thomas, Assistant Auditor General 
Terry Jones, Technical Manager 
 
PAC(4)-03-11(Paper 2) - Annual Report by Audit Scotland on the 2010-2011 audit of 

Public Document Pack



the Auditor General for Wales.  
 
Russell A J Frith, Assistant Auditor General 
Mark Taylor, Assistant Director, Audit Scotland 
  

4. Consideration of the Estimate of Income and Expenditure of the 
WAO for the year ending 31 March 2012  (Pages 117 - 125)  
(10.20-10.50) 
 
PAC(4)-03-11(Paper 3) Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure of The Wales 
Audit Office for the Year Ending 31 March 2012 

March 2012  

Private session 
Subject to the Committee’s agreement, the remainder of the meeting will be held in private 
session under Standing Order 17.42(vi) 

5. Issues of governance and accountability in relation to the Auditor 
general for Wales  (Pages 126 - 128)  
(10.50-11.00)  

Paper to note 
Minutes of previous meeting 
PAC(4)-02-11 (Mins) 
 

 



Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

This annual report and accounts has been prepared 

in accordance with paragraph 13 of Schedule 8 of the 

Government of Wales Act 2006 in a form directed by 

the Treasury.

!"#$%&'()*+&,-./$

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff

CF11 9LJ

telephone 02920 320 500
email    info@wao.gov.uk

website www.wao.gov.uk
twitter  twitter.com/walesaudit

© Auditor General for Wales

Page 2



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         3

Highlights

New Auditor General for Wales appointed

Issued reports on the accounts of approximately 840 public 
bodies in Wales

Published 12 national reports looking at value for money 
in key areas of public spending, 28 annual improvement 
reports on local government authorities and carried out 
structured assessments at all health boards and NHS trusts 

Reduced fees between 2009 and 2011 in cash terms by 
£1.27 million or 8.0 per cent 

Consulted on a new strategy for more cost-effective 
!"#$%&!'$%()*(+*,#')$-+.)/"/*"01")/%$.#"

National Fraud Initiative resulted in public bodies detecting 
and preventing fraud and error totalling £7 million

2'.)!3"/*4$%5"67*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),8*1',"9*(+*(.#*:((/*
Practice Exchange

;(9$"/*')*<;=*>./%$*?(55%$$""*?3'%#98*@"A"6(15")$*@'7*
and a Grey Fleet Seminar

Signed a strategic agreement with the main inspection 
bodies in Wales to enhance joint working

Achieved overall savings of over £1 million through cost 
#"/.!$%()*')/*,#"'$"#*"+&!%")!7B*')/*#"-'!!#"/%$'$%()*'$*
2"A"6*C*(+*$3"*:#"")*@#',()*D)A%#()5")$'6*=$')/'#/

Established a new structure of three governance committees 
to exercise oversight respectively of remuneration, 
resources, and audit and risk management within the Wales 
>./%$*E+&!"

Page 3



4         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

F3%9*%9*57*&#9$*')).'6*#"1(#$*'9*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"9H*I(#*$3"*&#9$*

9%0*5()$39*(+*$3"*7"'#*!(A"#"/*J7*$3%9*#"1(#$B*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*K'9*

under the leadership of my predecessor Gillian Body. I should like to thank 

:%66%')*')/*$3"*9$'++*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*+(#*$3"*!(55%$5")$*')/*

unswerving professionalism that they have shown. I will not pretend that it 

has been an easy year, but it has been a very productive one. 

Having been subjected to a lengthy and detailed level of external scrutiny, 

$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*3'9*"5"#,"/*J($3*9$#(),"#*')/*J"$$"#*"L.%11"/*$(*

serve the people of Wales. This annual report and accounts demonstrates 

A"#7*!6"'#67*$3"*&)')!%'6*/%9!%16%)"*')/*!(55%$5")$*$(*$#')91'#")!7*

which now underpins the organisation. My accounts also demonstrate the 

"++(#$9*K"*3'A"*5'/"*(A"#*$3"*7"'#*$(*")9.#"*(.#*&)')!%'6*1(9%$%()*%9*J($3*

1#(1"#67*#"M"!$"/*')/*9(.)/67*J'9"/H*

The new governance arrangements that I have introduced aim to ensure 

$3'$*K3("A"#*3(6/9*$3"*(+&!"*(+*>./%$(#*:")"#'6B*$3"7*K%66*J"*9.JN"!$*$(*'*

rigorous and robust framework of checks and balances. I also welcome 

moves by the Welsh Government to enshrine this principle in legislation. 

As I said, it has been a productive year for us. A year in which Wales has 

faced many challenges and in which it has begun to rethink itself as a 

law-making nation and has elected a Fourth Assembly. The Wales Audit 

E+&!"*%9*'J6"*$(*1#(A%/"*')*(A"#A%"K*(+*'66*1.J6%!*91")/%),*')/*K"*3'A"*

!()$#%J.$"/*9%,)%&!')$67*$(*$3"*)'$%()'6*/"J'$"*()*"++"!$%A"*')/*"+&!%")$*

public service provision. 

I%)')!%'6*'./%$*%9*'$*$3"*3"'#$*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*K(#OH*P$*3'9*

provided assurance and helped to promote improvement across all 

sectors.

Foreword by 

the Auditor 

General  

for Wales

Page 4



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         5

In health, we have informed those charged with the restructuring of local 

health bodies, helping the new organisations to learn from the experience 

of their predecessors. We have also introduced a more structured and 

consistent model of assessment in both health and local government 

which has enabled a greater degree of informed and constructive 

comparison in our reporting to the public and to other stakeholders. From 

our improvement assessments in local government, covering councils, 

&#"*'.$3(#%$%"9*')/*)'$%()'6*1'#O9B*K"*3'A"*/#'K)*!()!6.9%()9*'J(.$*$3"*

preparedness of those authorities to deal with stringent constraints.

We have published value for money reports covering topics as relevant 

and diverse as major transport projects and hospital catering. Alongside 

$3%9*K(#OB*K"*3'A"*%)A(6A"/*(.#9"6A"9*K%$3*1#(5($%),*"+&!%")!7*')/*

innovation. We have worked alongside public bodies to support them in 

taking properly considered and well-managed risks, always with a keen 

eye to providing assurance that public money is being properly and wisely 

spent.

E.#*'11#('!3*#"M"!$9*57*/"$"#5%)'$%()*$3'$*K"*93(.6/*'//*A'6."*J7*

offering commentary to inform decisions as they are taken, as well as 

1#(A%/%),*'11#(1#%'$"*1(9$-"A")$*#"A%"KH*P$*'69(*#"M"!$9*57*#"9(6A"*$(*J"*

proportionate in the work we do. Public bodies face pressures on their time 

')/*#"9(.#!"9*+#(5*5')7*L.'#$"#9H*P)/"1")/")$*1.J6%!*'./%$*$3'$*4$"669*%$*

6%O"*%$*%98*%9*%51(#$')$*+(#*3"'6$37*/"5(!#'$%!*,(A"#)5")$B*J.$*%$*5.9$*'6K'79*

")9.#"*$3'$*$3"*/"5')/9*%$*5'O"9*'#"*%)*1#(1(#$%()*$(*$3"*J")"&$9*+(#*$3"*

people of Wales. Targeting our work where it makes greatest impact and 

seeking new ways to derive robust assurance from other existing and 

complementary sources will continue to be my aim.

As we turn to the focus of our work for future years, my analysis of key 

risks and opportunities facing public bodies underpins my plans for the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H*P*K%66*'69(*!()$%)."*$(*M"0*(.#*1#(,#'55"*$(*#"M"!$*

changing risks and opportunities. In all our activities, I am determined 

(.#*K(#O*K%66*+.6&6*57*(J6%,'$%()*$(*$3"*1"(16"*(+*G'6"9*$(*1#(A%/"*$3"5*

with independent robust information on how their money is spent. We 

K%66*1#(5($"*,((/*,(A"#)')!"B*9$#(),*&)')!%'6*/%9!%16%)"*')/*!()$%).%),*

%51#(A"5")$*%)*9"#A%!"*L.'6%$7*"A")*%)*$3"9"*/%+&!.6$*$%5"9H*>)/*K"*K%66*

apply the same rigorous standards to our own work.

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General for Wales

31 August 2011

Page 5



6         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11 Page 6



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         7

9   About us   

 

13  Our work this year

35  Future focus for our work

39  Our organisation

49  Financial review

55  Statements of accounts

66   ?"#$%&!'$"*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*

General for Scotland to the  

National Assembly for Wales

93   Report of the Auditor 

General for Scotland to the  

National Assembly for Wales

Contents 

Page 7



8         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11 Page 8



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         9Page 9



10         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

The Auditor General and the 

auditors he appoints in local 

government are the statutory 

external auditors of most of the 

Welsh public sector. They are 

responsible for the annual audit of 

the majority of public money spent 

in Wales, including the  

£14 billion of funds that are 

voted to Wales annually by the 

Westminster Parliament. Elements 

of this funding are passed by the 

Welsh Government to the NHS in 

Wales (over £5 billion) and to local 

government (nearly £4 billion).

The Auditor General and his staff 

together form the Wales Audit 

E+&!"B*K3%!3*K'9*"9$'J6%93"/*%)*

April 2005. The Auditor General 

%9*$3"*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#*+(#*

$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*%9*

personally responsible for its overall 

organisation, management and 

9$'+&),*'9*K"66*'9*%$9*1#(!"/.#"9*

%)*#"6'$%()*$(*&)')!%'6*')/*($3"#*

matters.

F3"*9$'++*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*

deliver approximately two-thirds 

of our annual audit work. The 

remainder of our work is contracted 

out by the Auditor General to 

1#%A'$"*9"!$(#*'!!(.)$')!7*&#59*

(currently these are Grant Thornton 

UK LLP, KPMG Europe LLP, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, UHY 

;'!O"#*Q(.),B*R@E*=$(7*;'7K'#/*

and Mazars). 

Making 
0(1#*/&
money 
/2(3+

About us

Page 10



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         11

What we do

The aim of external audit is to hold public service providers to account, 

provide insight into how they are working and help them to improve. In 

.)/"#$'O%),*(.#*K(#OB*K"*'%5*$(*')9K"#*$3#""*5'%)*L."9$%()9S

T* ;(K*'#"*1.J6%!*9"#A%!"9*1"#+(#5%),B*J($3*&)')!%'667*')/*(1"#'$%()'667U

T* G3'$*'#"*$3"*+'!$(#9*$3'$*93'1"*$3'$*1"#+(#5')!"U

T* G3'$*!')*9"#A%!"*1#(A%/"#9*/(*$(*%51#(A"U

The Auditor General has issued a Code of Practice. It prescribes the 

way in which auditors of local government bodies are to carry out their 

functions, and embodies best professional practice. The Auditor General 

has voluntarily expanded and adopted this code so that it also applies to 

his audit work in health and central government.

Our main objective is to help make the most of public money – ‘making 

1.J6%!*5()"7*!(.)$8H*I(.#*1#%)!%16"9*.)/"#1%)*(.#*K(#OH*R"%),S*

T* 1.J6%!*+(!.9"/V

T* %)/"1")/")$V

T* 1#(1(#$%()'$"*W1#(A%/%),*N.9$*$3"*6"A"6*(+*'./%$*$3'$*%9*)""/"/XV*')/*

T* '!!(.)$'J6"

Who we work with

Our role is to provide independent 

assurance that public money 

%9*J"%),*91")$*%)*1"(16"89*J"9$*

%)$"#"9$9H*G"*K(#O*K%$3S

T** F3"*1"(16"*(+*G'6"9

T** F3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J67B*!3%"M7*

through its Public Accounts 

Committee

T* F3"*G"693*:(A"#)5")$

T** Y.J6%!*9"#A%!"*1#(A%/"#9*%)*

Wales and their representative 

bodies

Page 11



12         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11 Page 12



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         13Page 13



14         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Financial audit

F3"*+(!.9*(+*(.#*&)')!%'6*'./%$*K(#O*%9*'./%$%),*

accounts and providing assurance to the public about 

the stewardship of public money. We thoroughly 

examine accounting and other records and provide  

')*4(1%)%()8*()*$3"*'!!.#'!7*(+*$3"*'!!(.)$9H* 

In 2010-11, the Auditor General and his appointed 

auditors issued reports on the accounts of 

approximately 840 public bodies in Wales. These 

included the Welsh Government and its sponsored 

bodies, NHS trusts and local health boards, councils, 

&#"*')/*#"9!."*'.$3(#%$%"9B*)'$%()'6*1'#O*'.$3(#%$%"9B*

police and probation authorities and trusts, pension 

funds and community councils.

I%)')!%'6*'./%$*#"1(#$9*%)!6./"*'*+(#5'6*(1%)%()*()S

T* K3"$3"#*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*,%A"*'*$#."*')/*

fair view of, or present fairly, the income and 

"01")/%$.#"*')/*$3"*9$'$"*(+*&)')!%'6*'++'%#9*(+*$3"*

J(/7V

T* K3"$3"#*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*3'A"*J"")*

prepared properly in accordance with relevant 

6",%96'$%()B*/%#"!$%()9*')/*'!!(.)$%),*9$')/'#/9V*

and

T* $3"*#",.6'#%$7*(+*$3"*$#')9'!$%()9B*'$*J(/%"9*K3"#"*

$3%9*%9*#"L.%#"/H

4"/5&6$"78&9$&)$#*:$7&"&172")&

"3)&:"7*$)&072;7"<<$&2-&

$=+$73"#&"()*+&927>?&@+&*3/#()$%&

"()*+%&2-&"//2(3+%8&:"#($&-27&

money examinations and 

%+()*$%8&#2/"#&;2:$73<$3+&

"%%$%%<$3+%8&/$7+*./"+*23&

2-&;7"3+&/#"*<%8&"3+*A-7"()&

$=$7/*%$%&"3)&;7"3+*3;&

"0072:"#%&+2&+5$&!$#%5&

B2:$73<$3+&+2&)7"9&)293&

funds.

@3&+5*%&%$/+*238&9$&072:*)$&

an outline of the audit work 

9$&)$#*:$7$)&#"%+&6$"7&"3)&

5*;5#*;5+&%2<$&2-&+5$&*<0"/+&

that it has had.

Our work this year

Page 14



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         15

The most obvious public impact of the work of the 

&)')!%'6*'./%$(#*%9*K3")*$3%),9*,(*K#(),B*6"'/%),*$3"*

'./%$(#*$(*%99."*'*4L.'6%&"/*(1%)%()8*()*$3"*'!!(.)$9H*

=.!3*"A")$9*'#"*.)!(55()H*@%+&!.6$*')/*!()$")$%(.9*

issues are avoided by early engagement between 

management and auditors – making our impact less 

(JA%(.9*J.$*)(*6"99*9%,)%&!')$H

P)*Z[\[-\\B*K"*/%/*)($*)""/*$(*L.'6%+7*')7*'./%$*

(1%)%()9*$(*#"M"!$*%)!(##"!$*'!!(.)$%),*1#'!$%!"*J7*

public bodies in Wales. However, auditors often 

9.,,"9$"/*'5")/5")$9*$(*J(/%"98*/#'+$*'!!(.)$9B*

to ensure they were presented correctly, and made 

many recommendations for improvement to those 

responsible for the management and oversight of those 

bodies. This year we have also made some statutory 

#"!(55")/'$%()9*')/*#"91()/"/*/%#"!$67*$(*"6"!$(#98*

L."9$%()9*')/*($3"#*%)+(#5'$%()*J#(.,3$*$(*$3"*'$$")$%()*

of the auditor. 

<"K*'!!(.)$%),*')/*/%9!6(9.#"*#"L.%#"5")$9*.)/"#*

International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

%)$#(/.!$%()*(+*4!6'#%&"/8*P)$"#)'$%()'6*=$')/'#/9*()*

Auditing are continuing to put increased pressure on 

auditor workloads. We continue to mitigate the impact 

()*'./%$"/*J(/%"9*J7*K(#O%),*5(#"*"+&!%")$67B*#'$3"#*

than raising our fees.

P+*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*%)*$3"*1.J6%!*9"!$(#*%9*$(*

%51#(A"B*$3"#"*%9*'*)""/*$(*#"1(#$*&)')!%'6*#"9.6$9*'9*

soon as possible during the year and after the year 

")/H*F3%9*3"619*1.J6%!*J(/%"9*$(*'!$*L.%!O67*$(*%51#(A"*

resource management, decision making and risk 

management. Exhibit 1 shows how we have achieved 

')/*9.9$'%)"/*5(#"*$%5"67*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),*()*$3"*

'!!(.)$9*(+*$3"*G"693*:(A"#)5")$*(A"#*$3"*6'9$*&A"*

years.

15 November

16 October

15 September

15 August

15 July

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

D
a

te
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
o

r 
G

e
n

e
ra

l

Accounts of the Welsh Government

Exhibit 1  @<072:$<$3+%&*3&+5$&+*<$#*3$%%&2-&2(7&.3"3/*"#&7$027+*3;&23&+5$

& &&&"//2(3+%&2-&+5$&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+

Page 15



16         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Performance audit

National reports

@.#%),*Z[\[-\\B*K"*1.J6%93"/*\Z*)'$%()'6*#"1(#$9*

which looked at value for money in key areas of public 

91")/%),B*(+$")*+#(5*'*4K3(6"-979$"58*(#*4!#(99-!.$$%),8*

perspective, where public spending is examined 

irrespective of who delivers the services. This included 

looking at service delivery across the Wales-England 

border, where appropriate.

The work we did and the impact of three of these 

reports is described in the following section.

F3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J6789*Y.J6%!*>!!(.)$9*?(55%$$""*

examined our reports as part of its role of ensuring 

that proper and thorough scrutiny is given to Welsh 

:(A"#)5")$*"01")/%$.#"H*F3"*!(55%$$""*5'/"*91"!%&!*

%)L.%#%"9*%)$(*%99."9*(+*%)$"#"9$*(#*!()!"#)*'#%9%),*+#(5*

our reports and reported and made recommendations 

()*%$9*&)/%),9H

Our work this year

Page 16



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         17

This report highlighted the increasing cost of recent major transport 

1#(N"!$9*%)*G'6"9H*P)*1'#$%!.6'#B*$3"*#"1(#$*1(%)$"/*$(*$3"*]^_Z*5%66%()*&)'6*

cost of 18 projects completed between 2004 and 2010, compared with 

"'#6%"#*"9$%5'$"9*(+*]C``*5%66%()H*P$*'69(*3%,36%,3$"/*$3"*9%,)%&!')$*!(9$*(+*

some of the projects planned for the rest of this decade, such as the A465 

Heads of the Valleys Improvement.

F3"*#"1(#$*"0'5%)"/*$3"*G"693*:(A"#)5")$89*1#(!"/.#"9*+(#*5')',%),*

1#(N"!$9*.)/"#*%$9*/%#"!$*!()$#(6B*91"!%&!'667*$3(9"*1#(N"!$9*()*$3" Trunk 

Road Forward Programme. It also considered the way in which the Welsh 

Government has, since 2001-02, overseen the delivery of local authority 

managed major projects supported by its Transport Grant. The report 

made extensive use of case study material to highlight the common 

issues affecting project delivery, including extra measures to mitigate 

environmental impact, unforeseen work and higher-than-expected cost 

%)M'$%()H

The report generated a lot of media interest and was warmly welcomed by 

$3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J6789*Y.J6%!*>!!(.)$9*?(55%$$""H

Major Transport Projects

In his written 
"3)&:$71"#&
$:*)$3/$&+2&+5$&
C(1#*/&'//2(3+%&
Committee the 
+5$3&'/+*3;&
D*7$/+27&B$3$7"#&
-27&4/232<6&"3)&
Transport at the 
!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+&
)$%/7*1$)&
the report as 
E/2<07$5$3%*:$F&
and one ‘from 
95*/5&9$&/"3&#$"73&
lessons in relation 
to hundreds of 
<*##*23%&2-&02(3)%F&
927+5&2-&0(1#*/&
%$/+27&$=0$3)*+(7$F?

Page 17



18         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

This study found that, although there had been 

improvements to the schools estate, there was a long 

K'7*$(*,(*J"+(#"*'66*9!3((69*%)*G'6"9*K(.6/*J"*&$*+(#*

purpose. The report made recommendations to the 

Welsh Government, the Welsh Local Government 

Association (WLGA) and to local authorities. It 

indicated how they could improve value for money from 

the increasingly limited capital available to invest in 

school buildings. 

Our report said that, before 2009, the Welsh 

:(A"#)5")$89*+.)/%),*$(*%51#(A"*9!3((6*J.%6/%),9*K'9*

)($*$'#,"$"/*K"66*")(.,3B*K%$3*%)9.+&!%")$*%)+(#5'$%()*

to determine priorities and too little evaluation of the 

J")"&$9*(+*"'#6%"#*%)A"9$5")$H*F3"*!()!"1$*(+*4&$)"99*

+(#*1.#1(9"8*3'/*'69(*)($*J"")*/"&)"/*!6"'#67B*9(*

local authorities were uncertain about how much they 

needed to spend. Since 2009, joint work between 

the Welsh Government and the WLGA had begun to 

strengthen the planning and management of capital 

investment in schools. 

We presented the report to the National Assembly, 

')/*%$9*Y.J6%!*>!!(.)$9*?(55%$$""*3"6/*')*%)L.%#7*

which took evidence from senior Welsh Government 

(+&!%'69*')/*#"1(#$"/*%)*@"!"5J"#*Z[\[B*5'O%),*

further recommendations. We will monitor the Welsh 

:(A"#)5")$89*#"91()9"*$(*$3"9"*#"!(55")/'$%()9H*

Capital Investment in Schools

Our work this year

Page 18



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         19

This report was based on local audits at each of the 

seven health boards and the Velindre NHS Trust. 

We examined all aspects of catering and nutrition 

for patients, from planning and production of meals, 

through to serving food to patients on the ward, at a 

sample of wards in every major hospital in Wales. We 

also collected the views of some 700 patients to inform 

(.#*&)/%),9H*G"*+(.)/*$3'$*G"693*3(91%$'69*3'/*5'/"*

some important improvements to their catering services 

since 2002 and that overall patient satisfaction with 

hospital food remains high.

However, we found that there are problems with the 

K'7*1'$%")$98*/%"$'#7*)""/9*'#"*%/")$%&"/*')/*K%$3*$3"*

nutritional assessment of menus. We also found that 

some patients who need help to eat do not always 

#"!"%A"*%$H*E.#*#"1(#$*%/")$%&"/*$3"*)""/*+(#*'*!6"'#"#*

focus on service costs and action to reduce the 

unacceptably high levels of food waste on some wards. 

We have highlighted what the Welsh Government 

and NHS bodies need to do and are helping them to 

develop materials to inform patients about what they 

can reasonably expect from hospital catering and 

patient nutrition services. Our checklist for NHS board 

members is helping them to strengthen assurance and 

monitoring processes and we will be supporting the 

spread of good practice by holding a shared learning 

event later this year for key groups of staff from across 

the NHS.

Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition

Page 19



20         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 came 

6'#,"67*%)$(*+(#!"*%)*>1#%6*Z[\[H*P$*#"L.%#"9*$3"*>./%$(#*

:")"#'6*$(*!'##7*(.$*')*4%51#(A"5")$*'99"995")$8*

'$*"'!3*!(.)$7*')/*!(.)$7*J(#(.,3*!(.)!%6B*&#"*')/*

rescue authority and national park authority every 

year. This work includes an audit of whether the 

authority has discharged its improvement planning and 

performance reporting duties. 

Our new approach to performance audit is 

underpinned by a greater focus on assessing how 

authorities are planning and working to improve 

outcomes for the public. We have introduced a more 

consistent assessment framework that allows a 

J"$$"#*.)/"#9$')/%),*(+*'.$3(#%$%"98*#"6'$%A"*9$#"),$39*

and weaknesses and facilitates comparisons where 

appropriate.

P)*$3"*&#9$*7"'#*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*)""/"/*$(*"9$'J6%93*

a general picture of the key aspects that support 

improvement in authorities. We undertook preliminary 

!(#1(#'$"*'99"995")$9*K%$3*'*+(!.9*()*"'!3*'.$3(#%$789*

improvement plan, its improvement objectives, and the 

'.$3(#%$789*J#('/"#*'##'),"5")$9*$(*3"61*%$*%51#(A"H*

We issued 28 reports between July and September 

Z[\[*K3%!3*1#(A%/"/*%)+(#5'$%()*'J(.$*$3"*'.$3(#%$%"98*

strengths or weaknesses in relation to their governance 

and management.

Local government 

improvement 

assessments

G72<&2(7&/27027"+$&"%%$%%<$3+%&9$&

072)(/$)&"&17*$.3;&0"0$7&+5"+&;":$&"3&

"##A!"#$%&0$7%0$/+*:$&23&529&/2(3/*#%&

9$7$&7$%023)*3;&+2&+5$&/(77$3+&

.3"3/*"#&/5"##$3;$%?&H5$&17*$.3;&

/23+"*3$)&IJ&%527+&/"%$&%+()*$%&+2&

5*;5#*;5+&$="<0#$%&2-&;22)&07"/+*/$&

that might be of interest to other 

authorities.

H5$&>$6&<$%%";$%&-72<&+5$&"##A!"#$%&

17*$.3;&0"0$7&9$7$K

L& <2%+&/2(3/*#%&"7$&<">*3;&

7$"%23"1#$&072;7$%%&9*+5&.3"3/*"#&

0#"33*3;&-27&1();$+&7$)(/+*23%&

1(+&"&<*327*+6&5":$&/23%*)$7"1#$&

progress to make; 

L& 927>-27/$&0#"33*3;&*%&

(3)$7)$:$#20$)&"3)&7$07$%$3+%&"&

<"M27&7*%>&"%&/2(3/*#%&7$)(/$&%+"--&

3(<1$7%&9*+52(+&"&9$##A$:*)$3/$)&

%+7"+$;*/&"0072"/5N&

L& /2##"127"+*23&*%&;"+5$7*3;&0"/$&

*3&7$%023%$&+2&+5$&.3"3/*"#&

/5"##$3;$%8&1(+&+5$7$&*%&"&#"/>&2-&

$:*)$3/$&"12(+&/2%+&"3)&+5$&*<0"/+&

-27&/*+*O$3%N&"3)&

L& /2(3/*#%&;$3$7"##6&)2&32+&6$+&

5":$&+5$&0$7-27<"3/$&*3-27<"+*23&

they need to help understand and 

<"3";$&+5$&*<0"/+&2-&7$)(/$)&

-(3)*3;&23&/*+*O$3%?

Our work this year

Page 20



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         21

P)*$3"*&#9$*7"'#B*K"*'69(*/%/*9(5"*1"#+(#5')!"*

assessment work at each authority to establish a 

baseline to help us assess future improvement. The 

Auditor General published 28 annual improvement 

reports, written for the public, that included summaries 

of all relevant work by other inspectorates and 

regulators. 

We continue to carry out corporate and performance 

assessment work throughout the year feeding back 

&)/%),9*$(*"'!3*'.$3(#%$7*'9*K(#O*%9*!(516"$"/H*

In early 2011, the Auditor General consulted with 

local government on proposals for moving to a more 

proportionate, risk-based programme of work. Our 

future work will be locally tailored and designed 

K%$3%)*'*!(55()*+#'5"K(#OB*$(*'//#"99*!()!"#)9B*&66*

gaps in information and look at areas that authorities 

particularly want reviewed. The Auditor General is also 

keen to encourage greater peer involvement in our 

assessments. His aim is that robust self-assessment 

and external scrutiny should make complementary 

contributions to the overall picture, and he will be 

discussing how this can be achieved with the Welsh 

Local Government Association and others.

Page 21



22         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Our 2009 corporate governance inspection at the Isle 

of Anglesey County Council found that the Council had 

a long history of not being properly run which left it 

poorly placed to meet future challenges. The Minister 

for Local Government and Social Justice appointed 

')*P)$"#%5*a')',%),*@%#"!$(#*$(*6"'/*$3"*?(.)!%689*

9$'++*')/*'*b"!(A"#7*R('#/*$(*(A"#9""*$3"*?(.)!%689*

implementation of the recommendations of the 

inspection report. 

Between October 2009 and late 2010, the Council 

made some progress. However, after further political 

%)9$'J%6%$7B*()*\`*I"J#.'#7*Z[\\*$3"*a%)%9$"#*#"L."9$"/*

that the Auditor General should conduct a further 

%)91"!$%()H*>)*"01"#%")!"/*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*$"'5*

that included the Auditor General himself and a peer 

assessor undertook the inspection and published 

their report on 16 March 2011, exactly one month 

'+$"#*$3"*a%)%9$"#89*#"L."9$H*F3"*#"1(#$*!()!6./"/*

$3'$*G"693*a%)%9$"#98*%)$"#A")$%()*%)*Z[[_*3'/*)($*

succeeded in producing a sustainable recovery from 

$3"*P96"*(+*>),6"9"7*?(.)$7*?(.)!%689*6(),*3%9$(#7*(+*

weak governance, and that stronger intervention was 

necessary. 

Welsh Ministers accepted our recommendations and 

'11(%)$"/*&A"*!(55%99%()"#9*$(*K3(5*$3"*?(.)!%689*

executive functions were transferred. They were in 

place and at work in Anglesey by 4 April 2011. It is too 

early to tell whether this further intervention will lead to 

sustainable change that enables the Council to function 

effectively under the leadership of its elected members, 

but we continue to monitor and report on progress.

Corporate Governance Special Inspection, 

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Our work this year

Page 22



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         23

In recent years we have developed a more 

streamlined scrutiny system for police authorities by 

K(#O%),*$(,"$3"#*K%$3*;"#*a'N"9$789*P)91"!$(#'$"*(+*

Constabulary (HMIC) to co-ordinate our work more 

effectively. 

In July 2010, the Audit Commission, HMIC and 

$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*1.J6%93"/*'*N(%)$*#"1(#$*()*

Sustaining Value for Money in the Police Service, 

K3%!3*!(A"#"/*D),6')/*')/*G'6"9H*G"*9.J9"L.")$67*

produced an all-Wales report which highlighted areas 

where Welsh police authorities could make savings 

such as better workforce deployment, changing the 

workforce mix and reducing management costs. We 

also helped to produce a range of self-assessment 

tools designed to help police services to improve value 

for money without adversely affecting public safety. 

We are continuing to work with HMIC and looking to 

provide assurance that transitional arrangements for 

the new police accountability structures run smoothly. 

Police authority audit 

Page 23



24         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

The work on Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition 

mentioned earlier was part of a full programme of local 

performance audit work at health boards and NHS 

trusts in Wales. 

@.#%),*Z[\[B*'./%$(#9*!'##%"/*(.$*49$#.!$.#"/*

'99"995")$98*(+*<;=*J(/%"98*'##'),"5")$9*$(*9"!.#"*

"+&!%")$B*"++"!$%A"*')/*"!()(5%!'6*.9"*(+*#"9(.#!"9H*

G"*"0'5%)"/*O"7*'91"!$9*(+*<;=*J(/%"98*,(A"#)')!"*

')/*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*')/*O"7*'!$%A%$%"9*9.!3*

as the development of strategic plans, workforce 

planning, partnership working and user engagement. 

We acknowledged the good progress most NHS bodies 

had made in developing their corporate governance 

arrangements following NHS re-organisation. We also 

highlighted the areas where more work was needed, 

most notably in developing robust service, workforce 

')/*&)')!%'6*16')9*$(*.)/"#1%)*$3"%#*(A"#'#!3%),*

&A"-7"'#*9$#'$",%!*16')H*E.#*K(#O*%)*Z[\\*K%66*#"A%"K*

the progress that is being made, linking explicitly 

K%$3*<;=*J(/%"98*9"6+-'99"995")$9*(+*,(A"#)')!"*

and accountability as part of the new standards for 

healthcare.

>)($3"#*9%,)%&!')$*1"#+(#5')!"*'./%$*"0'5%)"/*$3"*

%51'!$*(+*'5")/5")$9*5'/"*%)*Z[[C*$(*!()9.6$')$98*

contracts in Wales. We reviewed job planning 

arrangements for consultants and in most NHS 

(#,')%9'$%()9*K"*K"#"*'J6"*$(*3%,36%,3$*9%,)%&!')$*

opportunities for improvement. We will follow up 

1#(,#"99*')/*6'$"#*%)*Z[\\*K"*K%66*"0'5%)"*<;=*J(/%"98*

approaches to developing sound models of clinical 

leadership and engagement.

We also examined how effectively NHS bodies were 

using their operating theatre capacity and whether 

progress was being made in increasing day surgery 

rates. This work was undertaken in partnership 

with the Audit Commission, allowing us to compare 

performance in Wales with NHS trusts in England.  

At each NHS body, auditors also examined risks 

91"!%&!*$(*$3"*<;=*J(/%"9*%)*L."9$%()H*>*,((/*

example is our review of the arrangements to manage 

1#"9!#%J%),*%)*;7K"6*@/'*;"'6$3*R('#/H*F3%9*K(#O*

highlighted the need to do more to improve the safety 

and cost-effectiveness of prescribing practices at the 

interface of primary and secondary care. As well as 

providing a clear focus for improvement for the Health 

R('#/B*K"*3'A"*93'#"/*(.#*&)/%),9*K%$3*$3"*)'$%()'6*

programme board for medicines management so that 

messages from the audit can be shared more widely.

Local health work

Our work this year

Page 24



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         25

Grants and approvals

Grants are a key source of funding 

in Wales, particularly for local 

authorities. Since 2005, there have 

J"")*9%,)%&!')$*')/*K%/")%),*

differences between Wales and 

D),6')/*%)*,#')$9*1(6%!7V*%)*G'6"9B*

much more use is made of grants 

as a funding mechanism. 

All grant funding comes with 

91"!%&!*$"#59*')/*!()/%$%()9*$(*

help ensure that the funds are 

spent on the intended purpose. 

Non-compliance with conditions 

may result in grants having to be 

repaid, with a potential loss of future 

funding. 

P+*#"L."9$"/*$(*/(*9(B*$3"*>./%$(#*

General must make arrangements 

for certifying claims and returns in 

respect of grants paid or subsidies 

made to public service bodies. 

P)*Z[\[-\\B*K"*!"#$%&"/*Cc*6(!'6*

government schemes, worth some 

£2.8 billion and involving around 

800 individual claims. 

E.#*'./%$(#98*K(#O*1#(A%/"/*

independent assurance to both the 

awarding bodies and the recipient 

authorities that the grant funds 

provided were used correctly. We 

4L.'6%&"/8*(#*'/N.9$"/*WJ7*5(#"*

than £10,000) 40 per cent of these 

claims in 2010-11, generally as a 

result of a lack of robust evidence to 

support the claimed expenditure or 

because the claims were incorrectly 

compiled. 

For the Welsh Government and 

its sponsored bodies, we also 

!"#$%&"/*D.#(1"')*9$#.!$.#'6*+.)/9*

claims, with a total claim value of 

around £310 million for the year. 

As spending accelerates in the 

remaining years of the current 

European funding programme, both 

the number of claims and the value 

!"#$%&"/*K%66*%)!#"'9"*9%,)%&!')$67H

We look to support our audited 

bodies by helping them understand 

the often complex risks involved 

with grants, such as compliance 

with EU State Aid Regulations, 

and to improve their management 

and administration of the funds 

awarded. We have good links 

K%$3*$3"*G"693*:(A"#)5")$89*

new Centre of Excellence Team 

for better grants management 

and have run workshops across 

G'6"9*+(#*,#')$9*1#(N"!$*(+&!"#9H*

We have also developed a Grants 

Management module within the 

Good Practice Exchange section 

()*(.#*K"J9%$"S*$3%9*6((O9*'$*$3"*

whole grants lifecycle and brings 

together the differing perspectives 

of funders, bidders and recipients 

and their auditors.

In early 2011, the Auditor General 

consulted on his new strategy 

for more cost-effective external 

'./%$*!"#$%&!'$%()*(+*,#')$-+.)/"/*

expenditure throughout Wales. 

Certification of grant claims 

and returns

Page 25



26         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Granting of approvals 

to draw from the Welsh 

Consolidated Fund 

The Welsh Consolidated Fund (WCF) is the main 

conduit for the receipt and distribution of money for the 

Welsh public sector. The vast majority of the money 

paid into the fund is provided by the UK Government, 

as authorised by the Westminster Parliament. The 

>./%$(#*:")"#'689*'11#(A'6*%9*)""/"/*+(#*'66*1'75")$9*

out of the fund. This entails checking that proposed 

payments are in accordance with legislation and, where 

applicable, National Assembly budget motion authority. 

The sums of money involved are large – over £1 billion 

'*5()$3*/.#%),*Z[\[-\\*d*')/*'66*#"L."9$9*$(*/#'K*+#(5*

the WCF must be processed promptly and accurately. 

G"*%)A'#%'J67*1#(!"99*G?I*#"L."9$9*()*$3"*9'5"*/'7*

that they are received and deal with any discrepancies 

%)*#"L."9$9*'9*'*1#%(#%$7H

Our work this year

Page 26



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         27

Anti-fraud and other 

data matching exercises

P)*a'7*Z[\[B*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*1.J6%93"/*$3"*&)/%),9*

of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 2008-09. Every 

two years, data is matched across organisations 

and systems in order to help public bodies identify 

potentially fraudulent or erroneous claims and 

$#')9'!$%()9H*>66*.)%$'#7*'.$3(#%$%"9B*1(6%!"B*&#"*')/*

rescue and probation authorities and NHS bodies in 

Wales participated in NFI 2008-09, and the Welsh 

Government, the National Museums and Galleries of 

G'6"9*')/*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%$9"6+*'69(*1'#$%!%1'$"/*

on a voluntary basis.

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*#"1(#$*+(.)/*$3'$*$3"*<IP*#"9.6$"/*

in Welsh public bodies detecting and preventing fraud 

and error totalling almost £4.5 million. Since publication 

$3%9*&,.#"*3'9*#%9")*$(*]e*5%66%()H*F3"*+#'./9*%/")$%&"/*

%)!6./"/*+'69"*!6'%59*+(#*3(.9%),*J")"&$B*1.J6%!*9"!$(#*

pensions and council tax discounts. The exercise also 

resulted in the cancellation of 1,390 blue badge parking 

permits and 4,296 concessionary travel permits where 

there was no ongoing eligibility. The exercise resulted 

in 54 individuals being prosecuted for fraud offences.

The Auditor General recently released the data 

matches for NFI 2010-11 to participating Welsh public 

sector bodies, and these matches are currently being 

reviewed and investigated.  

P)*Z[\[B*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*#')*$3"*<'$%()'6*@.16%!'$"*

Registration Initiative across Wales. This exercise 

was aimed at identifying instances of patients being 

registered at more than one GP practice, people who 

had died but were still registered with an NHS practice 

and asylum seekers removed from the country still 

registered with an NHS practice. The NHS provides 

funding to GP practices based on the number 

of registered patients so removing inappropriate 

#",%9$#'$%()9*!')*6"'/*$(*9%,)%&!')$*9'A%),9H*F3"*#"A%"K*

and investigation of data matches by the Welsh NHS is 

ongoing.

The National Fraud 

Initiative 

National Duplicate 

Registration Initiative

Page 27



28         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Working with others to 

share learning

Following on from our landmark report, A Picture of 

Public Services, published in March 2010, the Wales 

>./%$*E+&!"*3'9*3'/*')*%)A(6A"5")$*%)*$3"*1')-1.J6%!*

sector !"#$%&'$()*'+),''-.*/%-')01-21*33&H*@.#%),*

2010-11, the Auditor General attended meetings of the 

D+&!%")!7*')/*P))(A'$%()*R('#/B*!3'%#"/*J7*$3"*a%)%9$"#*

for Business and Budget, to provide information to 

support real time discussions but, of course, standing 

back from any decision making. We also had staff 

representatives sitting in a similar capacity on each 

(+*$3"*9"A")*J('#/9*$3'$*6((O"/*'$*91"!%&!*'#"'9*$(*

improve services and cut costs. 

As the programme has developed, we have provided 

information to those leading the programme on 

avoiding the pitfalls that we and other audit agencies 

3'A"*%/")$%&"/*K%$3*6'#,"-9!'6"*"+&!%")!7*9'A%),9*

programmes, and we have also contributed to 

developing a more robust measurement framework for 

the programme.

This timely input, drawing on our audit evidence and 

experience, has helped to strengthen the programme 

and the potential impact it can have in enabling public 

services to manage with less. 

We have tailored some of our work to respond to 

the issues that are emerging from the programme. 

For example, we have aligned the focus of our Good 

Practice Exchange with the projects on managing staff 

9%!O)"99*'J9")!"*')/*%51#(A%),*$3"*")"#,7*"+&!%")!7*

of public buildings. 

We are conducting further research on the issues 

highlighted by our A Picture of Public Services report 

and the Auditor General will be publishing a follow-up 

later in 2011.

Engagement with the Efficiency 

and Innovation Programme 

Our work this year

Page 28



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         29

In September 2010, the Auditor General held an 

inaugural development day for the Audit Committee 

Chairs of the Welsh NHS bodies. The event focused 

on improving the effectiveness and contribution to 

good governance of these important committees. 

F3(9"*1#"9")$*K"#"*!3'66"),"/*$(*#"M"!$*()*3(K*K"66*

their own committees were performing and to explore 

common issues and challenges. Our staff facilitated the 

day, using case study material to prompt debate and to 

")!(.#',"*9"6+-#"M"!$%()H*

The event received excellent feedback from all 

participants and the Auditor General is committed to 

arranging further events. 

4:#"7*M""$8*%9*$3"*$"#5*.9"/*$(*#"+"#*$(*1#%A'$"*A"3%!6"9*

used by staff for business purposes. Each year, across 

$3"*G"693*1.J6%!*9"!$(#B*$3"*,#"7*M""$*$#'A"69*(A"#*\[[*

million miles at a cost of over £50 million, emitting over 

20,000 tonnes of CO
2
.

Recent legislation such as the Corporate Manslaughter 

>!$*#"L.%#"9*"516(7"#9*$(*/(*5(#"*$(*")9.#"*$3'$*'66*

staff are safe to drive and their vehicles are roadworthy 

and insured for business use. 

We held our Grey Fleet Seminar in October 2010, 

providing information from our wealth of experience 

from across the Welsh public sector on practical 

and proven ways to reduce costs, whilst securing 

")A%#()5")$'6*')/*3"'6$3*')/*9'+"$7*J")"&$9H*

The seminar highlighted examples of good practice and 

'66(K"/*$%5"*$(*/%9!.99*')/*93'#"*6"'#)%),H*@"6",'$"9*

took away practical ideas on how to reduce costs and 

carbon emissions and also increase the safety of staff. 

NHS Audit 

Committee Chairs’ 

Development Day 

Grey Fleet Seminar

EH5$&952#$&%$<*3"7&9"%&7$"##6&(%$-(#8&

+5$&%0$">$7%&9$7$&-"3+"%+*/&"3)&/2:$7$)&

$:$76+5*3;&*3&+5$*7&+"#>%8&;":$&%(;;$%+*23%&

"3)&*)$"%&-27&%2#(+*23%&P&17*##*"3+?F

EC7$%$3+"+*23%&9$7$&M"7;23&-7$$8&9*+5&

simple easy to understand information 

"3)&;(*)"3/$?F

Q(2+$%&-72<&B7$6&G#$$+&/23-$7$3/$&

delegates

Page 29



30         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

E)"*(+*$3"*5"$3(/9*J7*K3%!3*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*1#(5($"9*

%51#(A"5")$*%)*1.J6%!*9"#A%!"9*%9*$3#(.,3*$3"*%/")$%&!'$%()*')/*$#')9+"#*

of good practice. Our Good Practice Exchange (GPX) is a web-based 

resource, freely available to anyone. We also deliver targeted face-to-

face activities, typically shared learning seminars, which enable the rapid 

exchange of knowledge and learning between people from across the 

public services.

@.#%),*Z[\[-\\B*(.#*K(#O*K'9*6'#,"67*+(!.9"/*()*.1,#'/%),*$3"*!()$")$*

of the GPX, including the addition of case studies from our study work. 

F3"*!'9"*9$./%"9*'#"*$3"*5(9$*+#"L.")$67*A%9%$"/*'#"'*(+*$3"*:YfH*E.#*

good practice work is enhanced by our involvement in goodpracticewales.

com, a web portal which acts as a single access point to search the 

websites of member organisations. These include the National Leadership 

and Innovation Agency for Healthcare, the Welsh Local Government 

Association, Public Service Management Wales and the Social Services 

Improvement Agency. We have taken a key role as a founder member in 

developing this website, which is gaining prominence across Welsh public 

services as a knowledge sharing facility. 

F3"*4$%5"67*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),8*1',"9*(+*:Yf*K"#"*'69(*6'.)!3"/*

during 2010-11 with a focus on supporting improvements in resource 

management, decision making and risk management as well as supporting 

1.J6%!*J(/%"9*%)*$3"%#*#"91()9"*$(*6",%96'$%()*K3%!3*J#%),9*+(#K'#/*&)')!%'6*

reporting deadlines. 

Identification and transfer  

of good practice

The Good Practice Exchange

Y Gyfnewidfa Arfer Da

Our work this year

Page 30



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         31

We are committed to working with 

and building on the existing  

co-operation between the UK 

national audit agencies to enhance 

$3"*"+&!%")!7*')/*"++"!$%A")"99*(+*

public audit, to provide a strategic 

focus on issues cutting across 

our work and to develop broadly 

consistent approaches to public 

audit. We work with colleagues 

at Audit Scotland, the Northern 

P#"6')/*>./%$*E+&!"B*$3"*>./%$*

Commission and the National 

>./%$*E+&!"*()*N(%)$*1#(N"!$9*')/*$(*

share information and knowledge. 

For example, we work with other 

UK audit agencies to review each 

($3"#98*&)')!%'6*'./%$*K(#O*')/*

performance audit reports as part of 

(.#*L.'6%$7*'99.#')!"*'11#('!3H*

We also work closely with the main 

inspection and regulatory bodies in 

Wales, and on 25 March 2011, the 

Auditor General signed a strategic 

agreement to enhance joint 

working. 

The four signatory bodies – Care 

and Social Services Inspectorate 

Wales, Estyn, Healthcare 

Inspectorate Wales and the Wales 

>./%$*E+&!"*d*'69(*6'.)!3"/*'*N(%)$*

paper on inspection, audit and 

regulation. 

The paper Developing our work 

together in a climate of change 

outlines how the four organisations 

are making progress in  

co-ordinating and where 

appropriate, jointly delivering  

their work. 

The paper recognises the strength 

')/*J")"&$9*(+*!(66'J(#'$%()*

to date and notes some recent 

developments. These include 

the appointment of joint project 

staff to support the development 

of joint working between the four 

organisations, and strengthened 

information sharing processes.

The strategic agreement 

demonstrates the commitment 

of all of the inspection, audit and 

regulation bodies to further develop 

the joint working arrangements 

already in place and to collaborate 

5(#"*"++"!$%A"67*')/*"+&!%")$67*%)*

the future. The agreement is part 

of a framework of joint working 

activities that is being developed 

by the four organisations. The aims 

of this work are to support better 

co-ordination of external review 

activity and to develop further the 

existing arrangements for sharing 

knowledge and information. 

Joint  

working

Page 31



32         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

From time to time we represent Wales on the international stage in relation 

$(*(.#*K(#OH*F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%9*"9$'J6%93"/*'9*'*!#"/%J6"*1.J6%!*

sector audit agency with skills that are transferable to other countries. 

Our international work also provides the opportunity to develop our 

O)(K6"/,"*(+*'!!(.)$')!7*')/*'./%$*$"!3)%L."9*')/*'!L.%#"*9O%669*$3'$*'#"*

necessary to deliver our work. But, we are mindful that all such activities 

93(.6/*9.11(#$*(.#*J.9%)"99*9$#'$",7B*93(.6/*J"*9"6+-&)')!%),*')/*93(.6/*

not be undertaken to the detriment of our core audit work in Wales.

@.#%),*$3"*7"'#*/"6",'$%()9*+#(5*'*).5J"#*(+*(A"#9"'9*1.J6%!*9"!$(#*

")$%$%"9*A%9%$"/*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%)*(#/"#*$(*6"'#)*'J(.$*,(A"#)')!"*

arrangements in Wales and our approach to public audit and gave us an 

opportunity to learn from them. 

Accounting and auditing standards are now organised on a global basis. 

@.#%),*Z[\[-\\B*K"*#"91()/"/*$(*9"A")*!()9.6$'$%()9*()*$3(9"*9$')/'#/9B*

helping to shape the future development of both accountancy and public 

audit on the wider stage.

International work

Our work this year

Page 32



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         33

Responding to issues that have 

been brought to our attention

Correspondence from the public, 

elected representatives and others 

that raises concerns about public 

business can inform our work 

programme by identifying issues 

for further investigation.  It is our 

policy to respond to public concern 

promptly, in a fair, objective and 

professional manner.

F3"*Y.J6%!*P)$"#"9$*@%9!6(9.#"*>!$*

WYP@>X*!'5"*%)$(*+(#!"*%)*\__c*$(*

protect employees who want to 

raise a concern about something 

happening in work in a diligent 

5'))"#H*g)/"#*YP@>B*$3"*>./%$(#*

General and the auditors he 

appoints in local government are 

#"!(,)%9"/*'9*41#"9!#%J"/*1"#9()98*

who can receive disclosures from 

individuals employed by audited 

bodies in respect of the proper 

conduct of public business, value 

for money, fraud and corruption in 

relation to the provision of public 

services.

The Auditor General also reports 

to the Serious Organised Crime 

Agency any instance of dealings 

in the proceeds of crime (money 

laundering) that he or his staff 

encounter during the course of  

their work.

@3&R"7/5&STIT&9$&0(1#*%5$)&"3&"()*+&7$027+&23&C#"%&R")2/&

Communities First Partnership.

H5$&0"7+3$7%5*0&"+&C#"%&R")2/&9"%&"3&*3)$0$3)$3+&12)6&

7$/$*:*3;&;7"3+%&-72<&+5$&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+?&'&+5*7)&0"7+6&

7"*%$)&/23/$73%&"12(+&+5$&;2:$73"3/$&"3)&%+$9"7)%5*0&2-&+5$&

0"7+3$7%5*0&9*+5&+5$&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+8&"3)&%(1%$U($3+#6&

with the Auditor General. This resulted in a joint audit by the 

'()*+27&B$3$7"#&"3)&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+&*3+$73"#&"()*+?

H5$&"()*+&-2(3)&%*;3*./"3+&9$">3$%%$%&*3&;2:$73"3/$&

"77"3;$<$3+%&"%&9$##&"%&<"36&2//"%*23%&95$3&/23+7"/+%&

"3)&%$7:*/$%&5")&1$$3&072/(7$)&-72<&-7*$3)%&"3)&7$#"+*23%&

2-&+5$&/2A27)*3"+27?&C2#*/$&*3:$%+*;"+*23%&*3+2&+5$&"--"*7%&2-&

the partnership are ongoing but one person has already been 

/5"7;$)&9*+5&+5$-+&"3)&-7"()&"3)&+5$&/2A27)*3"+27&5"%&1$$3&

dismissed.

H5$&)*%/#2%(7$&+2&+5$&'()*+27&B$3$7"#&/"<$&"+&"&+*<$&95$3&+5$&

$--$/+*:$3$%%&2-&+5$&3"+*23"#&V2<<(3*+*$%&G*7%+&072;7"<<$&

9"%&1$*3;&%/7(+*3*%$)?&H5$7$&9$7$&/#$"7&#$%%23%&+2&1$&

#$"73$)&-72<&C#"%&R")2/&"3)&+5$&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+&5"%&

%*3/$&/2<0#$+$)&"3&$=+$3%*:$&072;7"<<$&2-&*3+$73"#&"()*+&

7$:*$9%&"+&2+5$7&072M$/+%&"/72%%&!"#$%&"%&9$##&"%&*<072:*3;&

<23*+27*3;&"3)&%/7(+*36&"77"3;$<$3+%&-27&0"7+3$7%5*0%?

@3&+5$&#*;5+&2-&2(7&927>&23&C#"%&R")2/8&+5$&!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+&

$3#*%+$)&+5$&$=0$7+*%$&2-&+5$&!"#$%&'()*+&,-./$&+2&072:*)$&

0"7+3$7%5*0%&"/72%%&!"#$%&9*+5&+5$&>329#$);$&"3)&;(*)"3/$&

+2&5$#0&07$:$3+&%(/5&*3%+"3/$%&2//(77*3;&*3&-(+(7$?&!$&

+5$7$-27$&)$%*;3$)&"3)&)$#*:$7$)&/27027"+$&;2:$73"3/$&

+7"*3*3;&+2&0"7+*$%&*3:2#:$)&*3&0"7+3$7%5*0%&(3)$7&+5$&

!$#%5&B2:$73<$3+F%&V2<<(3*+*$%&G*7%+&072;7"<<$?&H5$%$&

+7"*3*3;&%$%%*23%&5":$&7$/$*:$)&:$76&02%*+*:$&-$$)1"/>&-72<&

"++$3)$$%8&"3)&<27$&$:$3+%&"7$&0#"33$)&-27&STIIAIS?

Page 33



34         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11 Page 34



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         35Page 35



36         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Helping Wales meet its 

financial challenges

The considerable changes and 

tough choices that the Welsh 

public services face over the 

)"0$*&A"*7"'#9*'#"*9"$*K%$3%)*$3"*

!()$"0$*(+*$3"*G"693*:(A"#)5")$89*

determination to make delivery 

its prime focus throughout the 

term of the Fourth Assembly. 

This is the broad context in which 

we are developing the medium-

term approach to our work. Our 

diagnosis of the risks facing the 

G"693*1.J6%!*9"!$(#*'9*%$*9L.'#"9*

.1*$(*$3"*&)')!%'6*')/*/"6%A"#7*

challenges it faces will be more fully 

"016'%)"/*%)*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*

second Picture of Public Services 

report, which will be published this 

autumn. 

 

The funding pressures are clearly 

the major challenge for public 

services in Wales with all parts of 

the public service facing real terms 

!.$9H*@"A(6.$%()*J#%),9*/%++"#")$*

policy choices across the UK, 

and public spending in Wales is 

diverging from patterns across the 

rest of the UK. The Welsh NHS 

is being cut much more sharply 

than its UK counterparts. It faces 

major challenges to cut spending 

while continuing to deliver high 

L.'6%$7*9"#A%!"9*$(*1'$%")$9*')/*$3"%#*

families. It also faces rising demand 

and other cost pressures.

G"693*!(.)!%69*'69(*+'!"*9%,)%&!')$*

funding cuts, but not as severe as 

many expected. Nevertheless, the 

economic climate may well result 

in an increase in demand for their 

services from vulnerable groups at 

a time when available resources 

are declining. We will continue to 

provide robust analysis of local 

'.$3(#%$7*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*')/*

5"/%.5-$"#5*&)')!%'6*16'))%),B*

particularly through more locally 

focused improvement assessment 

work.

The Auditor General intends to 

produce periodic summarising 

#"1(#$9*()*$3"*&)')!"9*(+*<;=*

Wales and the results of our audit 

work across central government, 

and to work with appointed auditors 

to produce a similar report on our 

audit work across local government. 

This work will provide assurance 

$3'$*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*

arrangements stand up to scrutiny 

as public bodies respond to the 

&)')!%'6*!3'66"),"9*$3"7*!.##")$67*

face. 

We will also be seeking to help 

Wales make better use of grant 

funding, issuing reports later 

this year on grants management 

and on the roll-out of European 

funding. Alongside this work, we are 

continuing to develop robust and 

constructive relationships with audit 

!(55%$$""9*')/*&)')!"*+.)!$%()9*

across the Welsh public sector. We 

are also developing further good 

practice work on the faster closure 

of accounts and on more effective 

budgeting.

Future focus for our work

Page 36



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         37

Workforce issues 

for the Welsh public 

service

Managing risk 

and encouraging 

innovation in public 

service delivery

G%$3*9$'+&),*!(9$9*'!!(.)$%),*+(#*$3"*J.6O*(+*1.J6%!*

9"#A%!"98*!()$#(66'J6"*"01")/%$.#"B*$3"#"*3'9*%)"A%$'J67*

been a focus on job losses, recruitment freezes, and 

pay freezes to save money. The possible impact on 

the performance and morale of the workforce of such 

')*'11#('!3*%9*'69(*9%,)%&!')$H*D++"!$%A"*K(#O+(#!"*

planning, staff engagement and communication will be 

key areas of focus in our work so that we can support 

public bodies in mitigating risks of service failure.

Our focus will be on supporting decision makers in 

taking well-thought through risks and helping them 

to avoid an unduly risk-averse culture. There are a 

range of innovative and collaborative opportunities 

for public services to cut costs and improve services. 

We will continue to engage with efforts to help public 

9"#A%!"9*%51#(A"*"+&!%")!7*')/*6"'#)*+#(5*"'!3*($3"#*

to innovate and improve. 

One of the key risks will be to manage the impacts of 

short-term reductions in jobs and services to balance 

budgets. Our focus will be on supporting a collaborative 

approach to identifying and managing those risks. 

Without such an approach, there is a danger that 

service cuts in one place may simply displace demand 

and costs to another part of the public sector.  

We will also seek, where possible, to provide a view 

of how Wales compares with other parts of the UK, or 

!(.)$#%"9*+.#$3"#*'&"6/H

Page 37



38         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*3'9*'!3%"A"/*9%,)%&!')$* 

7"'#-()-7"'#*#"/.!$%()9*%)*$3"*+""9*$3'$*K"*'#"*#"L.%#"/*

$(*!3'#,"*$(*(.#*'./%$"/*J(/%"9B*$3#(.,3*"+&!%")!7*

improvements, by making cost savings and by taking 

a more proportionate approach to our work. The total 

reduction in fees for local government, NHS and 

central government audits, and for local government 

grant work between 2009 and 2011 was £1.27 million 

or 8.0 per cent (see Exhibit 2, where the 2010 total 

fees exclude those charged for six-month accounts of 

/"5%9"/*<;=*J(/%"9*+(66(K%),*#"!()&,.#'$%()XH

The Auditor General annually reviews and sets 

scales of fees for the audit of local government 

bodies, which are also applicable to the majority of 

'./%$9*(+*<;=*J(/%"9H*F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*+""*

scales are underpinned by a zero-based approach 

to audit planning and are benchmarked against the 

fees charged by other UK audit agencies, where 

appropriate. 

We are continuing to develop ways in which high levels 

of public assurance can be secured by placing reliance 

on robust review by others. Our updated programme 

of value for money studies (available on our website) 

shows how the Auditor General is consulting with a 

very wide range of stakeholders to ensure that the 

programme dovetails effectively with the work of other 

review bodies.  

Proportionate external audit 

work and reductions in 

annual audit fees 

£16m

£15.5m

£15m

£14.5m

2009 2010 2011

T
o

ta
l 
fe

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t,
 N

H
S

 

a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

u
d

it
s
 a

n
d

 

lo
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

t 
w

o
rk

 

Exhibit 2  G$$%&/5"7;$)&+2&"()*+$)&12)*$%&STTW&+2&STII

Future focus for our work

Page 38



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         39Page 39



40         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Our people

Our skilled and professional workforce is essential to 

1#(A%/%),*'*,((/*L.'6%$7*"0$"#)'6*'./%$*9"#A%!"*$(*$3"*

people of Wales.

At the 2010-11 year end, the Auditor General directly 

"516(7"/*Z^C*9$'++*WZZZ*K3(6"-$%5"*"L.%A'6")$9XH

Exhibit 3  !"#$%&'()*+&,-./$&%+"--&)$<2;7"05*/%

Exhibit 4 H(732:$7

80

60

70

90

50

20

30

40

10

0
21-30 years 31-40 years 41-50 years

Age

Male Female

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff

51-60 years 60 years or over

Year 2009-10 2010-11

H(732:$7 2.76% 12.36%1

X$":$7% 8 332

1   This compares to a median labour turnover rate of 8.5 per cent for those public

*****9"#A%!"*(#,')%9'$%()9*$3'$*#"91()/"/*$(*$3"*Z[\\*?PY@*')).'6*#"9(.#!%),*')/ 

     talent planning survey.

2  14 of these 33 members of staff left under a voluntary severance scheme that

     was open to all employees.

Our organisation

Page 40



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         41

Exhibit 5  '1%$3/$

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

2009-10 2010-11

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
 l
o

s
t 

p
e

r 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff

Public sector average (CIPD 2010 annual survey of absence managment trends)

Wales Audit Office short-term absence

Wales Audit Office long-term absence (periods of 21 days or more)

Absence and attendance 

management

An enhanced Attendance Management Policy has 

J"")*%)*(1"#'$%()*'$*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*$3#(.,3(.$* 

2010-11, following approval in March 2010. The main 

'%59*(+*$3"*1(6%!7*'#"S

T* $(*,%A"*!6"'#*,.%/"6%)"9*$(*9$'++*()*K3'$*$3"7*93(.6/*

/(*K3")*')*'J9")!"*(!!.#9V

T* $(*")9.#"*$3'$*'66*9$'++*'#"*$#"'$"/*+'%#67*')/*

!()9%9$")$67*K3")*$3"7*'#"*.)'J6"*$(*'$$")/*K(#OV*

and

T* $(*")!(.#',"*9$'++*$(*9""O*'11#(1#%'$"*5"/%!'6*

assistance and to contact our 24-hour Employee 

Assistance Programme.

We are pleased that the introduction of the policy has 

led to a reduction in the level of short-term sickness 

absence. There has been an increase in long-term 

sickness absence during the last year, primarily due 

to non-work-related conditions. The new policy has 

enabled us to provide more effective support to those 

staff.

Our Attendance Management Policy is complemented 

by our promotion of healthy living, our Stress in the 

Workplace and Flexible Working policies, and with 

training for staff on how to manage the symptoms of 

stress effectively. 

Page 41



42         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*'%59*$(*1#(5($"*/%A"#9%$7B*"L.'6*

opportunities and human rights, both as an employer 

and through his statutory functions. He seeks not 

()67*$(*+.6&6*#"6"A')$*9$'$.$(#7*(J6%,'$%()9B*J.$*'69(*$(*

encourage good practice so that current and potential 

employees are treated positively and consistently.

From May 2011, the Auditor General must comply with 

$3"*)"K*:")"#'6*Y.J6%!*="!$(#*DL.'6%$7*@.$7H*F3%9*

means that in planning and undertaking his work, the 

Auditor General must consider how that work can, 

amongst other things, help eliminate discrimination, 

'/A')!"*"L.'6%$7*(+*(11(#$.)%$7*')/*+(9$"#*,((/*

relations between people with protected characteristics. 

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*5.9$*'69(*!(5167*K%$3*$3"*=1"!%&!*

Y.J6%!*="!$(#*DL.'6%$7*@.$%"9H*G"*'#"*!.##")$67*

K(#O%),*$(*+.6&6*$3"9"*)"K*/.$%"9B*%)!6./%),*5'O%),*

arrangements for involving representatives of people 

with protected characteristics in the setting of our 

91"!%&!*"L.'6%$7*(JN"!$%A"9H

Similarly, the Auditor General fully supports the right 

of all people to be treated with dignity and respect at 

work and is committed to providing a work environment 

that values the diversity of all workers (both our own 

staff and those with whom we come into contact during 

our work) and is free from all forms of harassment and 

bullying. 

To raise both awareness and understanding of our 

Dignity at Work Policy amongst our staff, we conducted 

a series of externally facilitated workshops from 

November 2009 to May 2010 on dignity at work for 

'66*9$'++B*%)!6./%),*'66*5')',"#9H*>*91"!%'6*!()&/")$%'6*

support line was also established and promoted to all 

staff at the end of each training session. 

The provider of the support line has recently reported 

that the line has not been contacted between  

27 November 2009 when it was established and  

31 March 2011. Whilst this may suggest that there are 

no current or pressing issues relating to bullying and 

harassment, we will nonetheless continue to reinforce 

the message to all staff that bullying and harassment 

will not be tolerated.

Equality, diversity  

and dignity at work  

Our organisation

Page 42



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         43

We are committed to ensuring that the Wales Audit 

E+&!"*!()$%)."9*$(*J"*')*(#,')%9'$%()*$3'$*1"(16"*

are proud to work for, and to helping staff enjoy their 

work and to feel they can make a difference to public 

services. 

The Auditor General seeks to involve and consult with 

employees about a range of issues including terms and 

conditions, via the trades unions.

Staff surveys are a key part of understanding the views 

of staff and identifying what they believe we need to 

do to improve. We disseminated the results of our 

latest annual staff survey internally in July 2010. In 

$3'$*9.#A"7B*(.#*9$'++*%/")$%&"/*5')7*1(9%$%A"*'91"!$9*

'J(.$*K(#O%),*+(#*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H*F3"7*'69(*

%/")$%&"/*9(5"*!()$%).%),*%99."9*(+*!()!"#)*')/*

areas for improvement relating to work allocation and 

workload, corporate communications and performance 

management, which have been prioritised for further 

action. 

Staff engagement

Page 43



44         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

@.#%),*Z[\[-\\*K"*9.!!"99+.667*6'.)!3"/*(.#*,2'%/& 

staff development programme. ,2'%/& aims to provide 

9$'++*K%$3*3%,3*L.'6%$7*$#'%)%),*$(*")'J6"*$3"5*$(*/"A"6(1*

and enhance the skills and competencies they need to 

carry out their roles effectively.

F3"*&#9$*7"'#*(+*$3"*1#(,#'55"*%)!6./"/*'*6"'/"#93%1*

development programme which has been designed for 

$3(9"*9$'++*K3(*91")/*'*9%,)%&!')$*'5(.)$*(+*$3"%#*$%5"*

managing others.

The content of the leadership programme was 

%)M.")!"/*J7*'*#"+"#")!"*,#(.1*(+*9$'++*')/*$3")*

developed with support from a former Chief Executive 

of the UK National School of Government. It included a 

live case study exercise, working with charities or other 

third sector organisations. Fifty-seven staff participated 

in the leadership programme during 2010-11, and a 

very high proportion felt that it had met its objectives.

Alongside the leadership development programme, 

a range of other in-house and external training was 

provided to staff in 2010-11 to support their corporate 

and professional development needs. 

Learning and 

development

Our organisation

Page 44



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         45

Sustainable 

development

Sustainable development is about meeting the needs 

of the present without compromising the ability of 

future generations to meet their own needs. We are 

committed to embedding sustainable development in 

all of our audit work, and also in the way we ourselves 

work as an organisation. 

Over the past year, we have worked hard to embed 

sustainable development in the way we work, in a 

wide range of ways. Key areas of focus were reducing 

(.#*")A%#()5")$'6*%51'!$B*.)/"#$'O%),*')*"+&!%")!7*

review by challenging our existing ways of working and 

delivering a leadership programme which developed 

our staff whilst also making a positive impact on the 

wider community.

EX"%+&6$"78&+5$&!"#$%&'()*+&

,-./$&0(1#*%5$)&"3&*3Y($3+*"#&

report on what else we need 

+2&)2&+2&/23+*3($&+2&$<1$)&

%(%+"*3"1#$&)$:$#20<$3+&*3&

2(7&1(%*3$%%&)$/*%*23&<">*3;?&

'%&0"7+&2-&+5$&%/7(+*368&9$&

9"3+&+5$&!"#$%&'()*+&,-./$&

+2&/23+*3($&+2&%/7(+*3*%$&(%&

"/72%%&)$0"7+<$3+%&+2&$3%(7$&

we are up to mark here. We 

are keen as well that the Wales 

'()*+&,-./$&*%&"1#$&+2&$<1$)&

%(%+"*3"1#$&)$:$#20<$3+&*3&+5$&

9"6&+5"+&*+&/"77*$%&2(+&"##&*+%&

"()*+&927>&"/72%%&+5$&0(1#*/&

%$/+27&*3&!"#$%?F

4=+7"/+&-72<&R*3*%+$7*"#&"))7$%%&+2&

+5$&EZ*;&[(%+"*3"1*#*+6&[(<<*+F&*3&

X23)238&R"7/5&STII

Page 45



46         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

@.#%),*Z[\[-\\B*K"*5'/"*9%,)%&!')$*1#(,#"99*%)*

'!3%"A%),*(.#*")A%#()5")$'6*$'#,"$9S

T* E.#*.9"*(+*A%/"(!()+"#")!%),*%)!#"'9"/*J7* 

67 per cent. We also reduced our car journeys by 

136,325 miles and other types of travel by  

17,024 miles, exceeding our targets by some margin 

(the reduction in all business journeys also reduced 

the cost of travel and overnight accommodation by 

around £29,000).

T* G"*#"/.!"/*$'0%*N(.#)"79*J7*\\*1"#*!")$*%)*N.9$*()"*

7"'#B*"0!""/%),*(.#*%)%$%'6*$'#,"$*(+*&A"*1"#*!")$H*

T* G"*!()$%)."/*$(*'!3%"A"*'*7"'#-()-7"'#*/"!#"'9"*%)*

our paper use, with a 19 per cent reduction over this 

year. This was achieved mainly through reducing 

the number of paper invoices that we issued by 

around 80 per cent, reducing report print runs, and 

through the promotion of electronic record-keeping.

T* G"*+'%6"/*$(*'!3%"A"*(.#*$'#,"$*(+*'*$K(*1"#*!")$*

annual reduction in electricity use. Although we took 

measures to improve our use of energy resources, 

due to the extended period of cold weather in 

winter 2010, we used double the usual amount of 

"6"!$#%!%$7*%)*3"'$%),*(.#*(+&!"9*/.#%),*$3'$*1"#%(/H*

However, our overall total CO
2
 emissions still 

decreased by 71,828 kg when compared to the 

previous year.

T* G"*'!3%"A"/*#"-'!!#"/%$'$%()*'$*2"A"6*C*(+*$3"*

:#(.)/K(#O*G'6"9*:#"")*@#',()*D)A%#()5")$'6*

=$')/'#/*'$*'66*(+*(.#*1#%5'#7*(+&!"9*%)*#"!(,)%$%()*

of our environmental management system and 

procedures.

In February 2011 we conducted an internal recycling 

survey and held information sessions to help raise 

awareness, support our audit work, and make 

improvements such as promoting recycling more 

clearly.

Reducing our impact 

on the environment

Our organisation

Page 46



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         47

All public sector bodies, including the Wales Audit 

E+&!"B*+'!"*$3"*!3'66"),"*(+*!()$%).%),*$(*/"6%A"#*

the best possible services against a background of 

.)1#"!"/")$"/*1#"99.#"9*()*1.J6%!*&)')!"9H*G3%69$*K"*

3'A"*"0!""/"/*(.#*(A"#'66*"+&!%")!7*$'#,"$9*(A"#*$3"*

6'9$*&A"*7"'#9B*K"*!()$%)."/*$(*#"A%"K*(.#*"01")/%$.#"*

$3#(.,3*Z[\[-\\*')/*"9$'J6%93"/*')*%)$"#)'6*D+&!%")!7*

and Savings Review Group to accelerate our progress 

in this area.

The overall level of savings that we have achieved in 

Z[\[-\\*$3#(.,3*!(9$*#"/.!$%()*')/*,#"'$"#*"+&!%")!7* 

is over £1,000,000 (see Financial Review section). 

Efficiency and 

savings

F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*#"!(,)%9"9*$3"*J")"&$9*$3'$*

community and charity work by staff can bring to 

the wider community and applauds its staff for their 

individual efforts. Staff can apply the skills they have 

developed in the workplace and can develop new skills, 

whilst improving their morale, physical health and  

work-life balance.

=.JN"!$*$(*(1"#'$%()'6*#"L.%#"5")$9*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*

E+&!"*9.11(#$9*"516(7""9*K3(*K%93*$(*.)/"#$'O"*

community or charity activities such as community care 

work, environment work and conservation projects, 

fundraising for community projects and charities,  

and the administration of public events.

=$'++*'#"*'69(*'J6"*$(*1'#$%!%1'$"*%)*'*4,%A"*'9*7(.*"'#)8*

scheme, and held a number of internal events to raise 

cash for charity through the year.

Community and 

charity work

Page 47



48         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Our leadership development programme included a 

live case study exercise, working with a charity or other 

third sector organisation. The case studies typically 

included intensive service review and solving particular 

!3'66"),"9B*+(#*"0'516"B*1#(5($%),*$3"*(#,')%9'$%()89*

5%99%()*')/*9$'7%),*'M('$*%)*/%+&!.6$*"!()(5%!*$%5"9H*

In 2010-11, our ,2'%/& participants worked with Tai 

Y'KJB*')*(#,')%9'$%()*$3'$*1#(5($"9*"L.'6%$7*')/*

social justice in housing in Wales, the Welsh Refugee 

Council, Tenovus – the cancer charity – and the 

Pembrokeshire Association of Voluntary Services.

Working with the 

third sector

EH"*&C"91&)$7*:$)&;7$"+&:"#($&

-72<&+5$&5"7)&927>&/"77*$)&2(+&16&

senior managers at the Wales Audit 

,-./$8&"%&*+&9"%&;22)&+2&7$/$*:$&"&

-7$%5&0$7%0$/+*:$&-72<&2(+%*)$&+5$&

27;"3*%"+*23?F&

Tai Pawb Annual Report

‘We wanted to feed back as an organisation 

how much of a delight they were to work 

with – they were professional throughout, 

showed great skill in communicating with 

some of our clients who do not speak much 

English and demonstrated a real range of 

hard and soft skills. Whilst challenging 

!"#$%&$'&$()*+$,-,$'&.$()"&*$/,-!01%2($

questions’; their ability to capture the 

issues at the heart of the WRC was 

impressive. They worked on a real situation 

as we now face a one third cut in our 

budget from April 2011 of £720,000. They 

provided us with some real solutions and 

as I said it has made a real difference to 

us in our thinking about restructuring and 

refocusing the organisation.’ 

Chief Executive of the Welsh Refugee Council, 

in a note of thanks to the Auditor General

Our organisation

Page 48



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         49Page 49



50         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

F3"*K(#O*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%9*+.)/"/*+#(5*'*A'#%"$7*(+*9(.#!"9B*

%)!6./%),*&)')!%),*+#(5*$3"*G"693*?()9(6%/'$"/*I.)/*WG?IXB*'./%$*+""9*

"'#)"/*+#(5*'./%$"/*J(/%"9*')/*!()$#%J.$%()9*"'#)"/*+#(5*!()$#'!$(#*&#59H*

F3"*#"9.6$9*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*+(#*Z[\[-\\*'#"*9.55'#%9"/*'9*

+(66(K9S

F3"*(A"#'66*)"$*9.#16.9*,")"#'$"/*%)*$3"*7"'#*!')*J"*%/")$%&"/*+#(5*$3"*

'!!(.)$9*'9*+(66(K9S

Financial outcome

\FTTT

@3/2<$&"3)&.3"3/*3;

Audit and 

%)91"!$%()*+""9S*2(!'6*,(A"#)5")$ 13,391

                          NHS 4,181

                          Central government 1,604

WCF 5,047

Other income 258

24,481

Expenditure

Staff costs 16,086

Bought-in services 3,379

Other operating costs 2,993

Corporation tax 13

22,471

Surplus generated in year 2,010

Prior-year adjustments (1,336)

674

Payable to the WCF (629)

General fund balance as reported in  

2009-10 accounts (excluding impact of prior 

year adjustment)

117

B$3$7"#&-(3)&1"#"3/$&JI&R"7/5&STII 162

\FTTT

Finance from the WCF 5,074

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (3,037)

Impact of prior year adjustments for provisions (1,336)

Capital expenditure funded by WCF (27)

Net surplus generated in year 674

Financial review

Page 50



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         51

The main sources of funding during 2010-11 are  

93(K)*%)*$3"*+(66(K%),*!3'#$S*

F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*.9"9*$3"9"*+.)/9*$(*1'7*%$9*

staff and to provide the necessary support to enable 

those staff to undertake their work. The main areas 

of expenditure in the year are shown in the following 

!3'#$S

Funding Expenditure

WCF

Audit fees (Local government)

Audit fees (NHS)

Audit fees (Central government) 

Other

Staff costs

Bought-in services

Office costs

Other

Page 51



52         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

4-./*$3/6&"3)&%":*3;%

G3%69$*K"*3'A"*"0!""/"/*(.#*(A"#'66*"+&!%")!7*$'#,"$9*

(A"#*$3"*6'9$*&A"*7"'#9*K"*'69(*)""/"/*$(*5'O"*

9%,)%&!')$*#"/.!$%()9*$(*!(9$9*/.#%),*Z[\[-\\*$(*+.)/*

the impact of early retirement costs of previous years 

as noted above.

The overall level of savings over planned expenditure 

that we achieved in 2010-11 through cost reduction 

')/*,#"'$"#*"+&!%")!7*K'9*K"66*(A"#*]\B[[[B[[[H*F3%9*

covered a very wide range of areas, including part-

7"'#*9'A%),9*+#(5*6'9$*7"'#89*A(6.)$'#7*9"A"#')!"*

scheme and other staff cost savings of over £300,000 

(recurring), as well as further savings in training of 

over £80,000 (recurring), publishing and translation of 

over £75,000 (recurring) and ICT expenditure of over 

£335,000 (mostly deferred).  

As part of this work, we also reviewed our estate 

across Wales and are considering further changes to 

(.#*(+&!"*91'!"B*%)*!()9.6$'$%()*K%$3*9$'++B*$3'$*5'7*

7%"6/*+.$.#"*!(9$*"+&!%")!%"9H

'//2(3+"1*#*+6&+2&+5$&

National Assembly

As summarised in the Summary of Resource  

Out-turn, a cash sum of £629,000 is payable to 

the WCF. However, the Auditor General intends to 

#"L."9$*'.$3(#%$7*+#(5*$3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J67*$(*#"$'%)*

corresponding resource to contribute to the funding 

of the further voluntary severance scheme referred to 

above.

Commentary on reported 

results

All public sector bodies, including the Wales Audit 

E+&!"B*+'!"*!()9%/"#'J6"*&)')!%'6*1#"99.#"9*'$*1#"9")$*

'9*'*#"9.6$*(+*9%,)%&!')$*#"/.!$%()9*%)*!.##")$*')/*+.$.#"*

1.J6%!*9"!$(#*"01")/%$.#"H*F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%9*

working on a programme of reducing audit fees where 

possible in response to the pressures on its audited 

bodies.

>9*K'9*K%/"67*#"1(#$"/*%)*$3"*5"/%'B*K"*%/")$%&"/*

in 2010 that our accounts for 2009-10 and earlier 

years were misstated as they did not properly include 

provisions for early retirements. This omission has 

been corrected in the 2010-11 accounts through a prior 

year adjustment. We have therefore needed to identify 

resources to fund these ongoing early retirement 

commitments which had not been included in the 

accounts of previous years. This amounted to a net 

resource demand of £1,336,000. 

We achieved an operating surplus during the year of 

£2,010,000 which was largely absorbed in funding 

the total prior year adjustments of £1,336,000 giving a 

net surplus of £674,000. We have succeeded against 

a background of reducing audit fee income (see 

I.$.#"*+(!.9*(+*(.#*K(#OX*$(*'!3%"A"*9%,)%&!')$*!(9$*

#"/.!$%()9B*"+&!%")!7*9'A%),9*')/*$3"*/"+"##'6*(+*9(5"*

expenditure to fund these early retirement provisions, 

and to generate this modest additional surplus during 

the year. 

The Executive Committee wishes to use available 

resources to fund a further voluntary severance 

scheme during 2011-12. The intention of this scheme 

is to further reduce the cost base of the Wales Audit 

E+&!"H

Financial review

Page 52



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         53

,(7&.3"3/*"#&<"3";$<$3+&

We are currently undertaking work to enhance our 

&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*'##'),"5")$9H*F3%9*%)!6./"9*

an improved alignment of budget management 

responsibilities to operational accountabilities and 

the recent development of a revised fees model. We 

'69(*16')*$(*'99"99*(.#*%)$"#)'6*&)')!%'6*!()$#(69*')/*

practices against a Financial Management Maturity 

Model*$3'$*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*3'9*/"A"6(1"/*'9*

'*$((6*+(#*'99"99%),*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$H*

]*%>&"3)&(3/$7+"3+*$%&

The public sector faces unprecedented challenges to 

$3"*9!'6"B*9!(1"*')/*&)')!%),*(+*%$9*(1"#'$%()9*(A"#*

the coming years. As explained in the Future focus of 

our workB*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%9*#"91()/%),*$(*$3"*

&)')!%'6*1#"99.#"9*+'!"/*J7*%$9*'./%$"/*J(/%"9*$3(.,3* 

a programme of reducing audit fees.

This in turn reduces the future income available to the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H*G"*'#"*K(#O%),*$(*5')',"*$3"9"*

$3#(.,3*+.#$3"#*9$#.!$.#"/*!(9$*#"/.!$%()9B*"+&!%")!%"9*

and improved business planning.

>9*"016'%)"/*%)*<($"*\_*(+*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9B*

the Auditor General has continued to apply the VAT 

treatments adopted by predecessor bodies, namely 

the Audit Commission in Wales and the National Audit 

E+&!"*%)*G'6"9H*@%9!.99%()9*3'A"*J"")*(),(%),*K%$3*

HM Revenue and Customs for a number of years 

$(*!()&#5*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*h>F*9$'$.9*')/*$(*

determine the appropriate status of his VAT supplies. 

Although those discussions are progressing, it is not 

possible at present to determine whether any liability 

K%66*!#79$'66%9"B*')/*%+*9(B*K3'$*$3"*6%O"67*L.')$.5*(+*

9.!3*'*6%'J%6%$7*5%,3$*J"H*G"#"*'*9%,)%&!')$*6%'J%6%$7*$(*

crystallise, the Auditor General would need to obtain 

funding from the WCF or increase audit fees to meet 

that liability.

Payment of suppliers

The Auditor General aims to observe the principles 

of the Better Payment Practice Code and pay all 

undisputed invoices from suppliers within 30 days. 

In the 12-month period, 96.1 per cent of undisputed 

invoices were paid within 30 days (2009-10,  

96.3 per cent).

Auditors of the Wales Audit 

,-./$

The National Assembly appointed the Auditor General 

for Scotland as the external auditor of the 2010-11 

accounts of the Auditor General for Wales.

All relevant audit information has been made available 

to the external auditors and the Auditor General has 

taken steps to make himself aware of any relevant 

audit information and has ensured that the external 

auditors were aware of that information.

Page 53



54         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11 Page 54



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         55Page 55



56         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Remuneration Report

Auditor General for Wales

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*#"5.)"#'$%()*%9*/"$"#5%)"/*J7*

the National Assembly, and in accordance with the 

Government of Wales Act 2006 is met from the WCF. 

However, for enhanced transparency the remuneration 

of the Auditor General is disclosed in this Remuneration 

Report.

Audit and Risk Management 

Committee members

The remuneration of these non-executive members is 

determined by the Auditor General.

!"#$%&'()*+&,-./$&%+"--

The Auditor General is permitted by legislation to 

appoint such staff as he considers necessary for 

assisting him in the discharge of his duties. The 

remuneration of members of the Executive Committee 

is determined by the Auditor General. The remuneration 

$"#59*+(#*($3"#*9$'++*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*'#"*9"$*

J7*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*D0"!.$%A"*?(55%$$""H*

Remuneration of all members of staff is subject to 

consultation with trade unions under a collective 

agreement.

Remuneration Committee

The Auditor General has established a Remuneration 

Committee, which will become operational during 

2011-12. The Remuneration Committee will support 

the Auditor General in the discharge of responsibilities 

for issues relating to the remuneration of Wales Audit 

E+&!"*9$'++B*%)!6./%),*9")%(#*9$'++H*

Auditor General for Wales

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*9'6'#7*!(9$9*'#"*'*/%#"!$*!3'#,"*

on the WCF and are not therefore paid through the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H*F3"*!.##")$*>./%$(#*:")"#'6B*a#*

Huw Vaughan Thomas, was appointed by Her Majesty 

$3"*i."")*')/*$((O*(+&!"*()*\*E!$(J"#*Z[\[*+(#*'*

non-renewable period of eight years. Ms Gillian Body 

served as Auditor General between 12 February 2010 

and 30 September 2010. 

Gross salary costs of the Auditors General during  

Z[\[-\\*K"#"*]\jZBc^[*Wa#*;.K*h'.,3')*F3(5'9S*

]e^B[[[*')/*a9*:%66%')*R(/7S*]`eBc^[X*WZ[[_-\[S*

]\`jBe[`X*')/*"516(7"#98*1")9%()*!(9$9*K"#"*]ZeBcCc*

Wa#*;.K*h'.,3')*F3(5'9S*]\\BC^[*')/*a9*:%66%')*

R(/7S*]\`BjccX*WZ[[_-\[S*]C[B[e[XH

Mr Huw Vaughan Thomas has opted to contribute to 

a partnership pension account (a form of personal 

stakeholder pension to which an employer contributes). 

Total contributions to this account during 2010-11 were 

£12,833 (including employer contributions of £11,350 

and member contributions of £1,483).

Ms Gillian Body was a member of the Principal Civil 

Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) during her period 

%)*(+&!"H*P)+(#5'$%()*#",'#/%),*3"#*1")9%()*J")"&$9*%9*

provided in the following senior manager disclosures.

Mr Jeremy Colman was a member of the PCSPS 

/.#%),*3%9*1"#%(/*%)*(+&!"H*F3"*?'93*DL.%A'6")$*

F#')9+"#*h'6."*W?DFhX*(+*3%9*1")9%()*J")"&$9*'$*

$3"*")/*(+*3%9*1"#%(/*%)*(+&!"*K'9*]`[jBjeZ*K%$3*')*

accrued pension at that date of £25,445. This included 

a real increase in CETV during 2009-10 of £52,549 and 

'*#"'6*%)!#"'9"*%)*1")9%()*J")"&$*(+*]ZBC[jH*

Remuneration  

policy 

Remuneration details 

Statements of accounts

Page 56



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         57

Senior management 

The Executive Committee is chaired by the Auditor General and additionally during 2010-11 

!(51#%9"/S

Each member of the Executive Committee is subject to a performance review which 

is conducted on a half-yearly basis. The notice period for each member is 12 weeks. 

Early termination, other than through misconduct, would result in the individual receiving 

!(51")9'$%()*()*6(99*(+*(+&!"H

The following information in the Remuneration Report is subject to audit. 

Date of appointment to 

!"#$%&'()*+&,-./$&27&

07$/(7%27&27;"3*%"+*23

Date of 

appointment 

to post

Date of 

termination

V23+7"/+

Gillian Body1 02/09/1981 01/12/2009 N/A Permanent 

Anthony Barrett 24/01/2001 01/12/2009 N/A Permanent 

^$:*3&H52<"%2 26/10/1992 01/12/2009 N/A Permanent 

1   Between 12 February 2010 and 30 September 2010 Gillian Body was the Auditor General on a temporary basis.

2   I(66(K%),*'*!(51"$%$%A"*9"6"!$%()*1#(!"99B*k"A%)*F3(5'9*K'9*'11(%)$"/*()*\*@"!"5J"#*Z[[_*+(#*')*%)%$%'6*1"#%(/

     of 12 months. His post was made permanent following a further selection process at the end of this 12-month 

     period.

Page 57



58         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

The following table includes remuneration information for the Executive Committee  

(and its predecessor Management Committee). It includes remuneration details in 2009-10 

for members of the Management Committee until it was replaced by the Executive Committee 

+#(5*\*@"!"5J"#*Z[[_*')/*+(#*5"5J"#9*(+*$3"*D0"!.$%A"*?(55%$$""*+#(5*$3'$*/'$"H*F3"*$'J6"*

only includes remuneration for Ms Gillian Body for that period during which she did not serve 

as Auditor General.

Senior managers’ remuneration 

details 

_$"7&+2&JI&R"7/5&STII _$"7&+2&JI&R"7/5&STIT

Salary Z$3$.+%&*3&

kind (being 

#$"%$)&/"7%`

Total Pension 

/23+7*1(+*23

H2+"#&a$=/#()*3;&

pension 

/23+7*1(+*23`

Pension 

/23+7*1(+*23%

Bands of 

£5,000

To nearest 

£100

Bands of 

£5,000

Bands of 

£2,500

Bands of £5,000 Bands of £2,500

Gillian  

Body18&38&4

55-60 0 55-60 12.5-15.0 95-100 20.0-25.0

Anthony  

Barrett 4

110-115 4,100 115-120 27.5-30.0 35-40 7.5-10.0

^$:*3& 

Thomas 4

95-100 5,200 100-105 22.5-25.0 35-40 7.5-10.0

Anthony 

Snow28&38&4

- - - - 780-785 15.0-17.5

Jane 

Holownia38&4

- - - - 65-70 12.5-15.0

Simon Edge38&4 - - - - 70-75 15.0-17.5

Ceri 

Stradling38&4

- - - - 70-75 15.0-17.5

1   Between 12 February 2010 and 30 September 2010, Gillian Body was the Auditor General on a temporary basis.

*****@.#%),*$3%9*$%5"*3"#*9'6'#7*K'9*1'%/*/%#"!$67*+#(5*$3"*G?IH

2   In addition to annual salary, this includes a lump sum termination payment of £100,000, pay in lieu of notice of

     £28,849 and future annual pension contributions of £63,770 until age 60 due to Anthony Snow under the terms of 

     a compromise agreement. This information was not fully disclosed in the 2009-10 accounts. No other senior 

*****5')',"#*#"!"%A"/*$"#5%)'$%()*J")"&$9*$3'$*93(.6/*J"*#"1(#$"/*%)*$3"*b"5.)"#'$%()*b"1(#$H

3   Gillian Body, Anthony Snow, Jane Holownia, Simon Edge and Ceri Stradling were members of the Management

*****?(55%$$""B*K3%!3*K'9*#"16'!"/*J7*$3"*D0"!.$%A"*?(55%$$""*+#(5*\*@"!"5J"#*Z[[_H

4   I.66-7"'#*"L.%A'6")$*9'6'#%"9*+(#*D0"!.$%A"*?(55%$$""*')/*a')',"5")$*?(55%$$""*5"5J"#9*/.#%),*Z[[_-\[*K"#"

*****'9*+(66(K9S*:%66%')*R(/7*-*]\\cB[[[V*>)$3()7*R'##"$$*-*]\\CB_[[V*k"A%)*F3(5'9*]_`BZj[V*>)$3()7*=)(K*-*]\ZeB[\^V 

*****l')"*;(6(K)%'*-*]_`BcC`V*=%5()*D/,"*-*]\[CB_[[V*')/*?"#%*=$#'/6%),*-*]\[CB_[[H

No bonuses were paid to any members of staff.

Statements of accounts

Page 58



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         59

Senior management pension 

details 

Real 

*3/7$"%$&

in pension 

"+&bT&

Real 

*3/7$"%$&*3&

lump sum

Pension at 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

Lump 

sum at 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

Total 

"//7($)&

pension at 

JI&R"7/5&

STIT

@3/7$"%$&

in transfer 

:"#($&

CETV at 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

CETV at 

JI&R"7/5&

STIT

Bands of 

£2,500

Bands of 

£2,500

Bands of 

£5,000

Bands of 

£5,000

Bands of 

£5,000

][[[89 ][[[89 ][[[89

Gillian 

Body

0-2.5 0-2.5 40-45 130-135 160-165 6 744 728

Anthony 

Barrett

2.5-5 - 25-30 - 20-25 22 298 239

^$:*3&

Thomas

5-7.5 - 30-35 - 25-30 52 356 277

F3"*'!$.'#%'6*+'!$(#9*.9"/*$(*!'6!.6'$"*?DFh9*K"#"*!3'),"/*/.#%),*Z[\[-\\H*F3"*?DFh*&,.#"9*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\[*/%++"#*+#(5*

$3"*!(##"91()/%),*&,.#"9*%)*6'9$*7"'#89*b"5.)"#'$%()*b"1(#$B*K3%!3*K"#"*!'6!.6'$"/*.9%),*$3"*1#"A%(.9*+'!$(#9H

V"%5&$U(*:"#$3+&+7"3%-$7&:"#($%

F3"*?DFh*%9*$3"*'!$.'#%'667*!'1%$'6%9"/*A'6."*(+*$3"*1")9%()*9!3"5"*J")"&$9*'!!#."/*J7*'*

5"5J"#*'$*'*1'#$%!.6'#*1(%)$*%)*$%5"H*F3"*J")"&$9*A'6."/*'#"*$3"*5"5J"#89*'!!#."/*J")"&$9*

')/*')7*!()$%),")$*91(.9"89*1")9%()*1'7'J6"*+#(5*$3"*9!3"5"H*P$*%9*'*1'75")$*5'/"*J7*'*

1")9%()*9!3"5"*(#*'##'),"5")$*$(*9"!.#"*1")9%()*J")"&$9*%)*')($3"#*1")9%()*9!3"5"*(#*

'##'),"5")$*K3")*$3"*5"5J"#*6"'A"9*'*9!3"5"*')/*!3((9"9*$(*$#')9+"#*$3"*J")"&$9*'!!#."/*

%)*$3"%#*+(#5"#*9!3"5"H*F3"*1")9%()*&,.#"9*93(K)*#"6'$"*$(*$3"*J")"&$9*$3'$*$3"*%)/%A%/.'6*

3'9*'!!#."/*'9*'*!()9"L.")!"*(+*$3"%#*$($'6*5"5J"#93%1*(+*$3"*1")9%()*9!3"5"B*)($*N.9$*

$3"%#*9"#A%!"*%)*'*9")%(#*!'1'!%$7*$(*K3%!3*/%9!6(9.#"*'116%"9H*F3"*?DFh*&,.#"9B*')/*$3"*($3"#*

1")9%()*/"$'%69B*%)!6./"*$3"*A'6."*(+*')7*1")9%()*J")"&$*%)*')($3"#*9!3"5"*(#*'##'),"5")$*

which the individual has transferred to the Civil Service Pension arrangements and for 

which the Civil Superannuation Vote has received a transfer payment commensurate to the 

'//%$%()'6*1")9%()*6%'J%6%$%"9*J"%),*'99.5"/H*F3"7*'69(*%)!6./"*')7*'//%$%()'6*1")9%()*J")"&$*

accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service 

in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework 

prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 

F3"*#"'6*%)!#"'9"*%)*?DFh*#"M"!$9*$3"*%)!#"'9"*"++"!$%A"67*+.)/"/*J7*$3"*"516(7"#H*P$*/("9*)($*

%)!6./"*$3"*%)!#"'9"*%)*'!!#."/*1")9%()*/."*$(*%)M'$%()B*!()$#%J.$%()9*1'%/*J7*$3"*"516(7""*

W%)!6./%),*$3"*A'6."*(+*')7*J")"&$9*$#')9+"##"/*+#(5*')($3"#*1")9%()*9!3"5"*(#*'##'),"5")$X*

and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Page 59



60         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Audit and Risk Management Committee

Statements of accounts

1   Mr Laing receives £7,250 as Chair of this committee. He received additional remuneration included in

*****$3"*&,.#"9*'J(A"*+(#*+.#$3"#*K(#O*!(55%99%()"/*J7*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6H

2   a#*27))*%9*'*@%#"!$(#*K(#O%),*+(#*$3"*<(#$3"#)*P#"6')/*>./%$*E+&!"H*;"*#"!"%A"/*)(*#"5.)"#'$%()*+#(5

*****$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*+(#*3%9*5"5J"#93%1*(+*$3%9*!(55%$$""H

The contract for each member is for three years extendable by up to another three years by 

mutual consent, with the committee meeting up to four times a year. The contracts for Peter 

2'%),B*Y#(+"99(#*@'A%/*;')/9*')/*b(9'5.)/*R6(5&"6/-=5%$3*3'A"*J"")*"0$")/"/*J7*$3#""*

years to 2012.

Huw Vaughan Thomas 

>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#

31 August 2011

Audit Risk and Management Committee Member 

#"5.)"#'$%()*/"$'%69*'#"*'9*+(66(K9S

STITAII

£

STTWAIT

£

Peter Laing – Chairman1 11,650 12,521

C72-$%%27&D":*)&c"3)% 5,000 5,000

]2%"<(3)&Z#2<.$#)A[<*+5 5,000 5,000

Haydn Warman 5,000 2,069

D7&R*/5"$#&C&Z722>$7 5,000 2,069

D$3:$7&X6332 Nil Nil

Page 60



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         61

Statement of Accounting 

Officer’s Responsibilities

Under paragraph 13(1) of Schedule 8 to the 

Government of Wales Act 2006, HM Treasury has 

directed the Auditor General to prepare for each 

&)')!%'6*7"'#*'*=$'$"5")$*(+*>!!(.)$9*%)*$3"*+(#5*')/*

()*$3"*J'9%9*9"$*(.$*%)*$3"*>!!(.)$9*@%#"!$%()H*>*)"K*

direction has been obtained for the 2010-11 Statement 

of Accounts. The accounts are prepared on an accruals 

basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the Auditor General and of the income and 

"01")/%$.#"B*!3'),"9*%)*$'01'7"#98*"L.%$7*')/*!'93*

M(K9*+(#*$3"*&)')!%'6*7"'#H*

P)*1#"1'#%),*$3"*'!!(.)$9B*$3"*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#*

%9*#"L.%#"/*$(*!(5167*K%$3*$3"*#"L.%#"5")$9*(+*$3"*

Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)  

')/*%)*1'#$%!.6'#*$(S*

T* (J9"#A"*$3"*>!!(.)$9*@%#"!$%()*%99."/*J7*;a*

Treasury including the relevant accounting and 

/%9!6(9.#"*#"L.%#"5")$9B*')/*'1167*9.%$'J6"*

'!!(.)$%),*1(6%!%"9*()*'*!()9%9$")$*J'9%9V*

T* 5'O"*N./,"5")$9*')/*"9$%5'$"9*()*'*#"'9()'J6"*

J'9%9V*

T* 9$'$"*K3"$3"#*'116%!'J6"*'!!(.)$%),*9$')/'#/9*

as set out in the FReM have been followed, and 

disclose and explain any material departures in the 

&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9V*')/**

T* 1#"1'#"*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*()*'*,(%),*!()!"#)*

basis. 

The Auditor General is designated as the Accounting 

E+&!"#*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*.)/"#*1'#',#'13*\`W\X*

of Schedule 8 to the Government of Wales Act. The 

>./%$(#*:")"#'689*#"91()9%J%6%$%"9*'9*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#B*

including responsibility for the propriety and regularity 

(+*$3"*1.J6%!*&)')!"9*+(#*K3%!3*3"*%9*')9K"#'J6"V*

+(#*$3"*O""1%),*(+*1#(1"#*'!!(.)$9V*+(#*1#./")$*')/*

"!()(5%!'6*'/5%)%9$#'$%()V*+(#*$3"*'A(%/')!"*(+*K'9$"*

')/*"0$#'A',')!"V*')/*+(#*$3"*"+&!%")$*')/*"++"!$%A"*

use of all the available resources are set out in 

4&3-1*'+53)"-1)/6&)7$$-5'/%'2)8"#$&1)-")/6&)9*:&;)

75+%/)8"#$& issued on 2 November 2010 by the Public 

Accounts Committee of the National Assembly under 

paragraph 16 of Schedule 8 to the Government of 

Wales Act 2006.

Page 61



62         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Statement on Internal Control

[/20$&2-&7$%023%*1*#*+6

>9*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#B*P*3'A"*#"91()9%J%6%$7*+(#*

maintaining a sound system of internal control that 

9.11(#$9*$3"*'!3%"A"5")$*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*

policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the 

public funds and assets for which I am personally 

responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities 

assigned to me in the Memorandum for the Accounting 

8"#$&1)-")/6&)9*:&;)75+%/)8"#$& issued on 2 November 

2010 by the Public Accounts Committee of the National 

Assembly. 

As Auditor General, I am independent of both the 

National Assembly and the Welsh Government. As 

>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#B*P*'5*'!!(.)$'J6"*$(*$3"*Y.J6%!*

Accounts Committee of the National Assembly (and to 

the House of Commons Committee of Public Accounts) 

+(#*$3"*(A"#'66*(#,')%9'$%()B*5')',"5")$*')/*9$'+&),*

(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*+(#*%$9*1#(!"/.#"9*%)*

#"6'$%()*$(*&)')!%'6*')/*($3"#*5'$$"#9H*F3"*Y.J6%!*

Accounts Committee examines my annual Estimate  

of income and expenditure.

The purpose of the system 

2-&*3+$73"#&/23+72#

The system of internal control is designed to manage 

risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 

#%9O*(+*+'%6.#"*$(*'!3%"A"*1(6%!%"9B*'%59*')/*(JN"!$%A"9V*%$*

can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control is based on an ongoing process designed to 

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 

$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*1(6%!%"9B*'%59*')/*(JN"!$%A"9B*

to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 

and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 

$3"5*"+&!%")$67B*"++"!$%A"67*')/*"!()(5%!'667H*F3"*

system of internal control has been in place in the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*+(#*$3"*7"'#*")/"/*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*

and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 

accounts, and accords with Treasury guidance.

V"0"/*+6&+2&5"3)#$&7*%>

The Executive Committee has overall responsibility for 

5')',"5")$*(+*#%9O*%)*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"B*'6$3(.,3*

"'!3*%/")$%&"/*#%9O*%9*'66(!'$"/*$(*')*'11#(1#%'$"*9")%(#*

manager. The Audit and Risk Management Committee 

W>ba?X*1#(A%/"9*9!#.$%)7*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*

risk management arrangements.

My aim is to manage the business of the Wales Audit 

E+&!"*%)*'*5'))"#*$3'$*$'O"9*'!!(.)$*(+*$3"*#%9O9*K"*

face, using appropriate control systems. This objective 

%9*"5J"//"/*%)*(.#*K(#O%),*5"$3(/9*%)!6./%),*/"&)"/*

,(A"#)')!"*1#(!"/.#"9B*L.'6%$7*!()$#(6*1(6%!%"9B*

&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*')/*$3"*%/")$%&!'$%()*')/*

5')',"5")$*(+*%/")$%&"/*#%9O9H*F3"#"*%9B*3(K"A"#B*

scope to develop further many of these arrangements.

Statements of accounts

Page 62



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         63

We are working to develop a corporate performance 

management framework, supported by detailed 

&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*%)+(#5'$%()B*$3'$*K%66*1#(A%/"*

me, my Executive Committee and other directors 

and managers with more appropriate and timely 

management information to allow us to identify 

and respond to emerging risk. Our governance 

arrangements will be further strengthened over 

the coming year as I have outlined below. We are 

'69(*!.##")$67*#"A%"K%),*(.#*&)')!%'6*1(6%!%"9*')/*

procedures to improve our control arrangements and to 

5(#"*!6"'#67*/"&)"*#"91()9%J%6%$%"9*')/*'!!(.)$'J%6%$%"9H

The public sector faces unprecedented challenges 

$(*$3"*9!'6"B*9!(1"*')/*&)')!%),*(+*%$9*(1"#'$%()9*

over the coming years. To ensure that we continue to 

respond to this changing environment, a new corporate 

strategy will be developed, which will drive business 

16'))%),*')/*3"61*$(*J"$$"#*/"&)"*'!!(.)$'J%6%$%"9*

K%$3%)*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H

H5$&7*%>&"3)&/23+72#&

framework

I reported to the Public Accounts Committee in 

October 2010 that improvements were urgently 

)""/"/*$(*5'O"*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*5(#"*(1")*')/*

accountable. I have since established a new structure 

of three governance committees to exercise oversight 

respectively of remuneration, resources, and audit and 

risk management. All three committees are exclusively 

non-executive, and members are recruited following 

E+&!"*(+*$3"*?(55%99%()"#*+(#*Y.J6%!*>11(%)$5")$98*

1#%)!%16"9H*F3"*,(A"#)')!"*!(55%$$""98*',")/'9*')/*

5%).$"9*K%66*J"*1.J6%93"/*()*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*

website, and the work of the committees will be 

summarised in an annual Governance Report.

Given the nature of our business, our tolerance of risk 

in areas of professional audit judgement, regularity and 

1#(1#%"$7B*')/*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*%9*6(KH

P*"516(7*'*6'#,"*).5J"#*(+*L.'6%&"/*'!!(.)$')$9*

K3(*'#"*J(.)/*J7*$3"*"$3%!'6*#"L.%#"5")$9*(+*$3"%#*

1#(+"99%()'6*J(/%"9H*F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*!()+(#59*

with International Standards on Auditing. In particular, 

the International Standard on Quality Control 1 is 

'116%"/*$(*'66*(+*(.#*&)')!%'6*'./%$*"),',"5")$9H*

?()$#(6*(A"#*$3"*L.'6%$7*(+*'./%$9*%9*+'!%6%$'$"/*$3#(.,3*

our audit process and the hierarchical supervision 

provided within individual projects. We also have a 

system of internal and  external reviews. The results of 

these reviews are reported to the Executive Committee. 

These controls apply both to work undertaken by staff 

(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*$(*1#%A'$"*9"!$(#*&#59*

contracted to undertake work for me.

G"*5'%)$'%)*'*?(#1(#'$"*b%9O*b",%9$"#*K3%!3*%/")$%&"9*

strategic and operational risks that could affect the 

achievement of our aims. We are alert to the need to 

keep these risks under review and deal appropriately 

with changing circumstances as they arise. 

The Executive Committee and ARMC have positively 

"),',"/*K%$3*')/*#"L."9$"/*A'#%(.9*!3'),"9*$(*$3"*

Corporate Risk Register throughout the year. The 

changes have improved the clarity of the description 

')/*1#"9")$'$%()*(+*$3"*#%9O9*')/*$3"*'!$%()9*%/")$%&"/*

$(*5%$%,'$"*')/*5')',"*$3"5H*F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*

risk management framework has been updated to 

#"M"!$*$3"*!3'),"9*$(*!(#1(#'$"*9"#A%!"9B*')/*)(K*

includes a summary of the status of corporate risks. 

The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed on a monthly 

basis by the Executive Committee and is a standing 

agenda item for review at ARMC meetings. 

Page 63



64         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

@3-27<"+*23&;2:$73"3/$

F(,"$3"#*K%$3*$3"*9$'++*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"B* 

I have privileged and wide-ranging access to data 

and information to support the discharge of the audit 

function and to ensure that my reports are factual, 

'!!.#'$"*')/*!(516"$"H*F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*

has a duty to respect this privileged access and to 

ensure that the personal information entrusted to it is 

safeguarded properly.

P)*/%9!3'#,"*(+*$3%9*/.$7B*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*3'9*')*

,'"-13*/%-')<&$51%/()0-:%$(B*K3%!3S

T* 9"$9*(.$*$3"*(J6%,'$%()9*(+*'66*"516(7""9*%)*#"6'$%()*

$(*$3"*.9"*(+*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*P?F*+'!%6%$%"9V

T* (.$6%)"9*$3"*6",'6*#"L.%#"5")$9*+(#*1#(!"99%),*/'$'V

T* 3%,36%,3$9*O"7*9"!.#%$7*#"91()9%J%6%$%"9*+(#*'66*9$'++V*

T* 9"$9*(.$*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*'##'),"5")$9*$(*

5()%$(#*1(6%!7*!(516%')!"V*')/

T* "016'%)9*3(K*9$'++*!')*(J$'%)*+.#$3"#*9.11(#$*')/*

guidance and how security incidents should be 

reported.

Failure to comply with this policy may lead to 

investigation and other action in accordance with the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*Disciplinary Policy.

Following a review of the circumstances that led to the 

arrest and conviction of the former Auditor General,  

Mr Colman, further controls were introduced during the 

!(.#9"*(+*$3"*1'9$*7"'#B*K3%!3*%)!6./"/S

T* J6(!O%),*(+*'!!"99*+#(5*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*979$"59*

$(*1"#9()'6*"-5'%6*')/*9(!%'6*)"$K(#O%),*K"J9%$"9V*

and

T* '5")/5")$*(+*$3"*,'"-13*/%-')<&$51%/()0-:%$( to 

make clear that routine monitoring will take place to 

check staff compliance with the law and Wales Audit 

E+&!"*1(6%!7H

There were no personal data related incidents 

#"1(#$'J6"*$(*$3"*P)+(#5'$%()*?(55%99%()"#89*E+&!"*%)*

2010-11. 

]$:*$9&2-&$--$/+*:$3$%%&"3)&

%*;3*./"3+&/23+72#&0721#$<%

>9*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#B*P*3'A"*#"91()9%J%6%$7*+(#*

reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control. This review is informed by the work of the 

internal and external auditors and my senior managers 

who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The process that I have maintained to ensure internal 

control during the year includes both risk management 

and other sources of assurance, including Internal 

Audit. The Head of Internal Audit has regular and 

unfettered access to me and to the Chairman of the 

ARMC, and attends every ARMC meeting.

Internal Audit submits regular reports on the 

management of key business risks and the 

"++"!$%A")"99*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*979$"5*

of internal control and makes recommendations 

for improvement. Recommendations have 

been accepted by management and have been 

implemented or are being progressed in accordance 

with agreed timetables. The status of Internal Audit 

recommendations is regularly reported to the Executive 

Committee and ARMC.

Statements of accounts

Page 64



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         65

@.#%),*$3"*7"'#B*P)$"#)'6*>./%$*.)/"#$((O*'*#"A%"K*(+*

the conduct of the former Auditor General, Mr Colman, 

K3%69$*%)*(+&!"H*>*#"A%"K*K'9*'69(*.)/"#$'O")*(+*$3"*

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*'!!(.)$9*+(#*Z[[_-\[*')/*'*

further review of the accounts for 2005 to 2010 was 

.)/"#$'O")*J7*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"H*F3"*#"9.6$9*(+*

these three reviews were reported to me, my Executive 

Committee, the ARMC, and the Public Accounts 

Committee, the latter making them a matter of public 

#"!(#/H*F3"*#"A%"K9*+(.)/S

T* $3'$*a#*?(65')*/%/*)($*'1167*!()$#(69*!()9%9$")$67*

')/*()*(!!'9%()9*3"*/"1'#$"/*+#(5*$3"5V

T* %)9$')!"9*K3"#"*a#*?(65')*/%9#",'#/"/*',#""/*

and adopted management arrangements and failed 

in some of his responsibilities as the Accounting 

E+&!"#*+(#*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"V*')/

T* $3'$*$3"#"*K"#"*'*).5J"#*(+*K"'O)"99"9*%)*$3"*

process of compiling the 2009-10 accounts that 

!()$#%J.$"/*$(*$3"*'!!(.)$9*5%99$'$%),*$3"*&)')!%'6*

1(9%$%()*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*'9*'$*C\*a'#!3*

2010. Similar issues were also found in relation to 

previous years.

P)*'//%$%()B*!"#$'%)*K"'O)"99"9*K"#"*%/")$%&"/*%)*$3"*

'11#(A'6*(+*$3"*$#'%)%),*#"L.%#"5")$9*(+*$3"*+(#5"#*

Auditor General (Mr Colman) and the former Chief 

E1"#'$%),*E+&!"#*Wa#*>)$3()7*=)(KXH*F3"*6(99"9*')/*

91"!%'6*1'75")$9*)($"*W<($"*\eX*%/")$%&"9*"01")/%$.#"*

of £1,080 on training provided to Mr Snow after his last 

/'7*(+*"++"!$%A"*9"#A%!"*K%$3*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H

These reports together with additional information were 

also considered by the Public Accounts Committee of 

the National Assembly, which issued its own report in 

March 2011.

These reports made a number of recommendations 

to improve the robustness of the controls over the 

compilation, management review and scrutiny of the 

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*'!!(.)$9H*b"!(55")/'$%()9*

were also made in relation to the wider governance 

arrangements of the Auditor General and the Wales 

>./%$*E+&!"H*?()9%/"#'J6"*1#(,#"99*3'9*J"")*5'/"*

against these recommendations, which is being 

monitored by the Executive Committee and ARMC.

F3"*;"'/*(+*P)$"#)'6*>./%$89*(A"#'66*')).'6*(1%)%()*

+(#*Z[\[-\\*%9*$3'$*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*979$"59*

are capable of delivering effective internal control and 

#%9O*5')',"5")$B*')/*$3'$*!()$#(69*(A"#*O"7*&)')!%'6*

979$"59*K"#"*,")"#'667*'/"L.'$"*$(*")'J6"*"++"!$%A"*

&)')!%'6*')/*5')',"5")$*!()$#(6H*;"*K'9*'69(*

9'$%9&"/*$3'$*PB*'9*$3"*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#B*K'9*'K'#"*(+*

$3"*)""/*+(#B*')/*(1"#'$"B*'/"L.'$"*!()$#(6*979$"59H*

;"*+.#$3"#*!()!6./"/*$3'$*$3"*91"!%&!*')/*9%,)%&!')$*

/"&!%")!%"9*%)*%)$"#)'6*!()$#(6*#"6'$%),*$(*Z[[_-\[*')/*

"'#6%"#*7"'#9*K"#"*'$$#%J.$'J6"*$(*91"!%&!*#(($*!'.9"9*

which are being addressed through the introduction of 

improved governance and control arrangements.

Huw Vaughan Thomas

>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#*

31 August 2011 

 

Page 65



66         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

Certificate of the Auditor 

General for Scotland to the 

National Assembly for Wales

P*!"#$%+7*$3'$*P*3'A"*'./%$"/*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"9*+(#*

$3"*7"'#*")/"/*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*.)/"#*$3"*:(A"#)5")$*(+*G'6"9*>!$*Z[[`H*F3"9"*&)')!%'6*

statements comprise the Summary of Resource Outturn, the Statement of Comprehensive  

Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement 

(+*?3'),"9*%)*F'01'7"#98*DL.%$7B*')/*#"6'$"/*)($"9H*F3"*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),*+#'5"K(#O*$3'$*

has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the 

2010/11 Government Financial Reporting Manual (the 2010/11 FReM).

 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the 

Government of Wales Act 2006 and for no other purpose. I do not undertake to have 

responsibilities to third parties. 

]$%0$/+*:$&7$%023%*1*#*+*$%&2-&+5$&'()*+27&

General for Wales and the Auditor General for 

[/2+#"3)

>9*"016'%)"/*5(#"*+.667*%)*$3"*=$'$"5")$*(+*$3"*>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#89*b"91()9%J%6%$%"9*9"$*

out on page 61, the Auditor General for Wales is responsible for the preparation of the 

&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*')/*+(#*J"%),*9'$%9&"/*$3'$*$3"7*,%A"*'*$#."*')/*+'%#*A%"KB*')/*%9*'69(*

responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and receipts. My responsibility is to audit 

')/*"01#"99*')*(1%)%()*()*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*'116%!'J6"*6'K*')/*

P)$"#)'$%()'6*=$')/'#/9*()*>./%$%),*Wgk*')/*P#"6')/XH*F3(9"*9$')/'#/9*#"L.%#"*5"*$(*!(5167*

K%$3*$3"*>./%$%),*Y#'!$%!"9*R('#/89*D$3%!'6*=$')/'#/9*+(#*>./%$(#9H*P*'5*'69(*#"91()9%J6"*+(#*

giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and receipts.

[/20$&2-&+5$&"()*+&2-&+5$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts, disclosures, and regularity of 

"01")/%$.#"*')/*#"!"%1$9*%)*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*9.+&!%")$*$(*,%A"*#"'9()'J6"*'99.#')!"*

$3'$*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*'#"*+#""*+#(5*5'$"#%'6*5%99$'$"5")$B*K3"$3"#*!'.9"/*J7*+#'./*

(#*"##(#H*F3%9*%)!6./"9*')*'99"995")$*(+S*K3"$3"#*$3"*'!!(.)$%),*1(6%!%"9*'#"*'11#(1#%'$"*

$(*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"98*!%#!.59$')!"9*')/*3'A"*J"")*!()9%9$")$67*'116%"/*')/*

'/"L.'$"67*/%9!6(9"/V*$3"*#"'9()'J6")"99*(+*9%,)%&!')$*'!!(.)$%),*"9$%5'$"9*5'/"*J7*$3"*

>!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#V*')/*$3"*(A"#'66*1#"9")$'$%()*(+*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9H*P)*'//%$%()B*P*

#"'/*'66*$3"*&)')!%'6*')/*)()-&)')!%'6*%)+(#5'$%()*%)*$3"*')).'6*#"1(#$*$(*%/")$%+7*5'$"#%'6*

%)!()9%9$")!%"9*K%$3*$3"*'./%$"/*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9H*P+*P*J"!(5"*'K'#"*(+*')7*'11'#")$*

material misstatements or inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report.

Statements of accounts

Page 66



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         67

,0*3*23&23&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%

P)*57*(1%)%()*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9S

T* ,%A"*'*$#."*')/*+'%#*A%"KB*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*$3"*:(A"#)5")$*(+*G'6"9*>!$*Z[[`*')/*$3"*

directions made thereunder by the Treasury, of the state of affairs of the Auditor General 

+(#*G'6"9*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*')/*(+*$3"*)"$*#"9(.#!"*(.$$.#)B*$3"*)"$*!'93*#"L.%#"5")$*')/*

$3"*!(51#"3")9%A"*)"$*"01")/%$.#"B*!3'),"9*%)*#"9"#A"9*')/*!'93*M(K9*+(#*$3"*7"'#*$3")*

")/"/V*

T* 3'A"*J"")*1#(1"#67*1#"1'#"/*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*PIb=9*'9*'/(1$"/*J7*$3"*D.#(1"')*

g)%()B*'9*%)$"#1#"$"/*')/*'/'1$"/*J7*$3"*Z[\[m\\*Ib"aV*')/

T* 3'A"*J"")*1#(1"#67*1#"1'#"/*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*$3"*:(A"#)5")$*(+*G'6"9*>!$*Z[[`*')/*

directions made thereunder by the Treasury.

Opinion on regularity

P)*57*(1%)%()*%)*'66*5'$"#%'6*#"91"!$9B*$3"*"01")/%$.#"*')/*%)!(5"*93(K)*%)*$3"*&)')!%'6*

statements have been applied to the purposes intended by the National Assembly for Wales 

')/*$3"*&)')!%'6*$#')9'!$%()9*!()+(#5*K%$3*$3"*'.$3(#%$%"9*$3'$*,(A"#)*$3"5H

,0*3*23&23&2+5$7&07$%/7*1$)&<"++$7%

P)*57*(1%)%()S

T* $3"*1'#$*(+*$3"*b"5.)"#'$%()*b"1(#$*$(*J"*'./%$"/*3'9*J"")*1#(1"#67*1#"1'#"/*%)*

accordance with the Government of Wales Act 2006 and directions made thereunder by the 

F#"'9.#7V*')/

T* $3"*%)+(#5'$%()*%)!6./"/*%)*$3"*>)).'6*b"1(#$*+(#*$3"*&)')!%'6*7"'#*+(#*K3%!3*$3"*&)')!%'6*

9$'$"5")$9*'#"*1#"1'#"/*%9*!()9%9$")$*K%$3*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9H

Page 67



68         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

R"++$7%&23&95*/5&@&"<&7$U(*7$)&+2&7$027+& 

16&$=/$0+*23

P*3'A"*)($3%),*$(*#"1(#$*%)*#"91"!$*(+*$3"*+(66(K%),*5'$$"#9*K3"#"*P*'5*#"L.%#"/*$(*#"1(#$*$(* 

7(.*%+B*%)*57*(1%)%()S

T** '/"L.'$"*'!!(.)$%),*#"!(#/9*3'A"*)($*J"")*O"1$V*(#

T** $3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*')/*$3"*1'#$*(+*$3"*b"5.)"#'$%()*b"1(#$*$(*J"*'./%$"/*'#"*)($*

%)*',#""5")$*K%$3*$3"*'!!(.)$%),*#"!(#/9V*(#

T** P*3'A"*)($*#"!"%A"/*'66*$3"*%)+(#5'$%()*')/*"016')'$%()9*P*#"L.%#"*+(#*57*'./%$V*(#

T** $3"*=$'$"5")$*()*P)$"#)'6*?()$#(6*/("9*)($*!(5167*K%$3*#"6"A')$*F#"'9.#7*,.%/')!"H

Report

My report to the National Assembly for Wales is set out on pages 93 to 96.

Robert W Black

Auditor General for Scotland

110 George Street

Edinburgh

EH2 4LH

9 September 2011

Statements of accounts

Page 68



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         69

[(<<"76&2-&]$%2(7/$&,(+A+(73&-27&+5$&6$"7&

$3)$)&JI&R"7/5&STII

STITAII

ESTIMATE ,dHAHd]e Net total 

out-turn

compared 

with

budget

Gross

expenditure

Income NET

TOTAL

Gross

expenditure

Income NET

TOTAL

]8[[[ ]8[[[* ]8[[[* ]8[[[ ]8[[[ ]8[[[* ]8[[[

]$:$3($ If8gIW IT8hhS f8Tih II8gST h8WIJ J8WTh I8IiT

Capital Sh Sh aSh`

Prior period 

adjustment
544 afii`

TOTAL 

RESOURCES
f8Tih i8ihg 569

NET CASH 

REQUIREMENT 

a%$$&7$/23/*#*"+*23&

1$#29` f8Thi i8iif 629

]$/23/*#*"+*23&2-&H2+"#&]$%2(7/$%&+2&e$+&

V"%5&]$U(*7$<$3+&

Estimate

\ETTT

,(+A+(73

\ETTT

j"7*"3/$%

\ETTT

H2+"#&7$%2(7/$%&a"%&"12:$` 5,047 4,478 569

')M(%+<$3+%K

Non-cash items (depreciation) (200) (108) (92)

Movements in working capital other than cash 227 619 (392)

Prior year adjustment (544) 544

e$+&/"%5&7$U(*7$<$3+ 5,074 4,445 629

F3"*'J(A"*=.55'#7*(+*b"9(.#!"*E.$-$.#)*9.55'#%9"9*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*'!3%"A"/*1(9%$%()*','%)9$*$3(9"*

"6"5")$9*(+*$3"*J./,"$*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*$3'$*'#"*9.JN"!$*$(*'11#(A'6*J7*J./,"$*5($%()*(+*$3"*<'$%()'6*

Assembly. Namely, the amount of resources and cash that can be drawn down from the WCF and the amount 

of income generated from NHS, central government, local government grants work and sundry sources that can 

J"*#"$'%)"/H*F3"*+(66(K%),*$'J6"*9.55'#%9"9*K3"#"*$3"*&,.#"9*'J(A"*3'A"*J"")*/"#%A"/*+#(5*$3"*!(##"91()/%),*

&,.#"9*K%$3%)*$3"*=$'$"5")$*(+*>!!(.)$9B*')/*1#(A%/"9*'*J#"'O/(K)*(+*3(K*$3(9"*&,.#"9*3'A"*J"")*'11(#$%()"/*

to the Summary of Resource Out-turn.

Page 69



70         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

The movement in working capital in the above table is the net of the movements in receivables (£319,000) and 

payables (£1,837,000) shown in the Cash Flow Statement.

4=0#"3"+*23&2-&:"7*"3/$%

\H* F3"*)"$*.)/"#91")/9*'J(A"*'#%9"*+#(5*$3"*9'A%),9*')/*"+&!%")!%"9*'!3%"A"/*%)*$3"*7"'#B*'9*(.$6%)"/*%)*$3"*

Financial Review.

2. Further information about the prior year adjustment is provided in Note 21.

[(<<"76&2-&/"%5&0"6"1#$&+2&+5$&!$#%5&V23%2#*)"+$)&G(3)

>#%9%),*+#(5*$3"*(1"#'$%()9*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*+(#*$3"*Z[\[-\\*&)')!%'6*7"'#B*$3"*9.5*(+*]`Z_B[[[*%9*

payable to the WCF.

>9*)($"/*%)*$3"*I%)')!%'6*b"A%"KB*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*%)$")/9*$(*#"L."9$*'.$3(#%$7*+#(5*$3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J67*

$(*#"$'%)*#"9(.#!"*!(##"91()/%),*$(*$3%9*'5(.)$*$(*!()$#%J.$"*$(*$3"*+.)/%),*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*A(6.)$'#7*

severance scheme, thereby helping to reduce our future annual running costs. 

STTWAIT&/2<0"7"+*:$&.;(7$%

Z[\[-\\*%9*$3"*&#9$*7"'#*%)*K3%!3*'*=.55'#7*(+*b"9(.#!"*E.$-$.#)*3'9*J"")*'/(1$"/H*P)*Z[[_-\[*$3"*"L.%A'6")$*

'!!(.)$'J%6%$7*%)+(#5'$%()*K'9*1#(A%/"/*%)*<($"*\[*$(*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9H*F3%9*#"!(#/"/*$3"*#"9(.#!"*(.$-$.#)*

'9*]^B[jeB[[[*')/*$3"*(.$-$.#)*!'93*#"L.%#"5")$*'9*]^B[Z[B[[[B*J($3*%)*6%)"*K%$3*$3"*D9$%5'$"9*'.$3(#%9"/*J7*

the National Assembly. This approach did not estimate for, or bring to account, capital expenditure. The relevant 

portion of capital expenditure that should have been estimated and accounted in 2009-10 would have been 

approximately £184,000. 

E$3"#*'91"!$9*(+*'!!(.)$'J%6%$7*%)*#"6'$%()*$(*!(51'#'$%A"*&,.#"9*3'A"*J"")*J#(.,3$*$(*'!!(.)$*J7*$3"*Y#%(#*Y"#%(/*

Adjustment.

H5$&32+$%&+5"+&-2##29&23&0";$%&hf&+2&WS&-27<&0"7+&2-&+5$%$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%?

Note Total

\FTTT

@3/#()$)&*3&

Summary of 

]$%2(7/$&

,(+A+(73&

\FTTT

e2+&*3/#()$)& 

in Summary 

2-&]$%2(7/$& 

,(+A+(73&

\FTTT

Income 2 19,434 7,913 11,521

Expenditure 2 22,471 11,820 10,651

Prior year adjustment F'01'7"#98*

DL.%$7

1,336 544 792

@"1#"!%'$%() 7 265 108 157

Movements in working capital Cash Flow 

Statement

(1,518) (619) (899)

Capital additions 8 and 9 67 27 40

Statements of accounts

Page 70



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         71

[+"+$<$3+&2-&V2<07$5$3%*:$&e$+&4=0$3)*+(7$&

-27&+5$&6$"7&$3)$)&JI&R"7/5&STII

Note Year to  

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

Restated 

year to  

JI&R"7/5

STIT

\TTT

Expenditure

Staff and associated costs 4 16,086 18,261

Bought-in services 6 3,379 4,096

Other operating costs 7 2,993 3,806

22,458 26,163

@3/2<$

Audit fee income 17,340 16,606

Inspection income 1,836 3,599

Other operating income 3 250 371

19,426 20,576

Net expenditure aJ8TJS` af8fgh`

Interest payable/receivable 8 5

Corporation tax (13) (1)

Net expenditure after tax and interest aJ8TJh` af8fgJ`

,+5$7&/2<07$5$3%*:$&$=0$3)*+(7$ 0 0

H2+"#&/2<07$5$3%*:$&3$+&$=0$3)*+(7$&-27&

the year

aJ8TJh` af8fgJ`

H5$&32+$%&+5"+&-2##29&23&0";$%&hf&+2&WS&-27<&0"7+&2-&+5$%$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%?

F3"#"*K"#"*)(*/%9!()$%)."/*(1"#'$%()9B*'!L.%9%$%()9*(#*/%91(9'69*/.#%),*$3"*1"#%(/*)(#*

any unrecognised gains or losses.

Figures for 2009-10 have been restated. Further information is provided in Note 21.

Page 71



72         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

[+"+$<$3+&2-&G*3"3/*"#&C2%*+*23&"+& 

JI&R"7/5&STII
Restated Restated

Note JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

e23A/(77$3+&"%%$+%

Y#(1"#$7B*16')$*')/*"L.%15")$ 8 746 1,268 1,134

Intangible assets 9 442 120 0

Total non-current assets 1,188 1,388 1,134

Current assets

Trade receivables and work in progress 10 1,606 2,027  2,356

Other receivables 11 562 460 532

?'93*')/*!'93*"L.%A'6")$9 12 4,016 3,296 1,056

Total current assets 6,184 5,783 3,944

Total assets 7,372 7,171 5,078

Current liabilities

Trade payables and other current liabilities 13 1,671 1,584 1,505

@"+"##"/*%)!(5" 14 3,329 4,702  3,368

Provisions for liabilities and charges 15 458 1,013 213

WCF (see Summary of Resource Out-turn) 629 0 0

Total current liabilities 6,087 7,299  5,086

Total assets less current liabilities 1,285 (128) (8)

e23A/(77$3+&#*"1*#*+*$%

Provisions for liabilities and charges 15 1,123 1,118 675

Total non-current liabilities 1,123 1,118 675

Assets less liabilities 162 (1,246)  (683)

Taxpayers’ equity     

General reserve 162 (1,246) (683)

Total reserves 162 (1,246) (683)

H5$&32+$%&+5"+&-2##29&23&0";$%&hf&+2&WS&-27<&0"7+&2-&+5$%$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%?&

    Huw Vaughan Thomas 

* * * * >!!(.)$%),*E+&!"#

    31 August 2011

Statements of accounts

Page 72



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         73

H5$&32+$%&+5"+&-2##29&23&0";$%&hf&+2&WS&-27<&0"7+&2-&+5$%$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%?&

Statement of Cash Flows 

-27&+5$&6$"7&$3)$)&JI&R"7/5&STII&

Note STITAII

\TTT

Restated

STTWAIT

\TTT

!"#$%&'(#%)*'+%',-*"./01%"2./3/./-#

Comprehensive net expenditure (3,037) (5,583)

<()*!'93S*/"1#"!%'$%() 7 265 203

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 10,11 319 401

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 13,14,15 (1,837) 2,656

e$+&/"%5&2(+Y29&-72<&20$7"+*3;&"/+*:*+*$% (4,290) (2,323)

!"#$%&'(#%)*'+%/03-#./01%"2./3/./-#

Y.#!3'9"9*(+*1#(1"#$7B*16')$*')/*"L.%15")$ (5) (337)

Purchases of intangible assets (59) (120)

e$+&/"%5&2(+Y29&-72<&*3:$%+*3;&"/+*:*+*$% (64) (457)

!"#$%&'(#%)*'+%40"02/01%"2./3/./-#

WCF 5,074 5,020

e$+&.3"3/*3; 5,074 5,020

R2:$<$3+%&*3&/"%5&"3)&/"%5&$U(*:"#$3+% 12 hST S8SiT

Statements of accounts

Page 73



74         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

[+"+$<$3+&2-&V5"3;$%&*3&H"=0"6$7%F&

4U(*+6&-27&+5$&6$"7&$3)$)&JI&R"7/5&STII

\TTT

Z"#"3/$&"+&JI&R"7/5&STTW

- Original 108

- Prior year adjustment (791)

- Restated (683)

V5"3;$%&*3&+"=0"6$7%F&$U(*+6&*3&STTWAIT

Total comprehensive expenditure (5,583)

G?I*&)')!" 5,020

Z"#"3/$&"+&JI&R"7/5&STIT (1,246)

V5"3;$%&*3&+"=0"6$7%F&$U(*+6&*3&STITAII

Total comprehensive expenditure (3,037)

G?I*&)')!" 5,074

791

Payable to WCF (629)

V#2%*3;&1"#"3/$&"+&JI&R"7/5&STII 162

Note \TTT

Z"#"3/$&"+&JI&R"7/5&STIT&a27*;*3"#` 117

Prior year adjustments

- 31 March 2009 additional provision 15 (791)

- 2009-10 additional early retirement and severance provision 15 (747)

- 2009-10 release of early retirement and severance provision 15 202

- Early retirement and severances (1,336)

- WCF (27) (1,363)

Z"#"3/$&"+&JI&R"7/5&STIT&a7$%+"+$)` (1,246)

H5$&32+$%&+5"+&-2##29&23&0";$%&hf&+2&WS&-27<&0"7+&2-&+5$%$&.3"3/*"#&%+"+$<$3+%?&

F'01'7"#98*"L.%$7*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\[*%9*%51'!$"/*J7*1#%(#*7"'#*'/N.9$5")$9*'$*C\*a'#!3*

2009 and during the course of 2009-10. The following note provides a reconciliation 

J"$K"")*$3"*&,.#"*(#%,%)'667*#"1(#$"/*')/*$3"*&,.#"*#"1(#$"/*%)*$3"*'J(A"*9$'$"5")$S

Statements of accounts

Page 74



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         75

Notes

[+"+$<$3+&2-&'//2(3+*3;&

C2#*/*$%&

F3"9"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*3'A"*J"")*1#"1'#"/*%)*

accordance with the 2010-11 FReM, issued by the 

relevant authorities. The accounting policies contained 

in the FReM apply EU adopted International Financial 

Reporting Standards as adapted or interpreted for 

the public sector context. Where the FReM permits 

a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy 

which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular 

circumstances of the Auditor General for the purpose 

of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The 

particular policies adopted by the Auditor General are 

described below. They have been applied consistently 

in dealing with items considered material in relation to 

the accounts.

(i) The accounts are prepared under the historical 

!(9$*!()A")$%()B*5(/%&"/*$(*'!!(.)$*+(#*$3"*

#"A'6.'$%()*(+*1#(1"#$7B*16')$*')/*"L.%15")$*')/*

intangible assets where material to their value to 

the business by reference to their current costs, in 

a form directed by HM Treasury, under paragraph 

13(1) of Schedule 8 of the Government of Wales 

Act 2006. They are presented in British pounds.

(ii) Certain standards and amendments to existing 

standards have been published and are 

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or 

after 1 April 2011 or later periods, but they have 

not been adopted early. None of these standards 

are expected to have a material impact on these 

&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9H

(iii) Gross fee income and other operating income 

are recognised on the value of chargeable work 

exclusive of VAT.

(iv) Operating income, whether derived from direct 

government grant or fees generated from audited 

bodies, is credited to the year of account in which 

the work is done. Income received in advance 

of the work being done is classed as deferred 

income. Funding drawn from the WCF is not 

direct government grant and is credited directly to 

$'01'7"#98*"L.%$7H*

(v) Costs incurred on audit work (ie, staff and 

!()$#'!$(#*&#5*!(9$9X*3'A"*J"")*/%#"!$67*'$$#%J.$"/*

$(*$3"*#"6"A')$*'!$%A%$7V*"01")/%$.#"*%9*$3")*

charged against unallocated funding from the 

G?IV*')/*.)'66(!'$"/*(A"#3"'/9*'#"*'$$#%J.$"/*$(*

each activity based on the value of the activity.

(vi) The PCSPS is an unfunded multi-employer 

/"&)"/*J")"&$*9!3"5"*$(*K3%!3*J($3*"516(7""*

and employer contribute. The Auditor General 

recognises the expected cost of providing 

pensions on a systematic and rational basis 

(A"#*$3"*1"#%(/*/.#%),*K3%!3*%$*J")"&$9*+#(5*

"516(7""98*9"#A%!"9*J7*1'75")$*$(*$3"*Y?=Y=*(+*

the amounts calculated on an accruing basis.

(vii) Operating lease rentals are charged on a  

straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease 

incentives received are recognised in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 

as an integral part of the total lease expense. 

G3"#"*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*")N(79*$3"*J")"&$*(+*

#")$-+#""*1"#%(/9*%)*6"'9"9B*$3'$*J")"&$*%9*!#"/%$"/*

evenly over the period from the inception of the 

6"'9"*.)$%6*$3"*&#9$*#")$*#"A%"KH

e2+$&IK&'//2(3+*3;&/23:$3+*23%& 

"3)&02#*/*$%&

Page 75



76         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

(viii) Intangible assets, which are software licences, 

are stated at amortised historic cost. The assets 

are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of the term of licence or useful economic 

life. Amortisation is calculated from the date the 

intangible asset commences its useful life.

W%0X* @"1#"!%'$%()*%9*1#(A%/"/*()*'66*1#(1"#$7B*16')$*')/*

"L.%15")$*'99"$9*!'6!.6'$"/*$(*K#%$"*(++*$3"*!(9$B*

less estimated residual value, of each asset in 

"L.'6*')).'6*%)9$'65")$9*(A"#*%$9*"01"!$"/*.9"+.6*

6%+"*'9*+(66(K9S

* * I.#)%$.#"*')/*&$$%),9* * \[*7"'#9

* * ?(51.$"#*"L.%15")$* * C*7"'#9

* * E+&!"*"L.%15")$* * ^*7"'#9

* g)/"#*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*!'1%$'6%9'$%()*1(6%!7B*

%)/%A%/.'6*')/*,#(.1"/*!(51.$"#*"L.%15")$*')/*

9(+$K'#"*%)*"0!"99*(+*]^B[[[V*($3"#*"L.%15")$*%)*

"0!"99*(+*]\B[[[*')/*(+&!"*#"+.#J%935")$9*'#"*

!'1%$'6%9"/H*@"1#"!%'$%()*%9*!'6!.6'$"/*+#(5*$3"*

date the asset commences its useful life.

(x) Receivables and work in progress are valued 

at estimated realisable value. Work in progress 

relates to amounts due on completed work where 

the fee is yet to be issued or where work done 

falls into different account periods. This is stated 

at full cost less provision for foreseeable losses 

and amounts billed on account. A provision for 

non-payment of debts is made in the accounts 

based on a probability of 10 per cent of debts 

older than 60 days becoming irrecoverable.

(xi) A provision for future leasehold property 

dilapidations is established in the Statement 

of Financial Position. This is built up through 

an annual dilapidations charge, calculated by 

'1167%),*')*')).'6*/%6'1%/'$%()*#'$"*$(*$3"*M((#*

area of the leased assets.

W0%%X* @"+"##"/*%)!(5"*#"1#"9")$9*%)!(5"*$3'$*3'9*J"")*

billed but not yet recognised. This is calculated 

by assessing the percentage completion of 

projects, recognising that proportion of expected 

fee income as revenue in the period with 

unrecognised, billed income being treated as 

deferred income.

W0%%%X* F3"*1#"1'#'$%()*(+*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*

#"L.%#"9*A'#%(.9*"9$%5'$"9*')/*'99.51$%()9*$(*

be made that affect the application of accounting 

policies and reported amounts. All such estimates 

and judgements are reviewed on an ongoing 

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is 

revised and in any future period affected.

* F3"*5(9$*9%,)%&!')$*'#"'9*(+*"9$%5'$%()*')/*

!#%$%!'6*N./,"5")$9*'#"S

T* Y#(A%9%()9*+(#*#"/.)/')!%"9*')/*9"A"#')!"9*

are based on projections of expected future 

pension payments. 

T* G(#O*%)*1#(,#"99*%9*A'6."/*'$*$3"*1"#!")$',"*(+*

!(516"$%()*(+*.)J%66"/*K(#OH*@"+"##"/*%)!(5"*

is calculated based on an assessment of 

project completion, as explained above.

T* >*1#(A%9%()*+(#*J'/*')/*/(.J$+.6*/"J$9*%9*

calculated as 10 per cent of debts that are 

older than 60 days.

T* a'$"#%'6*)()-!.##")$*'99"$9*'#"*#"A%"K"/*

annually to assess if they have suffered any 

impairment.
 

(xiv) Events after the statement of Financial Position 

/'$"*$3'$*5'7*#"L.%#"*/%9!6(9.#"*(#*'/N.9$5")$*%)*

'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*$3"*#"L.%#"5")$9*(+*P>=*\[*'#"*

considered up to the date on which the accounts 

are authorised for issue. This is interpreted as the 

/'$"*()*K3%!3*$3"*P)/"1")/")$*>./%$(#89*#"1(#$*%9*

signed.

Statements of accounts

Page 76



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         77

X2/"#& 

;2:$73<$3+&

audit  

£000

X2/"#&

;2:$73<$3+&

grant 

/$7+*./"+*23

£000

NHS

£000

Central 

;2:$73<$3+

£000

'/+*:*+*$%&

funded by 

WCF

£000

Total

£000

@3/2<$&"3)&.3"3/*3;

Audit fees 9,685 1,870 4,181 1,604 17,340

Grant 1,836 1,836

G?I*&)')!" 5,047 5,047

Total 11,521 1,870 4,181 1,604 5,047 24,223

Expenditure (10,651) (1,459) (3,697) (1,604) (5,047) (22,458)

870 411 484 0 0 1,765

C$7&"12:$&"3"#6%*% 1,765

WCF resource (5,047)

Corporation tax (13)

Interest receivable 8

Other income 250

Per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (3,037)

Reconciliation to Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure

F3"*%)!(5"B*&)')!%),*')/*!(9$9*(+*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*'!$%A%$%"9*+(#*Z[\[-\\*'#"*

9.55'#%9"/*%)*$3"*+(66(K%),*$'J6"S

e2+$&SK&'3"#6%*%&2-&3$+&$=0$3)*+(7$& 

by segment 

Page 77



78         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&JK&,+5$7&20$7"+*3;&*3/2<$

Year to 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

Year to 

JI&R"7/5

STIT

\TTT

Legal costs reimbursed 3 0

Publications and conferences 0 17

="!()/5")$9*(+*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*9$'++*$(*($3"#*(#,')%9'$%()9 94 344

Sundry income 153 10

250 371

@3/2<$&"3)&

.3"3/*3;

£000

Expenditure  

£000

Net 

expenditure

£000

Central government 6,774 (6,785) (11)

Local government 12,973 (12,964) 9

Health 5,881 (5,870) 11

Totals 25,628 25,619 9

I%,.#"9*+(#*Z[[_-\[*K"#"*'9*+(66(K9S

Statements of accounts

Page 78



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         79

e2+$&iK&[+"--&"3)&"%%2/*"+$)&/2%+%&

More detailed information in respect of the remuneration and pension entitlements of the senior 

management is shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 56 to 60.

G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*9$'++*'#"*"6%,%J6"*$(*N(%)*$3"*Y?=Y=H*F3%9*%9*')*.)+.)/"/*5.6$%-"516(7"#*

/"&)"/*J")"&$*9!3"5"*J.$*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%9*.)'J6"*$(*%/")$%+7*%$9*93'#"*(+*$3"*.)/"#67%),*

'99"$9*')/*6%'J%6%$%"9H*>*+.66*'!$.'#%'6*A'6.'$%()*K'9*!'##%"/*(.$*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\[H*@"$'%69*!')*J"*

+(.)/*%)*$3"*#"9(.#!"*'!!(.)$9*(+*$3"*?'J%)"$*E+&!"S*?%A%6*=.1"#')).'$%() 

(www.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk).

Employer contribution rates are based on salary levels and contribution rates vary between  

\`He*1"#*!")$*$(*ZjHC*1"#*!")$*WZ[[_-\[S*\`He*1"#*!")$*$(*ZjHC*1"#*!")$XH*F($'6*"516(7"#*

!()$#%J.$%()9*'5(.)$"/*$(*]ZB\Z_B[[[*WZ[[_-\[S*]ZBC\eB[[[XH*F3"*9!3"5"89*'!$.'#7*#"A%"K9*

employer contributions every four years following a full scheme revaluation. The contribution 

#'$"9*#"M"!$*J")"&$9*'9*$3"7*'#"*'!!#."/B*)($*K3")*$3"*!(9$9*'#"*'!$.'667*%)!.##"/B*')/*#"M"!$*

past experience of the scheme.

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an 

"516(7"#*!()$#%J.$%()H*@.#%),*$3"*7"'#B*()"*"516(7""*$((O*'/A')$',"*(+*$3%9*(1$%()H

a*`

Year to 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

Year to 

JI&R"7/5

STIT

\TTT

[+"--&/2%+%

Staff salaries 10,702 11,370

ARMC member salaries 32 27

Social security costs 1,045 1,033

Pension costs 2,135 2,864

13,914 15,294

Car scheme 684 777

=.J9!#%1$%()9*')/*($3"#*J")"&$9 48 45

14,646 16,116

Audit and inspection contractors 887 725

15,533 16,841

Redundancy, early retirement and severance costs 553 1,420

16,086 18,261

Included in salaries are costs of staff seconded to other 

organisations 438 344

Page 79



80         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

a**`

Year to 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

Year to 

JI&R"7/5

STIT

Staff numbers

>A"#',"*).5J"#*(+*+.66-$%5"-"L.%A'6")$B*gk-J'9"/B*

permanent staff employed during the year 228 242

Audit and inspection contractors (average in year) 17 21

F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*.9"9*'*).5J"#*(+*$"51(#'#7*'./%$*')/*%)91"!$%()*!()$#'!$(#9*'$*!"#$'%)*

times in the year to meet demand for resources at peak times.

A number of employees left under exit packages during 2010-11 and 2009-10 as summarised 

J"6(KS

F3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*(1"#'$"/*'*A(6.)$'#7*9"A"#')!"*9!3"5"*/.#%),*Z[\[-\\H*F3%9*9!3"5"*

was the result of workforce planning and has resulted in reductions to the cost base of the Wales 

>./%$*E+&!"H

D'#67*#"$%#"5")$*')/*/"1'#$.#"*!(9$9*3'A"*J"")*1'%/*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*

policy, which has been agreed with recognised trade unions. Additional costs not met by the 

Y?=Y=*'#"*5"$*J7*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H

e2+$&fK&]$)(3)"3/*$%8&$"7#6&7$+*7$<$3+%& 

"3)&%$:$7"3/$% 

STITAII STTWAIT

4=*+&0"/>";$&/2%+&

band

Number of 

/2<0(#%276&

7$)(3)"3/*$%

Number 

of other 

departures 

agreed 

Total number 

of exit 

0"/>";$%&16&

/2%+&1"3)&

Number of 

/2<0(#%276&

7$)(3)"3/*$%

Number 

of other 

departures 

agreed

Total number 

of exit 

0"/>";$%&16&

/2%+&1"3)

Less than £10,000 1 1

£10,000 – £25,000 2 2 1 1

£25,000 – £50,000 5 5

£50,000 – £100,000 1 1

£100,000 – £150,000 6 6

£200,000 – £250,000 1 1

£300,000 – £350,000 1 1

£700,000 – £750,000 1 1

Statements of accounts

Page 80



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         81

Year to 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

Year to 

JI&R"7/5

STIT

\TTT

Y'75")$9*$(*1#%A'$"*'!!(.)$')!7*&#59 3,264 3,880

Research and other consultancy costs 115 216

3,379 4,096

Year to 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

Year to 

JI&R"7/5

STIT

\TTT

Accommodation

- Rent lease costs 402 455

- Other costs 369 393

Supplies and services 1,227 1,691

Recruitment and transfers 33 15

@"1#"!%'$%()* 265 203

Audit fee 25 13

Professional fees 251 158

Travel and subsistence 448 528

Training 226 206

Increase/(decrease) in provision for bad debts (253) 144

2,993 3,806

These costs relate to services bought in by the Auditor General that directly relate to audit, 

inspection or research functions.

Professional fees represent legal and other professional fees and during 2010-11 include  

non-recurring exceptional costs.

e2+$&bK&Z2(;5+A*3&%$7:*/$%

e2+$&hK&,+5$7&20$7"+*3;&/2%+%

Page 81



82         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&gK&C720$7+68&0#"3+&"3)&$U(*0<$3+& 

Furniture

"3)&.++*3;%

\TTT

Information 

+$/532#2;6

\TTT

,-./$

$U(*0<$3+

\TTT

Total

\TTT

Cost

At 31 March 2010 918 884 36 1,838

Additions 7 1 0 8

@%91(9'69 (5) 0 (4) (9)

b"!6'99%&"/*$(*%)$'),%J6"*'99"$9 0 (625) 0 (625)

At 31 March 2011 920 260 32 1,212

Depreciation

At 31 March 2010 214 332 24 570

Provided in period 91 142 4 237

@%91(9'69 (3) (0) (4) (7)

b"!6'99%&"/*$(*%)$'),%J6"*'99"$9 0 (334) 0 (334)

At 31 March 2011 302 140 24 466

Net book value

At 31 March 2011 618 120 8 746

At 31 March 2010 704 552 12 1,268

7;;&/)#'*'$%'2

Owned 618 120 8 746

Statements of accounts

Page 82



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         83

Furniture

"3)&.++*3;%

\TTT

Information 

+$/532#2;6

\TTT

,-./$

$U(*0<$3+

\TTT

Total

\TTT

Cost

At 31 March 2009 843 653 27 1,523

Additions 76 252 9 337

@%91(9'69 (1) (21) 0 (22)

At 31 March 2010 918 884 36 1,838

Depreciation

At 31 March 2009 127 244 18 389

Provided in period 88 109 6 203

@%91(9'69 (1) (21) 0 (22)

At 31 March 2010 214 332 24 570

Net book value

At 31 March 2010 704 552 12 1,268

At 31 March 2009 716 409 9 1,134

7;;&/)#'*'$%'2

Owned 704 552 12 1,268

In the opinion of the Auditor General, there is no material difference between the net book value 

of assets at current values and at their historical cost.

 

Page 83



84         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&WK&@3+"3;*1#$&"%%$+%& 

Intangible assets are software licences.

Total

\TTT

Cost

At 31 March 2010 120

Additions 59

b"!6'99%&"/*+#(5*PF*'99"$9 625

At 31 March 2011 804

Amortisation

At 31 March 2010 0

Provided in period 28

b"!6'99%&"/*+#(5*PF*'99"$9 334

At 31 March 2011 362

Net book value

At 31 March 2011 442

At 31 March 2010 120

Total

\TTT

Cost

At 31 March 2009 0

Additions 120

At 31 March 2010 120

Amortisation

At 31 March 2009 0

Provided in period 0

At 31 March 2010 0

Net book value

At 31 March 2010 120

At 31 March 2009 0

Statements of accounts

Page 84



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         85

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

H7")$&7$/$*:"1#$%

– Central government 91 173 134

– Local government 495 542 825

– NHS 402 715 221

Work in progress

– Central government 355 420 486

– Local government 211 151 346

– NHS 52 26 344

1,606 2,027 2,356

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Opening provision 280 136 89

Provision made/(released) in the year (253) 144 47

Closing provision 27 280 136

Bad and doubtful debt provisions (these are netted against the appropriate class of debtor in the 

'J(A"*')'679%9XS

e2+$&ITK&H7")$&7$/$*:"1#$%&"3)&927>&*3&

progress 

Page 85



86         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&IIK&,+5$7&7$/$*:"1#$% 

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Other receivables 104 294 376

Prepayments and accrued income 453 159 137

Loans to employees 5 7 19

562 460 532

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Central government bodies 845 612 651

Local government bodies 744 736 1,171

NHS bodies 456 755 565

Balances with bodies external to government 123 384 501

2,168 2,487 2,888

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

P)!6./"/*%)*($3"#*/"J$(#9S

d*;(.9%),*#"6(!'$%()*9!3"5"S*'/A')!"9*$(*9$'++ 3 5 14

                

>5(.)$9*+'66%),*/."*'+$"#*()"*7"'#*%)!6./"/*%)*$3"*'J(A"*&,.#"9S

F3"*#"!"%A'J6"9*J'6')!"9*%)*<($"9*\[*')/*\\*!')*J"*')'679"/*%)$(*$3"*+(66(K%),*!'$",(#%"9S

Statements of accounts

Page 86



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         87

e2+$&ISK&V"%5&"3)&/"%5&$U(*:"#$3+%

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Current account 3,060 2,344 759

Euro account 1 1 0

Global Sterling Fund 955 951 297

4,016 3,296 1,056

STITAII

\TTT

STTWAIT 

\TTT

Balance at 1 April 3,296 1,056

<"$*!3'),"*%)*!'93*')/*!'93*"L.%A'6")$9 720 2,240

Balance at 31 March 4,016 3,296

The Current account includes an overnight interest bearing facility. The Euro account is 

maintained to simplify occasional overseas transactions. 

 

The Global Sterling Fund is provided by the RBS Group. This fund aims to protect capital 

J'6')!"9*"A")*%)*$%5"9*(+*&)')!%'6*%)9$'J%6%$7*K%$3%)*$3"*&)')!%'6*5'#O"$9B*K3%69$*(++"#%),*'*

wholesale money market return. The fund is structured to ensure that the highest credit ratings 

'#"*5'%)$'%)"/B*)'5"67*>>>*#'$"/*(#*"L.%A'6")$*K%$3*=$')/'#/*n*Y((#B*I%$!3*')/*a((/7*#'$%),*

agencies.

Page 87



88         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&IJK&H7")$&0"6"1#$%&"3)&2+5$7&

/(77$3+&#*"1*#*+*$%&

e2+$&IiK&D$-$77$)&*3/2<$&

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Trade payables 47 175 168

VAT 330 226 368

Accrual for holiday entitlement not yet taken 696 558 420

Other accruals 598 625 549

1,671 1,584 1,505

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

Central government bodies 125 66 74

Local government bodies 1,686 2,711 2,197

NHS bodies 1,567 1,931 1,208

Public corporations 0 0 17

Balances with bodies external to government 1,622 1,578 1,377

5,000 6,286 4,873

JI&R"7/5&

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STIT 

\TTT

JI&R"7/5&

STTW& 

\TTT

@"+"##"/*%)!(5"* 3,329 4,702 3,368

3,329 4,702 3,368

P)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*'!!(.)$%),*9$')/'#/9B*K"*'#"*#"L.%#"/*$(*'99"99*$3"*1"#!")$',"*!(516"$%()*

of projects and recognise that proportion of expected fee income as revenue in the period. 

@"+"##"/*%)!(5"*#"1#"9")$9*%)!(5"*$3'$*3'9*J"")*J%66"/*J.$*)($*7"$*#"!(,)%9"/H

@"+"##"/*%)!(5"*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*%)!6./"9*'*9.5*(+*'11#(0%5'$"67*]j[[B[[[*$3'$*3'9*J"")*

refunded to audited bodies since that date.

F3"*1'7'J6"*J'6')!"9*%)*<($"9*\C*')/*\j*!')*J"*')'679"/*%)$(*$3"*+(66(K%),*!'$",(#%"9S

Statements of accounts

Page 88



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         89

e2+$&IfK&C72:*%*23%&-27&#*"1*#*+*$%&"3)&

/5"7;$%

Dilapidations

\TTT

Early 

retirement and 

%$:$7"3/$

\TTT

Totals

\TTT

I&'07*#&STTW

 - Original 97 0 97

 - Prior year adjustment 0 791 791

 - Restated 97 791 888

Y#(A%/"/*%)*Z[[_-\[S

- Original 48 715 763

 - Prior year adjustment 0 747 747

 - Restated (where applicable) 48 1,462 1,510

Provisions utilised in year

- Original (65) 0 (65)

 - Prior year adjustment 0 (202) (202)

 - Restated (where applicable) (65) (202) (267)

JI&R"7/5&STIT&a7$%+"+$)` 80 2,051 2,131

Provided in year 38 406 444

Provisions utilised in year 0 (994) (994)

JI&R"7/5&STII 118 1,463 1,581

Not later than one year 0 458 458

Later than one year and not later 

$3')*&A"*7"'#9 118 825 943

2'$"#*$3')*&A"*7"'#9 0 180 180

Totals 118 1,463 1,581

F3"*/%6'1%/'$%()9*1#(A%9%()*#"1#"9")$9*')*"9$%5'$"*(+*$3"*!(9$9*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*5'7*%)!.#*

%)*5'O%),*,((/*%$9*6"'9"/*1#(1"#$%"9*'$*$3"*")/*(+*$3"*6"'9"9H*@%6'1%/'$%()9*'#"*!'6!.6'$"/*J7*

'1167%),*')*')).'6*/%6'1%/'$%()*#'$"*$(*$3"*M((#*'#"'*(+*$3"*6"'9"/*'99"$H

The early retirement and severance provisions represent the future liability of the Wales Audit 

E+&!"*%)*#"91"!$*(+*5"5J"#9*(+*9$'++*K3(*3'A"*6"+$*.)/"#*#"/.)/')!7B*"'#67*#"$%#"5")$*')/*

severance schemes. 

>)'679%9*(+*"01"!$"/*$%5%),S

Page 89



90         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&IbK&G*3"3/*"#&/2<<*+<$3+%

There were revenue commitments at 31 March 2011 in respect of non-cancellable car leases 

K3%!3*"01%#"S

F3"#"*K"#"*#"A")."*!(55%$5")$9*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*%)*#"91"!$*(+*(+&!"*'!!(55(/'$%()*6"'9"9*

K3%!3*"01%#"S

E+&!"*'!!(55(/'$%()*6"'9"9*'#"*9.JN"!$*$(*1"#%(/%!*#")$*#"A%"K9H

JI&R"7/5

STII

\TTT

JI&R"7/5

&STIT 

\TTT

Within one year 51 10

G%$3%)*()"*$(*&A"*7"'#9 419 582

470 592

STII

\TTT

STII

Number of 

properties

STIT 

\TTT

STIT

Number of 

properties

Within one year 0 0 0 0

I#(5*()"*$(*&A"*7"'#9* 231 3 135 2

EA"#*&A"*7"'#9* 4,293 1 4,825 2

4,524 4 4,960 4

Statements of accounts

Page 90



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         91

e2+$&IhK&X2%%$%&"3)&%0$/*"#&0"6<$3+%

e2+$&IgK&D$7*:"+*:$%&"3)&.3"3/*"#&

instruments

[0$/*"#&0"6<$3+%K

A number of employees left under voluntary and early retirement schemes during 2010-11 and 

2009-10, as disclosed in Notes 4(i) and 5.

X2%%$%K

A payment of £1,080 was made for training provided to Mr Anthony Snow after his last 

"++"!$%A"*/'7*(+*9"#A%!"*K%$3*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H*<(*"!()(5%!*A'6."*K'9*/"#%A"/*+#(5*$3"*

1'75")$*J7*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"H

There were no other disclosable losses or special payments in 2010-11 or 2009-10.

IAS 32 =%'*'$%*:),';/153&'/;>)?%;$:-;51&)*'+)01&;&'/*/%-' and IAS 39 =%'*'$%*:),';/153&'/;>)

Recognition and Measurement*#"L.%#"*/%9!6(9.#"*(+*$3"*#(6"*K3%!3*&)')!%'6*%)9$#.5")$9*

have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking 

%$9*'!$%A%$%"9H*EK%),*$(*$3"*)'$.#"*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*'!$%A%$%"9*')/*$3"*K'7*%)*K3%!3*

$3"*(1"#'$%()9*'#"*&)')!"/B*$3"*(+&!"*%9*)($*"01(9"/*$(*'*9%,)%&!')$*6"A"6*(+*&)')!%'6*#%9OH*

>6$3(.,3*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*!')*J(##(K*+.)/9B*$3"*(+&!"*3'9*)($*J"")*#"L.%#"/*$(*/(*9(*%)*

$3%9*&)')!%'6*7"'#H*F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*!')*'69(*%)A"9$*9.#16.9*+.)/9B*K3%!3*%9*/()"*$3#(.,3*

an overnight interest bearing account and in the Global Sterling Fund (see Note 12). These 

'!$%A%$%"9*/(*)($*,%A"*#%9"*$(*')7*9%,)%&!')$*&)')!%'6*#%9OH

X*U(*)*+6&7*%>

:%A")*$3"*)'$.#"*(+*(.#*J.9%)"99B*(.#*$(6"#')!"*(+*#%9O*%)*'#"'9*(+*&)')!%'6*5')',"5")$*%9*6(KH*

In light of this attitude, and the backing of the WCF, the Auditor General is not exposed to 

9%,)%&!')$*6%L.%/%$7*#%9O9H

Interest rate risk

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*&)')!%'6*'99"$9*')/*6%'J%6%$%"9B*K%$3*$3"*"0!"1$%()*(+*%)A"9$5")$*%)!(5"B*

are not exposed to interest rate risk.

G27$*;3&/(77$3/6&7*%>

F3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*"01(9.#"*$(*+(#"%,)*!.##")!7*#%9O*%9*)",6%,%J6"*'9*()67*A"#7*95'66*

forward purchases of foreign currency are made in connection with foreign travel and other 

associated costs such as hotels. Also, any fees generated from foreign work or secondments 

are translated when received. Any exchange differences are recorded in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income for the year in arriving at the operating surplus.

G"*7&:"#($%

F3"#"*%9*)(*/%++"#")!"*J"$K"")*$3"*J((O*A'6."9*')/*+'%#*A'6."9*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*

&)')!%'6*'99"$9*')/*6%'J%6%$%"9*'9*'$*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*WC\*a'#!3*Z[\[S*)%6XH*

Page 91



92         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

e2+$&IWK&V23+*3;$3+&#*"1*#*+*$%

e2+$&STK&]$#"+$)&0"7+6&+7"3%"/+*23%

The Auditor General has continued to apply the VAT treatments adopted by predecessor 

J(/%"9B*)'5"67*$3"*>./%$*?(55%99%()*%)*G'6"9*')/*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*%)*G'6"9H*

@%9!.99%()9*3'A"*J"")*(),(%),*K%$3*;a*b"A")."*')/*?.9$(59*+(#*'*).5J"#*(+*7"'#9*$(*

!()&#5*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*h>F*9$'$.9*')/*$(*/"$"#5%)"*$3"*'11#(1#%'$"*9$'$.9*(+*3%9*h>F*

supplies. It is not possible at present to determine whether any liability will crystallise, and if 

9(B*K3'$*$3"*6%O"67*L.')$.5*(+*9.!3*'*6%'J%6%$7*5%,3$*J"H*G"#"*'*9%,)%&!')$*6%'J%6%$7*$(*!#79$'66%9"B*

the Auditor General would need to obtain funding from the WCF or from additional audit fees 

to meet that liability.

The Auditor General is a corporation sole established under statute and has had a number of 

material transactions with the WCF and with his audited bodies and the bodies audited by his 

appointed auditors.

@.#%),*$3"*7"'#B*)(*5"5J"#9*(+*$3"*>ba?B*)(#*O"7*5"5J"#9*(+*9$'++*)(#*$3"%#*#"6'$"/*1'#$%"9*

had undertaken any material transaction with the Auditor General.

e2+$&SIK&C7*27&6$"7&")M(%+<$3+%

F3"*+(66(K%),*'/N.9$5")$9*3'A"*J"")*5'/"*$(*$3"*&,.#"9*1#"A%(.967*#"1(#$"/*+(#*Z[[_-\[S

!$#%5&V23%2#*)"+$)&G(3)&.3"3/*3;

F3%9*&)')!%),*(+*]^B[jeB[[[*K'9*%)!(##"!$67*%)!6./"/*'9*%)!(5"*%)*$3"*Z[[_-\[*=$'$"5")$*

(+*?(51#"3")9%A"*P)!(5"H*F3%9*&)')!%),*3'9*J"")*#"!6'99%&"/*$(*$'01'7"#98*"L.%$7*')/*

$3"*Z[[_-\[*!(51'#'$%A"*&,.#"9*3'A"*J"")*#"9$'$"/*'!!(#/%),67H*F3'$*&)')!%),*&,.#"*

incorrectly included a receivable of £27,000 for cash not drawn from the WCF, which has 

J"")*"0!6./"/*+#(5*G?I*&)')!"*')/*/"J$(#9*%)*$3"9"*9$'$"5")$9H

C72:*%*23&-27&$"7#6&7$+*7$<$3+%

Full provisions for the costs of early retirements and severances were not included in the 

accounts for 2009-10 and earlier years. A prior year adjustment has been made in the  

Z[\[-\\*'!!(.)$9*$(*!(##"!$*+(#*$3%9*(5%99%()H*F3%9*%9*#"M"!$"/*$3#(.,3*<($"*\^B*1#(A%9%()9B*

')/*$3"*=$'$"5")$*(+*F'01'7"#98*DL.%$7B*K3%!3*/%9!6(9"*$3"*&)')!%'6*%51'!$*(+*5'O%),*$3%9*

prior year adjustment.

V2%+&2-&/"0*+"#

>9*#"L.%#"/*J7*;a*F#"'9.#7B*&,.#"9*+(#*Z[[_-\[*3'A"*J"")*#"9$'$"/*$(*#"5(A"*$3"*)($%()'6*

cost of capital charge in accordance with changes to the Financial Reporting Manual. The 

charge of £4,000 made in 2009-10, and the corresponding reversal of that charge in the 

7"'#*W]jB[[[XB*3'A"*J"")*"0!6./"/*+#(5*$3"*!(51'#'$%A"*&,.#"9*%)*$3"9"*'!!(.)$9H**

Statements of accounts

Page 92



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         93

Report of the Auditor General 

for Scotland to the National 

Assembly for Wales

@3+72)(/+*23

\H* P*9.J5%$*$3"9"*'!!(.)$9*')/*57*'./%$*!"#$%&!'$"B*$(,"$3"#*K%$3*$3%9*#"1(#$B*K3%!3*P*3'A"*

prepared under the Government of Wales Act 2006. The audit opinions on the accounts 

+(#*$3"*7"'#*")/"/*C\*a'#!3*Z[\\*'#"*)($*L.'6%&"/H*a7*'./%$*!"#$%&!'$"*%)!6./"9*57*

(1%)%()*$3'$*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*,%A"*'*$#."*')/*+'%#*A%"K*%)*'!!(#/')!"*K%$3*$3"*

Government of Wales Act 2006 and directions made thereunder by HM Treasury. It also 

%)!6./"9*57*(1%)%()*$3'$*$3"*"01")/%$.#"*')/*%)!(5"*93(K)*%)*$3"*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*

have been applied to the purposes intended by the National Assembly for Wales and the 

&)')!%'6*$#')9'!$%()9*!()+(#5*K%$3*$3"*'.$3(#%$%"9*$3'$*,(A"#)*$3"5H

Z"/>;72(3)&+2&+5$&]$027+

ZH* @.#%),*Z[\[m\\*$3"*Y.J6%!*>!!(.)$9*?(55%$$""*(+*$3"*<'$%()'6*>99"5J67*+(#*G'6"9*

held a number of hearings into the 2009/10 accounts of the Auditor General for Wales 

and related matters, which culminated in their report of March 2011 titled “Accounting, 

,(A"#)')!"*')/*1#(1#%"$7*%99."9*'$*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"oH****

3. As part of my audit of the 2010/11 accounts I have considered how the recommendations 

of the Public Accounts Committee in relation to the 2009/10 accounts have been 

'//#"99"/*')/*P*#"!(#/*57*&)/%),9*%)*$3%9*#"1(#$H

jH* F(*#"5"/7*$3"*+'%6%),9*$3'$*(!!.##"/*%)*1#"A%(.9*&)')!%'6*9$'$"5")$9*$3"*?(55%$$""*

#"!(55")/"/*$3'$S**

T* $3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*93(.6/*9""O*')*(0)"+$)&"//2(3+%&)*7$/+*23 from HM 

Treasury +2&7$Y$/+&+5$&0"%%*3;&2-&+5$&B2:$73<$3+&2-&!"#$%&'/+&STTb, the 

"9$'J6%935")$*(+*$3"*G"693*?()9(6%/'$"/*I.)/B*')/*$3"*9$'$.$(#7*#"L.%#"5")$*+(#*

"01")/%$.#"*J7*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*$(*J"*'.$3(#%9"/*J7*'*J./,"$*5($%()*(+*$3"*

>99"5J67V

T* +5$&STITkII&"//2(3+%&%52(#)&/2<0#6&-(##6&9*+5 the revised accounts direction and 

the Financial Reporting Manual taking account of all the previous "//2(3+*3;&"3)&

reporting issues raised*J7*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*($3"#9V*')/

T* %)*1'#$%!.6'#B*+5$&STTWkIT&/2<0"7"+*:$&.;(7$%&+2&1$ shown in the 2010-11 accounts 

should be restated*K%$3*'*)($"*!()&#5%),*$3"*"0!"99*"01")/%$.#"*+(#*$3'$*7"'#H*P$*%9*

for the Auditor General to decide how and over what period the resulting negative 

reserves should be restored but his plans for doing so should also be disclosed. 

 

5.     Below, I consider each of these recommendations in turn.

Page 93



94         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

d0)"+$)&"//2(3+%&)*7$/+*23&+2&7$Y$/+&+5$&

0"%%*3;&2-&+5$&B2:$73<$3+&2-&!"#$%&'/+&STTb

`H* >*)"K*'!!(.)$9*/%#"!$%()*K'9*#"L."9$"/*+#(5*;a*F#"'9.#7*%)*@"!"5J"#*Z[\[B*K%$3*'*

draft received in January 2011. Following consultation with the Welsh Government, the 

<'$%()'6*>99"5J67*+(#*G'6"9*')/*>./%$*=!($6')/*'*&)'6*/%#"!$%()*K'9*%99."/*%)*l.)"*

2011.

7. A key element of this recommendation was the adoption of a new primary statement, 

the Summary of Resource Outturn, which records the outturn against the use of 

resources authorised by a budget motion of the Assembly. This year this new statement 

/"5()9$#'$"9*$3'$*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'689*"01")/%$.#"*+(#*Z[\[m\\*K'9*K%$3%)*$3"*#"9(.#!"*

and cash limits established by the relevant budget motion of the National Assembly for 

Wales. The accounts of the Auditor General cover local authority activity, which is not 

part of the budget motion, and central government and NHS activity which is the basis for 

the budget motion. The accounting policy on cost allocation is, therefore, fundamental in 

determining the budget and presenting the outturn position.  

cH* P)*6%)"*K%$3*#"!(55")/'$%()9*+#(5*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*($3"#9B*$3"*!(9$*

allocation accounting policy has been updated to clarify the practice in this area, 

!()&#5%),*$3"*'!!(.)$%),*1#%)!%16"9*$3'$*3'A"*J"")*!()9%9$")$67*'116%"/*%)*/#'K%),*

up budgets and reporting outturn in 2010/11 and previous years. However, it is also 

recognised that these arrangements need to be reviewed going forward so that the 

approach to cost allocation and therefore compliance with the fee setting provisions 

of the Government of Wales Act 2006 can be transparently demonstrated from the 

budget submission of the Auditor General for Wales through to the budget motion of the 

>99"5J67*')/*9.J9"L.")$*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),H

9. The implementation of the new accounts direction also ensured that funding from the 

National Assembly for Wales was correctly brought to account as a movement on 

reserves rather than as income, as had been the case previously.

Statements of accounts

Page 94



Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11         95

H5$&STITkII&"//2(3+%&%52(#)&/2<0#6&-(##6&9*+5&

"//2(3+*3;&"3)&7$027+*3;&*%%($%&7"*%$)

10. There were a number of detailed recommendations arising from the reports by the 

<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*')/*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"*%)$"#)'6*'./%$H*F3"*#"!(55")/'$%()9*

#"6'$%),*$(*$3"*Z[\[m\\*'!!(.)$9*!(A"#"/*$3"*#"9$'$"5")$*(+*&,.#"9*$(*'!!(.)$*+(#*

1")9%()*!(55%$5")$9*%)*6%)"*K%$3*'!!(.)$%),*9$')/'#/9*W9""*J"6(KXV*/%9!6(9.#"*(+*$3"*

#"5.)"#'$%()*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"9V*'*#"A%"K*(+*$3"*'!!(.)$%),*+(#*J'/*/"J$9V*

and the governance and review arrangements incorporated in the accounts preparation 

process. All recommendations relating to the 2010/11 accounts have been implemented, 

with one exception, relating to accounting for the remuneration of the Auditor General for 

Wales.

\\H* F3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*#"!(55")/"/*")3')!"/*/%9!6(9.#"*(+*$3"*#"5.)"#'$%()*(+*$3"*

Auditor General for Wales in the Remuneration Report and the inclusion of the costs in 

$3"*'!!(.)$9*$3"59"6A"9V*%)*5'O%),*$3%9*6'$$"#*#"!(55")/'$%()*$3"*<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"*

recognised that, because the costs are met directly by the Welsh Consolidated Fund, 

there would need to be various notional entries and reconciliations in the accounts.   

P*!()!.#*K%$3*$3"*G'6"9*>./%$*E+&!"89*A%"K*$3'$*")3')!"/*/%9!6(9.#"*%)*$3"*b"5.)"#'$%()*

b"1(#$*K'9*'11#(1#%'$"*')/*9.+&!%")$V*')/*$3'$*$(*%)!6./"*)($%()'6*")$#%"9*%)*6%)"*K%$3*$3"*

<'$%()'6*>./%$*E+&!"89*#"!(55")/'$%()*K(.6/*3'A"*'//"/*.))"!"99'#7*!(516"0%$7H

Page 95



96         Annual Report & Accounts 2010-11

H5$&STTWkIT&/2<0"7"+*:$&.;(7$%&+2&1$&7$%+"+$)

\ZH** F3"*Z[[_m\[*&,.#"9*3'A"*J"")*#"9$'$"/*$(*'!!(.)$*+(#*"'#67*#"$%#"5")$9*%)*6%)"*K%$3*

'!!(.)$%),*9$')/'#/9H*F3%9*#"L.%#"/*'*$($'6*Y#%(#*Y"#%(/*>/N.9$5")$*(+*]\HCC`*5%66%()*

compared to the position previously reported. The reserves position at 31 March 2010 is 

'*/"&!%$*(+*]\HZj`*5%66%()B*%)*!(51'#%9()*K%$3*$3"*1#"A%(.967*#"1(#$"/*1(9%$%()*(+*'*9.#16.9*

of £0.117 million. In accordance with accountability rules for the National Assembly for 

Wales, a Prior Period Adjustment relating to the use of resources is brought to account in 

the Summary of Resource Outturn for 2010/11, it having not been brought to account in 

previous years. Applying the cost allocation accounting policy (see paragraph 8 above), 

£0.544 million of the total Prior Period Adjustment is brought to account in the Summary 

of Resource Outturn, being the share attributable to Central Government and NHS 

work. Taken together with an appropriate share of capital expenditure, the total resource 

outturn remains within the limit of £5.047 million established by the 2010/11 Budget 

a($%()H*F3"*)"$*!'93*#"L.%#"5")$*'69(*#"5'%)9*K%$3%)*$3"*!(##"91()/%),*6%5%$*(+* 

£5.074 million. The accounts show that £0.629 million is repayable to the Welsh 

Consolidated Fund.

13. The resulting net reserves position at 31 March 2011 is available reserves of  

][H\`Z*5%66%()H*F3"*$.#)*'#(.)/*+#(5*$3"*#"9$'$"/*/"&!%$*1(9%$%()*(+*]\HZj`*5%66%()*'$* 

C\*a'#!3*Z[\[*#"M"!$9*$3"*9%,)%&!')$*#"/.!$%()*%)*)"$*"01")/%$.#"*%)*Z[\[m\\*!(51'#"/*

to the previous year.

\jH* ?(51'#'$%A"*&,.#"9*+(#*$3"*=.55'#7*(+*b"9(.#!"*E.$$.#)*+(#*Z[[_m\[*'#"*)($*%)!6./"/H*

F3%9*#"M"!$9*$3'$B*%)*1#"A%(.9*7"'#9B*!'1%$'6*"01")/%$.#"*K'9*)($*9"1'#'$"67*%/")$%&"/*%)*

either the budget or the outturn against budget reported in the accounts.  This issue will 

J"*!()9%/"#"/*%)*$3"*#"A%"K*(+*$3"*J./,"$%),*')/*#"1(#$%),*%/")$%&"/*'$*1'#',#'13*cH*

V23/#(%*23%

15. The recommended actions arising from the reviews undertaken and the report of the 

Public Accounts Committee in relation to the preparation of the 2010/11 accounts of the 

>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"9*3'A"*J"")*%516"5")$"/H*F3"9"*%)!6./"/S*;a*F#"'9.#7*%99.%),*

'*)"K*'!!(.)$9*/%#"!$%()V*$3"*#"9$'$"5")$*(+*Z[[_m\[*'!!(.)$9*&,.#"9B*%)*1'#$%!.6'#*$(*

'!!(.)$*1#(1"#67*+(#*1")9%()*6%'J%6%$%"9V*')/*$3"*'/(1$%()*(+*'*#"9(.#!"*'!!(.)$%),*+(#5'$H**

16. Further development of budgeting and cost allocation arrangements is underway as 

1'#$*(+*$3"*1#"1'#'$%()*+(#*$3"*9.J5%99%()*(+*$3"*>./%$(#*:")"#'6*+(#*G'6"98*J./,"$*

+(#*Z[\Zm\CH*F3%9*93(.6/*%51#(A"*$3"*J'9%9*+(#*"9$%5'$"9B*&)')!%'6*#"1(#$%),*')/*

accountability in future years.

ROBERT W BLACK

Auditor General for Scotland

9 September 2011

Statements of accounts

Page 96



 

 

 

Auditor General for 
Wales  

Annual report on the 
2010/11 audit 

Prepared for the Auditor General 
for Scotland 

September 2011 

  

Page 97



 

 

 

Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and Accountability 

(Scotland) Act 2000. It provides services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts 

Commission. Together they ensure that the Scottish Government and public sector bodies in 

Scotland are held to account for the proper, efficient and effective use of public funds 

 

Page 98



Page 99



 Key messages 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 1 

 

Contents 

Key messages ............................................................................................................................... 2 

2010/11 ............................................................................................................................. 2 

Outlook .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Financial statements .................................................................................................................... 5 

Audit opinion ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Report of the Auditor General for Scotland ........................................................................ 5 

Accounting issues ............................................................................................................. 6 

Outlook .............................................................................................................................. 9 

Financial position ....................................................................................................................... 10 

Financial results 2010/11................................................................................................. 10 

Compliance with statutory requirements .......................................................................... 11 

Financial position at 31 March 2011 ................................................................................ 12 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 12 

Governance and accountability ................................................................................................. 13 

Governance Committees ................................................................................................. 13 

Internal control ................................................................................................................ 13 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 15 

Appendix A: action plan ............................................................................................................. 16 

 

Page 100



Key messages 

 

 

Page 2 Auditor General for Wales 

 

Key messages 
2010/11 

The responsibilities of the Auditor General for Scotland, as auditor of the accounts of the 

Auditor General for Wales for the 2010/11 year of account, were established by a motion 

passed by the National Assembly for Wales on 18 March 2011, under the Government of 

Wales Act 2006. We have audited the financial statements.  The audit has also followed up 

the reviews undertaken by the Public Accounts Committee and others on previous years’ 

accounts and related matters. This report sets out the key findings of the audit. 

Financial statements   

The Auditor General for Scotland has given an unqualified opinion on the financial statements 

of the Auditor General for Wales.  This audit opinion also concluded that, in all material 

respects, the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied to 

the purposes intended by the National Assembly for Wales and the financial transactions 

conform with the authorities that govern them. 

The Auditor General for Scotland has also prepared a substantive report on the accounts, 

which concluded that the recommended actions of the Public Accounts Committee have been 

implemented.  These included: HM Treasury issuing a new accounts direction; the 

restatement of 2009/10 accounts figures, in particular to account properly for pension 

liabilities; and the adoption of a resource accounting format.  

Financial position  

Following prior period adjustments the reserves position at 31 March 2010 was restated as a 

deficit of £1.246m, compared to the position previously reported in the 2009/10 accounts of 

available reserves of £0.117m. The net reserves position at 31 March 2011 is available 

reserves of £0.162m. The turn around from the restated deficit position reflects the significant 

reduction in net expenditure in 2010/11 compared to the previous year.  As highlighted in the 

annual report and accounts, this was achieved through a combination of cost reduction, 

efficiency measures and deferred expenditure.   An amount of £0.629m is repayable to the 

Welsh Consolidated Fund at 31 March 2011.  

Governance and accountability 

Corporate Governance is concerned with the structures and process for decision making, 

accountability, control and behaviour at the upper levels of an organisation.  Overall, the high 

level corporate governance and control arrangements for the Auditor General for Wales 

operated satisfactorily during the year, as reflected in the Statement on Internal Control.  We 

carried out a review of the internal audit function and concluded we could place reliance on 

their work. 

Page 101



 Key messages 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 3 

 

Outlook 

The position going forward remains challenging with 2011/12 cost savings requiring a further 

reduction in staff numbers; the new governance committees to be embedded; and planned 

improvements to other internal controls to be implemented, including the further development 

of budgeting and cost allocation arrangements to improve the basis for estimates, financial 

reporting and accountability in future years.  

 

Page 102



Introduction 

 

 

Page 4 Auditor General for Wales 

 

Introduction 
1. A motion, on behalf of the Public Accounts Committee (PAC), was passed by the National 

Assembly for Wales (NAW) on 18 March 2011, under the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the 

2006 Act), and appointed the Auditor General for Scotland as the auditor of the accounts of 

the Auditor General for Wales (AGW), in relation to the year of account 2010/11, on the terms 

contained in a memorandum dated 9 March 2011.  

2. The 2006 Act refers to the AGW, but much of the corporate documentation associated with 

the AGW, his staff and office is published under the banner of the Wales Audit Office (WAO).  

In this report we have adopted an approach of using the AGW when referring to explicit 

statutory matters, such as the accounts and audit certificate.  We have used WAO when 

referring to more corporate activity or concepts associated with the AGW’s staff and 

organisation.  

3. This report is the summary of our findings arising from the 2010/11 audit of the AGW. The 

purpose of the annual audit report is to set out concisely the scope, nature and extent of the 

audit that has been conducted, and to summarise the auditor’s opinions (i.e. on the financial 

statements) and conclusions and any significant issues arising.   

4. Appendix A is an action plan setting out the most significant issues and risks we have 

identified from the audit.  Officers have considered these and the Appendix records the 

agreed "planned management action".  We do not expect all risks to be eliminated or even 

minimised.  We expect that the AGW and WAO understand their risks and have arrangements 

in place to manage these risks.  The AGW and WAO should ensure that they are satisfied with 

the proposed management action and have a mechanism in place to assess progress.   

5. This report is addressed to the PAC, the AGW and the Auditor General for Scotland and 

should also form a key part of discussions with the WAO's Audit and Risk Management 

Committee (ARMC), either prior to or as soon as possible after the formal completion of the 

audit of the financial statements.  Reports should be made available to stakeholders and the 

public, where appropriate. Audit is an essential element of accountability and the process of 

public reporting.   

6. This report will be published on our website after consideration by the PAC, the AGW and the 

ARMC.   

7. The AGW is responsible for preparing financial statements that show a true and fair view and 

for implementing appropriate internal control systems.  Weaknesses or risks identified by 

auditors are only those which have come to our attention during our normal audit work, and 

may not be all that exist.  Communication by auditors of matters arising from the audit of the 

financial statements or of risks or weaknesses does not absolve the AGW or management 

from their responsibility to address the issues raised and to maintain an adequate system of 

control. 

 

Page 103



 Financial statements 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 5 

 

Financial statements 
8. Audited bodies’ financial statements are an essential part of accounting for their stewardship 

of the resources made available to them and their performance in the use of those resources.  

9. As auditors we are required to audit financial statements and give an opinion on: 

 whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of audited bodies and their 

expenditure and income 

 whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant legislation, the 

applicable accounting framework and other reporting requirements 

 the regularity of the expenditure and income. 

10. Auditors review and report on, as appropriate, other information published with the financial 

statements, including the management commentary, statement on internal control and the 

remuneration report.  This section summarises the results of our audit on the financial 

statements.   

Audit opinion 

11. The Auditor General for Scotland has provided an unqualified opinion on the financial 

statements of the AGW for 2010/11. His audit certificate includes his opinion that the financial 

statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the 2006 Act and directions made 

thereunder by HM Treasury.  

Regularity 

12. He has also provided an opinion, that in all material respects, the expenditure and income in 

the financial statements were incurred or applied to the purposes intended by the NAW and 

the financial transactions conform with the authorities that govern them. 

Remuneration report and statement on internal control 

13. In his opinion, the audited part of the remuneration report has been properly prepared and the 

remaining elements of the remuneration report and management commentary are consistent 

with the financial statements. 

14. He also confirmed that he has no issues to report on the statement of internal control and its 

compliance with the relevant HM Treasury guidance. 

Report of the Auditor General for Scotland  

15. The Auditor General for Scotland has prepared a report on the accounts in which he considers 

how the recommendations of the PAC in relation to the 2009/10 accounts have been 

addressed and concluded that the recommended actions have been implemented. 

Specifically: 

Page 104



Financial statements 

 

 

Page 6 Auditor General for Wales 

 

 An updated accounts direction has been issued by HM Treasury (paragraph 17) 

 the 2010/11 accounts have complied with the revised accounts direction and the 

Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) taking account of all the previous accounting and 

reporting issues raised by the National Audit Office and others, in particular through the 

adoption of a Summary of Resource Outturn (paragraph 16)   

 the 2009/10 comparative figures have been restated (paragraph 21) 

Summary of Resource Outturn 

16. One of the key elements of the recommendations was the adoption of a new primary 

statement, the Summary of Resource Outturn, which records the outturn against the use of 

resources authorised by a budget motion of the NAW. This is a substantial change in 

approach.  The new statement demonstrates that the AGW’s expenditure for 2010/11 was 

within the resource and cash limits established by the relevant budget motion of the NAW. It 

also shows that £0.629m is repayable to the WCF. This represents amounts drawn down from 

the WCF or collected from non-local government audits as detailed in a budget motion of the 

NAW but not utilised during the year that are due to be returned to the NAW.  This is 

considered further in paragraphs 36 to 40 in the section of the report which comments on the 

WAO's financial position. 

Accounting issues 

New accounts direction 

17. A new accounts direction (paragraph 15) was requested from HM Treasury in December 2010 

to reflect the passing of the 2006 Act, the establishment of the WCF, and the statutory 

requirement for expenditure by the WAO to be authorised by a budget motion of the 

Assembly. A draft was received in January 2011 and following consultation with the Welsh 

Government, the NAW and Audit Scotland a final direction was issued in June 2011.  

Accounts preparation and review 

18. The financial statements were submitted for audit on 5 June, in accordance with a pre-agreed 

timetable. The statements originally submitted were incomplete and further significant 

submissions were received on 9 June, 22 June and 1 July, with a complete annual report and 

accounts presented at the latter date. Matters arising from our financial statements work were 

reported to officers on 21 June and 1 July. With our audit work nearing completion we were 

able to submit a draft ISA 260, to the ARMC on 13 July. A further submission of the draft 

annual report and accounts was received on 3 August, with the AGW signing on 31 August 

2011.  

19. The governance arrangements over the preparation of the 2010/11 AGW’s accounts were 

strengthened to ensure that potentially contentious matters, or omissions, were properly 

brought to attention.  However, the implementation of these revised arrangements remained 

challenging. We note, for example, the significant time pressure on both peer reviewers and 

Page 105



 Financial statements 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 7 

 

external audit to provide input on the draft annual report and accounts prior to the 

consideration of these documents by the ARMC.  We recommend a review of the experience 

in 2010/11 to ensure that there is sufficient time for the arrangements to work effectively in 

future years. 

Refer Action Plan No. 1 

Presentational and monetary adjustments to the unaudited accounts  

20. As a result of our review a number of presentational changes were required to the financial 

statements, particularly in relation to the Summary of Resource Outturn.  There were also 

some monetary changes identified during the audit process including to amounts payable to 

WCF (£0.629m) and to the accrual for holiday entitlement not yet taken (£0.116m). The 

audited financial statements have been adjusted to reflect these issues. 

Prior period adjustments 

21. No provisions for future pension costs in respect of early departures had been recognised in 

previous financial statements.  Accounting policies were amended in 2010/11 to make full 

provision for the costs of early retirements and severances at the point at which these were 

agreed.  This was applied by means of a prior period adjustment which resulted in additional 

liabilities of £1.336m being recognised in the opening balance sheet. 

22. Also in line with recommendations arising from the reviews by the National Audit Office and 

others, the accounting policies adopted were amended in 2010/11 to treat funding from the 

WCF as financing and not as income. The consequence of this is that this financing is shown 

as a credit to the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and not as income in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. The latter statement shows a deficit of 

£3.037m as a result, reflecting net expenditure required to be financed from the WCF. 

23. All central government bodies have been affected by the removal of the cost of capital in the 

2010/11 FReM. As a consequence £0.004m notional cost of capital expenditure was no 

longer chargeable to 2009/10 operating costs. 

24. A receivable of £0.027m from the WCF was wrongly included in the accounts at 31 March 

2010.  This was corrected as a part of the restatement of 2009/10 figures. 

25. The changes summarised above are identified in Note 21: Prior year adjustments to the 

accounts as correction of errors or changes in accounting policy. We confirm that appropriate 

amendments have been made to the prior year statements. 

Cost allocation and segmental reporting 

26. The accounts of the AGW cover local authority activity, which is not part of the budget motion, 

and central government and NHS activity which is the basis for the budget motion.  The 

accounting policy on cost allocation is, therefore, fundamental in determining the budget and 

presenting the outturn position. A new Note 2: Analysis of net expenditure by segment is 

included to the 2010/11 accounts. This not only provides an analysis of net expenditure by 

Page 106



Financial statements 

 

 

Page 8 Auditor General for Wales 

 

operating segment but is also used to provide the income and expenditure amounts in the 

Summary of Resource Outturn.  

27. In line with previous practice the £5.047m revenue funding from the WCF is included as a 

separate segment in Note 2, representing the funding of the costs of operating the WAO that 

are not allocated directly to other operating segments.  While welcoming the improved 

disclosure in this area we recommend that the AGW continues to review the basis of 

segmental reporting for budgeting, management information and financial reporting for 

2011/12 and future years to ensure the most effective approach is adopted and that the 

monitoring of compliance with this aspect of their statutory reporting framework is embedded 

in WAO procedures. 

Refer Action Plan No. 2 

Income recognition and work-in-progress 

28. A key area of judgement for both the preparation of the accounts and the audit is income 

recognition and work-in-progress. The accounting policies adopted in relation to the 

recognition of fee income and associated balances (trade receivables, work in progress and 

deferred income) are appropriate and consistent with those adopted in previous years. The 

amount of fee income recognised is directly related to the extent to which individual exercises 

have been assessed as completed, independently of the amounts billed or collected. The full 

amount billed is shown as a trade receivable, and any amount billed but not yet recognised as 

income is shown as deferred income. Work in progress relates to income earned but not yet 

billed. Fee income and associated balances have been accounted for appropriately during 

2010/11. 

VAT 

29. Discussions between the WAO and HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) continue as for a 

number of years there has been significant uncertainty about the VAT status of the AGW’s 

activity. This issue was inherited at the formation of the WAO and management has continued 

to apply VAT treatments adopted by predecessor bodies. The AGW has decided that it is not 

appropriate to provide for any potential liability at 31 March 2011 as it is less than 50% 

probable that any obligation exists and that it is not possible to assess the extent of any such 

obligation. The VAT situation is disclosed as an unquantifiable contingent liability in the notes 

to the accounts of the AGW.  

Refer Action Plan No. 3 

Bad debt provision 

30. Management has reviewed the manner in which provision is made for bad and doubtful debts, 

reducing significantly the proportion of trade receivables that has been provided for. The 

current level of provision is described in the accounting policies at Note 1(x). In assessing the 

level of bad debt provision that is appropriate management has considered the prevailing 

financial climate facing audit clients and other relevant contextual information. The accounting 

Page 107



 Financial statements 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 9 

 

judgement made about the level of provision is reasonable; and management will continue to 

keep this under review in light of actual experience of non-payment. 

Outlook 

31. The main change in the financial reporting framework (FReM) next year (2011/12) relating to 

government grants and donated assets are not relevant to the AGW's accounts.  

Audit appointment for 2011/12 

32. The motion appointing the Auditor General for Scotland as the auditor of the accounts of the 

AGW was for the 2010/11 financial year only. We would like to acknowledge the good working 

relationship that existed during this appointment and to thank officials and members of the 

ARMC for their assistance. We will communicate with the incoming external auditors as part of 

a managed changeover process. 

 

Page 108



Financial position 

 

 

Page 10 Auditor General for Wales 

 

Financial position 
33. The AGW is responsible for conducting his affairs and for putting in place proper 

arrangements to ensure that the WAO's financial position is soundly based.  

34. Auditors consider whether audited bodies have established adequate arrangements and 

examine: 

 financial performance in the period under audit 

 compliance with any statutory financial requirements and financial targets 

 ability to meet known or contingent, statutory and other financial obligations 

 responses to developments which may have an impact on the financial position 

 financial plans for future periods. 

35. This section summarises the financial position, compliance with statutory financial 

requirements and outlook for the organisation.   

Financial results 2010/11 

36. Under Section 125 of the 2006 Act, Ministers must move a budget motion in the NAW to 

authorise the use of resources, retention of income and drawings of cash from the WCF for 

certain relevant persons, including the AGW. The AGW’s budget is determined, under 

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 8 of the 2006 Act, after the Audit Committee (PAC) has examined 

his annual estimate of income and expenses, and laid it before the NAW. A comparison 

between the 2010/11 Annual Budget Motion laid before the NAW in December 2009 and the 

2010/11 outturn is shown in Exhibit 1.   

Exhibit 1: Comparison between 2010/11 Annual Budget Motion and outturn (£ m) 

Limits Budget Actual 

Outturn 

Variance 

Resources other than accruing resources for use by 

the AGW on the administration of the WAO, and the 

discharge of the statutory functions of the AGW and 

local government appointed auditors 

5.047 4.478 0.569 

Page 109



 Financial position 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 11 

 

Limits Budget Actual 

Outturn 

Variance 

Accruing resources from fees and charges for audit 

and related services (excluding income under Part 1 

and Section 33 of the Local Government Act 1999, 

and Part 2 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004); other 

recoveries of costs associated with the functions of the 

AGW; miscellaneous income from publications, 

conferences, provision of administrative and 

professional and technical services etc.; recoveries of 

costs of seconded staff; repayments of staff loans; 

recoveries of car leasing payments; and interest 

received on working balances fees for use by the 

AGW on related services and the administration of the 

WAO 

10.772 7.913 2.859 

Net cash requirement from the WCF to meet the net 

amounts falling due for payment in the year by the 

AGW 

5.074 4.445 0.629 

    

Source:  Annual Budget Motion and AGW Annual Report and Accounts 2010/11 

Compliance with statutory requirements 

37. In accordance with the accountability rules for the NAW, the prior period adjustment 

(paragraph 21) is brought to account in the Summary of Resource Outturn for 2010/11, it 

having not been brought to account in previous years.  Applying the cost allocation accounting 

policy (paragraph 25), £0.544m of the total prior period adjustment is brought to account in the 

Summary of Resource Outturn, being the share attributable to central government and NHS 

work. Taken together with an appropriate share of capital expenditure, the total resource 

outturn remains within the limit established by the budget motion.  The net cash requirement 

also remains within the corresponding limit.   

38. To ensure improvements in the basis for estimates, financial reporting and accountability in 

future years the Auditor General for Scotland noted in his report on the 2010/11 accounts 

(paragraph 15) that further development of budgeting and cost allocation arrangements is 

underway as part of the preparation for the submission of the AGW's budget for 2012/13.  

Refer Action Plan no. 2 

39. The comparative figures for the Summary of Resource Outturn for 2009/10 are not included in 

the 2010/11 accounts.  This reflects that, in previous years, capital expenditure was not 

included in either the budget or the outturn against budget reported in the accounts (for 

2009/10 capital expenditure was £0.457m in total, of which approximately £0.184m was 

Page 110



Financial position 

 

 

Page 12 Auditor General for Wales 

 

attributable to WCF funded activity).  This is an unusual circumstance and the way forward 

should be clarified as part of the discussions on 2012/13 budgeting referred to in Action plan 

point 2. 

Financial position at 31 March 2011 

40. Once the prior period adjustments were made (paragraphs 20 to 24) the reserves position at 

31 March 2010 is a deficit of £1.246m, in comparison with the previously reported position of a 

surplus of £0.117m. The net reserves position at 31 March 2011 is available reserves of 

£0.162m.  The turn around from the restated deficit position reflects the significant reduction in 

net expenditure in 2010/11 compared to the previous year. As highlighted in the annual report 

and accounts, this was achieved through a combination of cost reduction, efficiency measures 

and deferred expenditure. 

Outlook 

2011/12 budget 

41. The limits included in the 2011/12 Annual Budget Motion laid before the NAW in March 2011 

are all reductions on the previous year's budget motion and reflected the AGW's plans to 

continue reducing net expenditure.  The budget for net cash requirement is £4.753m (2011: 

£5.074m). The budget for revenue resource is £4.853m (2011: £5.047m) and the budget for 

income to be retained is £8.024m (2011: £10.722m).  

 

Page 111



 Governance and accountability 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 13 

 

Governance and 
accountability 
42. The three fundamental principles of corporate governance – openness, integrity and 

accountability – apply to all audited bodies, whether their members are elected or appointed, 

or whether they comprise groups of people or an individual accounting officer. 

43. Through its chief executive or accounting officer, each body is responsible for establishing 

arrangements for ensuring the proper conduct of its affairs including the legality of activities 

and transactions, and for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Audited bodies usually involve those charged with governance (including audit committees or 

similar groups) in monitoring these arrangements. 

44. Consistent with the wider scope of public audit, auditors have a responsibility to review and 

report on audited bodies’ corporate governance arrangements as they relate to: 

 corporate governance and systems of internal control 

 the prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity 

 standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention and detection of corruption 

45. In this part of the report we comment on key areas of governance. 

Governance Committees  

46. In response to issues that predated his appointment, and consistent with the reviews by PAC 

and others, the AGW has established a Resources Committee and a Remuneration 

Committee to enhance the existing independent scrutiny of WAO by the ARMC. The 

recruitment of members to the new committees was completed in March and chairs were 

appointed in July. The committees’ draft terms of reference and business cycle are being 

finalised ready for the committees’ first formal meetings in the autumn of 2011.  While 

welcoming these steps to strengthen this aspect of the governance arrangements, we have 

not formally reviewed these as part of the 2010/11 audit as revised arrangements have only 

recently been established. 

Refer Action Plan no. 4 

Internal control 

47. While auditors concentrate on significant systems and key controls in support of the opinion 

on the financial statements, their wider responsibilities require them to consider the financial 

systems and controls of audited bodies as a whole.  However, the extent of this work should 

also be informed by their assessment of risk and the activities of internal audit. 

Key controls within systems should operate effectively and efficiently to accurately record 

financial transactions and prevent and detect fraud or error.  This supports a robust internal 

Page 112



Governance and accountability 

 

 

Page 14 Auditor General for Wales 

 

control environment and the effective production of financial statements.  In its annual report 

for 2010/11 WAO Internal Audit provided its overall conclusion that the WAO’s systems are 

capable of delivering effective internal control and risk management, but that specific and 

significant deficiencies in internal control were identified. The specific and significant 

deficiencies in internal control identified related to 2009/10 and earlier years (paragraph 50). 

Statement on internal control 

48. The Statement on Internal Control (SIC) provided by the AGW records that he has 

responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement 

of the WAO’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets 

for which he is personally responsible. This is in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 

to him in the Memorandum for the Accounting Officer of the WAO issued on 2 November 2010 

by the PAC.   

49. The SIC noted the deficiencies in internal control relating to 2009/10 and earlier years which 

resulted in the PAC holding a number of hearings in 2010/11 that culminated in their report of 

March 2011 “Accounting, governance and propriety issues at the Wales Audit Office”.  The 

Auditor General for Scotland records the findings from his review of the implementation of the 

recommendations included in this report in his report on the accounts (paragraph 15).  

50. The SIC also noted that in 2010/11 internal audit undertook a review of the conduct of the 

former AGW, Mr Colman and that the Head of Internal Audit concluded that the specific and 

significant deficiencies in internal control relating to 2009/10 and earlier years were 

attributable to specific root causes which are being addressed through the introduction of 

improved governance and control arrangements. We note that management are aware of and 

acting to improve financial and performance management monitoring, records management, 

IT monitoring, and HR and staff management issues and updating WAO's Financial Policies. 

Refer Action Plan no. 4 

51. The SIC also summarises the process by which the AGW obtains assurances on the contents 

of the SIC. Currently this review is informed by the work of the internal and external auditors 

and the senior managers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 

internal control framework. However, the assurances provided by senior managers are not as 

formal as we have seen elsewhere.  We recommend a cascade of assurances to include 

formal assurance by managers providing a certificate of assurance covering their areas of 

responsibility to relevant Executive Committee member, who then provide an appropriate 

assurance to the AGW. 

Refer Action Plan no. 5 

Internal Audit  

52. A key element of our work on internal controls is the extent of reliance that we can place on 

the work of internal audit in terms of ISA 610 (Considering the work of internal audit).  We 

carried out a review of the internal audit function in May 2011 and concluded that the work of 

the WAO’s internal audit service is carried out in accordance with Government Internal Audit 

Page 113



 Governance and accountability 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 15 

 

Standards. In particular, for our financial statements audit, we placed reliance on the testing of 

financial functions and the review of the new accounting system, as planned.  As a result of 

the review we also made some recommendations for improvement, which were accepted by 

WAO. 

Outlook 

53. The AGW is introducing an Oversight Framework ("Proposed new governance arrangements 

for the WAO – Briefing paper for the PAC" dated 7 October 2010 paragraphs 19 and 20) to 

improve transparency and clarify aspects of his responsibilities within the Financial Reporting 

Framework. 

 

Page 114



Appendix A: action plan 

 

 

Page 16 Auditor General for Wales 

 

Appendix A: action plan 
Key Issues/ Risk Areas and Planned Management Action 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para 

No 

    Issue/ Risk Identified Planned Management 

Action 

Responsible 

Officer 

Target 

Date 

1 18 

and 

19 

The preparation and 

governance arrangements 

over the completion of the 

AGW’s annual report and 

accounts should be further 

reviewed to ensure that 

sufficient time is available for 

the key stages of the 

process. 

We will review the entire 

accounts process, 

including the particular 

challenges we faced and 

the effectiveness of each 

of the key stages of the 

preparation and 

governance processes 

adopted for 2010/11. We 

will then identify which 

stages of the process will 

be retained, and whether 

any additional or different 

stages are necessary. 

Following agreement of 

the key stages, a timetable 

will be developed to allow 

sufficient time for each of 

those stages to be 

completed.  

 

Assistant 

Auditor 

General 

(Planning 

and 

Resources)  

March 

2012 

2 27 

and 

38 

Budgeting process and 

segmental reporting should 

be further developed in 

2011/12 and 2012/13 to 

ensure transparency between 

budgets and subsequent 

management and financial 

reporting, including for capital 

expenditure.  

We have already started 

the process of developing 

our budgeting process and 

segmental reporting, 

starting with the Estimate 

paper for 2012/13 that will 

be presented to the PAC 

on 11 October 2011. In the 

light of this work we will 

also consider the 

implications for our 

2011/12 accounts. 

 

Assistant 

Auditor 

General 

(Planning 

and 

Resources) 

March 

2012 

Page 115



 Appendix A: action plan 

 

 

Auditor General for Wales Page 17 

 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para 

No 

    Issue/ Risk Identified Planned Management 

Action 

Responsible 

Officer 

Target 

Date 

3 29 When the AGW's VAT status 

is agreed a significant liability 

may arise, which could 

impact on the AGW’s 

financial position. 

We are continuing to liaise 

with the HMRC and our 

professional advisors on 

this matter in order to 

resolve it as a matter of 

priority. In the event that 

any liability is determined 

and quantified we will 

consider whether this can 

be funded from existing 

resources or whether 

additional resources need 

to be obtained. This matter 

has been, and will 

continue to be, referred to 

in both our accounts and 

Estimate until it is 

resolved.   

Assistant 

Auditor 

General 

(Planning 

and 

Resources) 

Timing is 

dependent 

on 

reaching 

agreement 

with 

HMRC 

4 46 

and 

50 

Governance arrangements 

are being strengthened but 

are not yet fully embedded 

and progress should be kept 

under review. 

We are working to embed 

the new arrangements. 

The effectiveness of the 

new arrangements will be 

reviewed on an ongoing 

basis.  

Auditor 

General for 

Wales' 

Private 

Secretary 

Under 

review on 

an 

ongoing 

basis 

5 51 WAO officers should provide 

formal certificates of 

assurance on internal 

controls systems covering 

their areas of responsibility as 

part of a cascade of 

assurances to the AGW.  

We will review existing 

practices and, where 

necessary, we will develop 

an appropriate process for 

the provision of 

assurances, balancing the 

need for clear and 

documented assurance 

that adds value with the 

time constraints 

recognised in action point 

1.  

Assistant 

Auditor 

General 

(Planning 

and 

Resources) 

July 2012 

 

Page 116



Supplementary Estimate of Income and

Expenditure of the Wales Audit Office 

for the Year Ending 31 March 2012

September 2011

www.wao.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

Page 117



Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure of the

Wales Audit Office for the Year Ending 31 March 2012

Submitted to the Public Accounts Committee of the National Assembly for Wales for

examination under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 8 of the Government of Wales Act 2006

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General for Wales

Wales Audit Office

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff

CF11 9LJ

Page 118



Introduction 4

Purpose of this Supplementary Budget Motion 5

Capital expenditure 5

Request for additional resource 5

Analysis of my net request for resources 6

Summary 7

Appendix 1 - Summary of 2011-12 budget requirements 

for inclusion in the Welsh Ministers’ Budget Motion under 

Section 125 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 8

Contents

Page 119



1 My budget, as Auditor General, is determined

after the Public Accounts Committee (PAC)

has examined my annual estimate of income

and expenditure and laid it before the National

Assembly. 

2 Following examination by the PAC on 11

November 2010, my original annual estimate

for the 2011-12 financial year was laid before

the National Assembly on 22 November 2010.

3 As I outline below, I wish to make

amendments to this original estimate and

invite the PAC to examine and lay this

estimate of my income and expenditure for

the year ending 31 March 2012.

Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure4

Introduction

Page 120



5Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure

Purpose of this Supplementary Budget Motion

4 I wish to amend my original estimate of my

net resource requirement of £4,853,000 for

2011-12 and of my estimate of my associated

cash need from the Welsh Consolidated Fund

of £4,753,000. Resource differs from cash as

it takes account of non-cash transactions 

(eg, asset depreciation) and the impact of

debtors and creditors on income and

expenditure. I am seeking to do this in order

to correct for the treatment of capital

expenditure in my original estimate and to

provide more information about how

resources originally requested are being used.

These amendments follow lessons learned in

preparing our 2010-11 accounts and are

supported by recommendations made by the

Auditor General for Scotland and the National

Audit Office.

5 In addition, I am seeking to increase my

original resource request by £550,000 to

£5,403,000 in order to further reduce my staff

costs through a voluntary severance scheme.

My accounts for 2010-11 show unused

resource of £569,000 and I am not therefore

seeking additional resources across the two

years. My net resource request actually

represents a slight reduction of £19,000 in

overall terms. In cash terms, my accounts for

2010-11 show £629,000 as payable to the

Welsh Consolidated Fund. I am seeking to

use £550,000 of this cash that would

otherwise be returned to fund the voluntary

severance scheme, with the balance of

£79,000 being repaid. 

6 Further information on each of these issues 

is provided below.

Capital expenditure

7 My original 2011-12 estimate of income and

expenditure did not separately identify any

capital expenditure. I estimate that I will incur

£50,000 of capital expenditure in 2011-12,

and that £20,000 of that expenditure will be

funded by the net resource requirement of

£4,853,000 previously approved by the

National Assembly within the original Annual

Budget Motion for 2011-12; the balance will

be funded from fee income.

8 Within this supplementary estimate, £20,000

that was classified as revenue expenditure in

the original estimate is therefore being

reclassified as capital expenditure. This

technical adjustment has no net impact on the

total level of resource for the Auditor General

that was approved in the original 2011-12

Budget Motion.

Request for additional resource

9 I outlined in my original estimate for 2011-12

certain measures that I had already taken to

reduce staff costs, including a workforce

planning project, not filling all vacant posts,

and a voluntary severance scheme.

10 We invested approximately £1,000,000 in the

voluntary severance scheme under which staff

left the Wales Audit Office during the course

of 2010-11. By the end of 2011-12, the full

cost of this scheme will have been recovered

with part year savings in 2010-11 of £357,000,

full year savings of £797,000 in 2011-12 and

additional savings in future years. I have now

identified scope to further reduce the staff

Page 121



6

costs of the Wales Audit Office through a new

voluntary severance scheme. This scheme

will be extended to all staff and will include

both voluntary severance and changes to

working patterns in order to secure maximum

flexibility in the deployment of the workforce.

It will also support the restructuring of our

performance audit team to shape our work for

a changed external environment and to

enhance our delivery.

11 I estimate that the total cost of this new

voluntary severance scheme in 2011-12 will

be around £800,000 and will result in

recurring savings of at least £200,000 per

annum and a skill mix more aligned to future

work demands. The cost of the scheme will

be recovered within three to four years, and

will then generate ongoing savings. My ability

to realise these savings is dependent on there

being sufficient staff interest in the scheme.

12 I estimate that I can provide £250,000 to fund

this scheme from within my existing budget

for 2011-12, but will require £550,000 of

additional resources to fund fully the

proposed scheme.

13 My audited accounts for 2010-11 showed

unused resource of £569,000 and a cash

balance for payment into the Welsh

Consolidated Fund of £629,000. In overall

terms across 2010-11 and 2011-12, I am

therefore requesting a slight reduction of

£19,000 in net resources.

Analysis of my net request 

for resources

14 I provide in Table 1 for the PAC’s information

my updated estimate of how the net resource

approved for 2011-12 will be used.

Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure

£’000

Value for money examinations and studies by the Auditor General 1,635

Working with others to share learning, including provision of the Good Practice Exchange 200

Providing support to the PAC and other National Assembly committees 250

Responding to issues that have been brought to our attention through correspondence from the public,

elected representatives and others

80

Granting approvals to draw from the Welsh Consolidated Fund 15

Contributions to the following activities:

• Staff training and development 

• IT infrastructure 

• Technical support, research and development 

• Business development and improvement

850

850

500

453

Capital expenditure (see Paragraph 5 above) 20

Original request 4,853

Additional request – voluntary severance scheme 550

Revised request 5,403

Table 1 - Estimate of use of approved net resource requirement

Page 122



7Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure

Summary

15 I provide in Table 2 a summary of the

resources I am requesting through this

Supplementary Motion and in Table 3 a

reconciliation of the impact on my net cash

requirement on the Welsh Consolidated Fund.

Revenue

resource

£’000

Capital

resource

£’000

Total 

resource

£’000

Original estimate 4,853 0 4,853

Transfer from revenue to capital (20) 20 0

Additional request to fund voluntary severance scheme 550 0 550

Revised estimate 5,383 20 5,403

Table 2 - Summary of resource requests

£’000

Original estimate 4,753

Additional requirement 550

Revised estimate 5,303

Table 3 - Reconciliation of net cash requirement

Page 123



8

Appendix 1 - Summary of 2011-12 budget requirements 

for inclusion in the Welsh Ministers’ Budget Motion under

Section 125 of the Government of Wales Act 2006

Under Section 125 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the 2006 Act), Ministers must move a Budget

Motion in the National Assembly to authorise the use of resources, retention of income and drawings of

cash from the Welsh Consolidated Fund for certain relevant persons, including the Auditor General. 

The Auditor General’s budget is determined, under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 8 to the 2006 Act, after the

PAC has examined his annual estimate of income and expenses, and laid it before the National Assembly.

In respect of the services and purposes of the Auditor General in the year ending 31 March 2012, the

Budget Motion will authorise:

• the amount of resources to be used by the Auditor General;

• the amount of resources accruing to the Auditor General which may be retained by him (rather than

paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund); and

• the amount which may be paid out of the Welsh Consolidated Fund to the Auditor General.

These requirements, which due to the variability of income streams can only be estimates, are

summarised in Table 4 below.

Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure

£ million

Resources other than accruing resources for use by the Auditor General on the administration of the Wales

Audit Office, and the discharge of the statutory functions of the Auditor General and local government

appointed auditors.1

5.403

Accruing resources from fees and charges for audit and related services (excluding income under Part 1 and

Section 33 of the Local Government Act 1999, Part 2 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and Part 1 of the

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009), other recoveries of costs associated with the functions of the

Auditor General, miscellaneous income from publications, conferences, provision of administrative and

professional and technical services etc, recoveries of costs of seconded staff, repayments of staff loans,

recoveries of car leasing payments, and interest received on working balances fees for use by the Auditor

General on related services and the administration of the Wales Audit Office.2

8.024

Net cash requirement from the Welsh Consolidated Fund to meet the net amounts falling due for payment in

the year by the Auditor General.3
5.303

Table 4 - Summary of the estimated 2011-12 budget requirements

1 This is the net revenue and capital expenditure in resource terms that the National Assembly will be requested to authorise by Budget Motion under Section 125(1)(a) of the

2006 Act.

2 This is the income accruing to the Auditor General (other than that arising from local government activities) that the National Assembly will be asked to authorise by Budget

Motion under Section 125(1)(b) for use on related services rather than being paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund.

3 This is the cash needed from the Welsh Consolidated Fund to meet the Auditor General’s estimated net payments (payments less receipts) falling due in the year for

authorisation by the National Assembly by Budget Motion under Section 125(1)(c) of the 2006 Act.

Page 124



9Supplementary Estimate of Income and Expenditure

In addition to the amounts shown in Table 4, the Auditor General accrues resources from local government

activities under Part 1 and Section 33 of the Local Government Act 1999, Part 2 of the Public Audit

(Wales) Act 2004 and Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009, which he is permitted to

retain for use in connection with the exercise of functions under those statutory provisions. During 2011-12,

these are estimated to amount to £11.379 million (2010-11: £11.920 million). Under Paragraph 9(3) of

Schedule 8 to the 2006 Act, the Auditor General is authorised to retain such income rather than paying it

into the Welsh Consolidated Fund. As in previous years, it does not therefore form part of the amount to be

authorised by Budget Motion under Section 125(1)(b) of the 2006 Act, but is included for information.

2010-11

£ million

2011-12

£ million

Net request for resources 5.047 5.403

Movement in year-end debtors and work in progress, creditors and provisions, and

deferred income

0.227 0.100

Capital charges (depreciation) (0.200) (0.200)

Net cash requirement 5.074 5.303

Table 5 - Reconciliation of resource requirement to cash drawing requirement from the Welsh

Consolidated Fund

Page 125



Agenda Item 5

Page 126

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted



 

Public Accounts Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Tuesday, 20 September 2011 

 

  
Meeting time:  09:00 - 10:50 

 

  

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Darren Millar (Chair) 

Mohammad Asghar 
Mike Hedges 
Julie Morgan 
Gwyn Price 
Jenny Rathbone 
Aled Roberts 
Leanne Wood 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Anthony Barrett, Wales Audit Office Partner, Wales Audit 

Office 
Gillian Body, Assistant Auditor General, Wales Audit 
Office 
Huw Vaughan Thomas, Auditor General for Wales, Wales 
Audit Office 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Bethan Webber (Clerk) 

Daniel Collier (Deputy Clerk) 
Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor) 
Ian Summers (Official) 

 

  

 

1. Apologies and substitutions  
1.1 The Chair welcomed Committee Members and members of the public to the 
meeting. 
 
 
PRIVATE SESSION 

Agenda Annex

Page 129



The Committee resolved to exclude the public from items 3 to 8 of the meeting in 
accordance with Standing Order 17.42(ix). 
 

2. Introduction to the Public Accounts Committee  
2.1 The Committee discussed its role and remit and its relationship with the Wales 
Audit Office. 
 
 

3. Introduction to the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit 
Office (9.15 - 9.45)  
3.1 The Auditor General for Wales outlined the role of the Wales Audit Office. 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Approach to forward work planning (9.45 - 10.15)  
4.1 The Committee discussed forthcoming Public Accounts Committee activity. 
 

5. Audit Legislation - (10.15-10.30)  
5.1 The Committee discussed the Welsh Government’s proposed audit legislation. 
 

6. Procurement Update  (10.30 - 10.40)  
6.1 The Committee received an update on the progress for appointing auditors to the 
accounts of the Auditor General for Wales. 
 

7. Other Business  
7.1 The Committee agreed to refer the Wales Audit Office follow up report on Adult 
Mental Health Services to the Health and Social Services Committee for further scrutiny.  
 
 
 

8. Issues of governance and accountability of the Auditor General for 
Wales (10.50 - 11.00)  
8.1 As the Committee was not in a position to establish a sub-committee, it agreed to 
defer the decision. 
 

Page 130


	Agenda
	3 Auditor General for Wales's Annual Report and Accounts 2010-2011
	PAC(4)-03-11 : Paper 2 : Audit Scotland - Annual report 2010-11 audit

	4 Consideration of the Estimate of Income and Expenditure of the WAO for the year ending 31 March 2012
	5 Issues of governance and accountability in relation to the Auditor general for Wales
	Paper to note

